VYTAUTAS MAGNUS UNIVERSITY

Justina GAUBĖ

IMPORTANCE OF ADLERIAN LIFESTYLE THEMES IN WOMEN'S WEIGHT MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Doctoral Dissertation Social science, Psychology (06 S)

Kaunas, 2015

UDK 159.9 Ga-501

Dissertation was prepared in 2007-2015 years in Vytautas Magnus University, Faculty of Social Science, and Department of Theoretic psychology.

Scientific Advisor - prof. dr. Roy M. Kern (Vytautas Magnus university, Social Science, Psychology - 06S)

VYTAUTO DIDŽIOJO UNIVERSITETAS

Justina GAUBĖ

ASMENYBĖS YPATUMŲ PAGAL ADLERĮ SVARBA MOTERŲ SVORIO VALDYMUI

Daktaro disertacija Socialiniai mokslai, psichologija (06 S)

Kaunas, 2015

Disertacija rengta 2007–2015 metais Vytauto Didžiojo universitete.

Mokslinis vadovas - prof. dr. Roy M. Kern (Vytauto Didžiojo universitetas, socialiniai mokslai, psichologija, 06 S)

CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	7
ABBREVATIONS	8
GLOSSARY	9
INTRODUCTION	11
1. PROBLEMS OF RESEARCH RELATED TO WEIGHT MANAGEMENT VARIABLES	20
1.1. Explanation of weight management in various theories	20
1.1.1.Weigh management process in relation to Social Cognition approach	20
1.1.1.1. Social Cognition models in relation to health behaviour	20
1.1.1.2. Weight management process	24
1.1.1.2.1. Healthy and drastic ways of weight management	29
1.1.1.2.2. Role of the personality in weight-related behaviour	31
1.1.2. Weigh management from an Individual Psychology perspective	32
1.1.2.1. BASIS-A as a reliable personality instrument	33
1.1.3. Description of Intuitive eating and its' importance in weight management	34
1.1.3. Integration of the weight management process based on Social cognitive models, Individual	
Psychology and Intuitive Eating	38
1.2. Exploration of factors related to weight management	42
1.2.1. Importance of Personality for weight management	42
1.2.1.1. Implications for the role of Adlerian Lifestyle themes in this study	44
1.2.2. Importance of other variables for weight management	45
1.2.2.1. Appearance related beliefs and weight management	45
1.2.2.2. Perceived social support and weight management	47
1.2.2.3. Marital Status, family income and weight management	48
1.2.2.4. Age, Parents' weight and weight management	49
1.3. Constructing model for possible explanation of weight management:	51
Summary of the literature analysis	51
2. RESEARCH OF ADLERIAN PERSONALITY ATTRIBUTES	53
IN RELATION TO WEIGTH MANAGEMENT	53
2.1. Research methods	53
2.1.1. Sample and procedures	53
2.1.2. Measures	55
2.1.3. Selection of the statistical procedures	58
2.2. Results	60
2.2.1. Association between body mass index and perceived weight situation	60
2.2.1.1. Correlates of incorrectly perceived weight situation	61
2.2.1.1.1. Correlates for incorrectly perceived weight situation with the group of women with normal	
ВМІ	64
2.2.1.2.2. Correlates for incorrectly perceived weight situation in the group of women with increased	
ВМІ	65
2.2.2. Association between perceived weight situation and active intention to manage weight	67
2.2.2.1. Correlates and moderators for the intention to manage weight	69

2.2.2.1.1 Correlates and moderators for the intention to manage weight in the group of women with	
normal BMI	70
2.2.2.1.2. Correlates and moderators for the intention to manage weight in the group	72
of women with increased BMI	72
2.2.3. Association between the intention to manage weight and behaviour variables	74
2.2.3.1. Association between the intention to manage weight and healthy eating	75
2.2.3.1.1 Correlates and moderators for healthy eating	75
2.2.3.1.1.1. Correlates and moderators for healthy eating in the group	76
of women with normal BMI	76
2.2.3.1.1.2. Correlates and moderators for healthy eating in the group of women with increased BMI.	78
2.2.3.2. Association between intention to manage weight and good eating habits	80
2.2.3.2.1 Correlates and moderators for good eating habits	80
2.2.3.2.1.1. Correlates and moderators for good eating habits	81
in the group of women with normal BMI	81
2.2.3.2.1.2. Correlates and moderators for good eating habits	83
in the group of women with increased BMI	83
2.2.3.3. Association between intention to manage weight and physical activity	85
2.2.3.3.1 Correlates and moderators for physical activity	85
2.2.3.3.1.1. Correlates and moderators for physical activity	86
in the group of women with normal BMI	86
2.2.3.3.1.2. Correlates and moderators for physical activity in the group of women with increased BM	II 88
2.2.3.4. Association between intention to manage weight and weight controlling behaviour	90
2.2.3.4.1 Correlates and moderators for weight controlling behaviour	90
2.2.3.4.1.1. Correlates and moderators for weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with	
normal BMI	91
2.2.3.4.1.2. Correlates and moderators for weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with	
increased BMI	93
2.2.4. Interrelatedness of Intuitive Eating, weight-related behaviour and Adlerian lifestyle	95
2.2.4.1 Association between Intuitive eating and weight-related behaviours	95
2.2.4.2 Association between Intuitive eating and Adlerian lifestyle themes	96
2.2.4.3 Association between Intuitive eating and weight management intention	97
2.2.5 Prognostic model for BMI: importance of behavioural variables, Intuitive eating, Age and Paren	ıts'
weight	98
2.3. Discussion	.100
2.3.1. Generalizing the findings	.113
2.3.2 Limitations and implications for the future research	.119
CONCLUSIONS	.121
PRACTICAL IMPLICATIONS	.123
REFERENCES	.126
APPENDIXES	.139

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I want to thank all people who were together with me on my way with the dissertation.

First of all I want to say a sincere thanks to my supervisor professor Roy Kern, who was always on my side, supported all my decisions and used to remind that the most important thing in one's life is to have the right priorities. He was an example of a positive thinking and helped me to improve not only the research skills, but also the knowledge in understanding people generally.

I also thank all my colleagues in the departments of psychology at Vytautas Magnus university for their questions and advises as well as trust and support, which allowed and helped me to go through this process.

I thank my parents Silvija and Petras, who believed in me and from the first grade made me responsible for my homework. I really appreciate their insights about the importance of education and the ability to make my own school-related and university-related decisions. It was great to have such a trust and continuous support during all my life. I also thank my brother Donatas for sometimes reminding that studies is not the only thing in my life.

I say big thanks to my parents-in-law Lina and Vytautas and sister-in-law Eglè for their understanding and important assistance during the most busy final period of writing. I am lucky having such a support from this family.

Most of all I want to thank my husband Paulius, who was my main critic and the source of inspiration at the same time. Only with his help and support I was able to finish what had started.

Finally, I want to dedicate this dissertation to the most beautiful miracle in my life my daughter Marija.

ABBREVATIONS

- BMI Body Mass Index
- IP Individual Psychology
- TPB Theory of Planned Behaviour
- HBM The Health Belief Model
- SCT Social Cognitive Theory
- BASIS-A Basic Adlerian Scales for Interpersonal Success Adults' version
- BSI Belonging-Social Interest
- GA Going Along
- TC Taking Charge
- WR Wanting Recognition
- BC Being Cautious
- H Harshness
- E Entitlement
- L Liked by All
- P Striving for Perfection
- S Softness
- UPE Unconditional Permission to Eat
- EPR Eating for Physical Rather than Emotional Reasons
- RHSC Reliance on Hunger and Satiety Cues
- B-FCC Body-Food Choice Congruence

GLOSSARY

Adlerian Lifestyle is goal directed personality attributes that integrates social goals of the perceived environment and to a lesser degree the emphasis on an individual's biological and genetic attributes (Adler, 1927; Ansbacher & Ansbacher, 1964). Lifestyle is conceptualized as an organized set of beliefs that an individual creates before the age of seven within the confines of the family that the individual consistently employs throughout life to solve problems related to social relationships, career, and intimacy (Jonyniene & Kern, 2012). In this study Lifestyle will be used as a synonym for what other scholars would refer to as personality.

Weigh management process is described following the ideas by Sapp (2002) who generalized the social cognitive models with the statement that beliefs (knowledge) cause affect (attitudes), which causes conation (intention), which causes behaviour. In this study weight management process is understood as a relation between reported weights, perception of weight situation, intention to manage weight, and weight management behaviours which brings the presence of certain weight.

Perceived weight situation/ perceived weight in this study represent the individual's attitude towards his/her weight situation (from perceiving oneself as very underweight to as very overweight (Cash, 2000)). Number of synonyms to the perceived weight situation can be found in the research field, e.g. subjective weight evaluation, self-classified weight, evaluation of weight-related situation, subjective weight situation.

Active intention to manage weight refers to one of the following categories (1) actively doing things to gain weight at the moment; (2) actively doing things to try to avoid gaining weight at the moment; (3) actively doing things to try to lose weight at the moment; or (4) not doing anything in particular for my weight at the moment (Jeffery et. al, 2013).

Weight management behaviours in this study refer to the level of healthy eating (consumption of healthy meal, according to the methodological guidelines (Astrauskienė et al., 2011), good eating habits (avoiding fast-food, overeating, eating late nights or by TV/computer), physical activity including strenuous, moderate and mild exercise during the last week (Godin & Shephard, 1985, 1997) and weight controlling behaviour which includes strict dieting, taking meal substitutes or weight control supplements, fasting etc.

Intuitive Eating can be described as an alternative to a diet approach to weight management which encourage people to eat what they desire and follow their internal signals of hunger and satiety (Tribole & Resch, 1995; Tylka, 2006, Avalos & Tylka, 2006, Augustus-Horvath, 2008, Tylka & van Diest, 2013). Four components of the Intuitive eating are as follow: unconditional permission to eat when hungry and what food is desired, eating for physical rather

than emotional reasons, reliance on internal hunger and satiety cues to determine when and how much to eat, and, finally choosing to eat food which is good for your body (Polivy & Herman, 1987, 1992; Tribole & Resch, 1995, Fedoroff, Polivy, & Herman, 1997; Carper, Fisher, & Birch, 2000; Tylka, 2006; Tylka & van Diest, 2013).

Concern with the appearance – is a cognitive component of the body image which indicates individual's certain beliefs or assumptions about the importance, meaning, and influences of appearance in his/her life (Cash, 2003).

Motivation towards appearance is a cognitive component of the body image which indicates the attendance in appearance management behaviours (Cash, 2003).

Perceived social support refer to the individual perception about the level of support one get from three sources: family, friends and significant others (Zimet, Dahlem, Zimet, Farley, 1988).

INTRODUCTION

There are 1.1 billion overweight people and almost 500 million (9.8%) are obese (World health Organization, WHO, 2014). This situation is described as *Global obesity (or Globesity)*. During the last 20 years the number of obese people in the world has doubled. The statistics from the Europe Union indicate approximately 21 to 37 percent of the women population are overweight, and 7 to 36 percent are obese. For men the numbers range from 35 to 54 percent of overweight and from 6 to 29 percent of obese ones. The highest numbers are reported in Greece and Cyprus with overweight and obesity numbers being reported for 73 percent of Greek women and 83 percent of men in Cyprus (WHO, 2014). The situations in other European countries are much different as reflected by 10 percent obesity rate in Netherlands and Great Britain has doubled during the past twenty years (WHO, 2014). This has led to increased spending by many countries on health related issues. It is estimated that six percent of Health security money has been spend for Obesity caused health problems and lose of money by organizations due these issues. Prior applied preventive efforts appear to have little impact on the epidemic issue (Abalikšta, 2011).

Lithuanians may assume that obesity is a problem for other countries and that they are immune to the weight induced health problems. However, according the reports (World Health Organization, 2013), Lithuania ranks fifth in the European Union related to numbers of obese people, listed as one of the top ten countries in relation to highest numbers of overweight people in Europe and a ranking of eighth when compared to all countries in the world. Overweight and obesity is a problem among adults as well as children and adolescents. This is reflected by the Department of Public Health in Vilnius report that numbers of obese children and adolescents has doubled from 2001 to 2008.

Overweight and obesity has become one of the major reasons causing health problems in the world. It is well known that overweight and obesity might cause diabetes, heart diseases, mood disorders, high blood pressure, strokes and many others physiological and also psychological diseases (Colditz, Willett, Rotnitzky, & Manson, 1995; Koh-Banerjee, Wang, Hu, Spiegelman, Willett, & Rimm, 2004; Guh, Zhang, Bansback, Amarsi, Birmingham, &Anis, 2009; Rocha, & Libby, 2009). Various studies found that the risk of Coronary Heart Disease increases in a range from 17 to 32 percent for overweight people and from 49 to 81 percent increases forthe individuals that are obese. The risk of type 2 Diabetes for overweight women increases four times and 93 times if a woman has a body mass index of 35 or higher as compared to those whose body mass index is 22 and lower. Finally, overweight increased the risk of ischemic stroke by 22 percent and obesity by 64 percent (Colditzet al., 1995, "Health effects", 2014). Moreover, there is strong evidence that obesity is related to the life expectancy. If, for example if your BMI is 45 or higher in your twenty and thirties the life expectancy decreases by thirteen years for men and eight years for women (Guh et al., 2009). The risk to die early from coronary artery disease was found to be 62 percent greater in women with BMIs of 30 or higher in compare with women who had normal BMI ("Health effects", 2014).

Moreover, overweight and obesity has financial consequences. First, increased weight may affect the individual's income due to the consequences related to physical and psychological health issue (Cawley, 2004; Lawreiro & Nayga, 2005). Second, from an organization perspective money may be lost due to lower efficacy of obese employees (Finkelstein et al., 2010). Third, governments challenged to provide increased levels of spending to combat the health issues related to overweight and obesity of their citizens (Sanchez, 2004; Wilkinson, 2006). For example about 30 million Litas of Government health insurance money was spend for gastric bypass surgery for weight loss in Lithuania in 2013 (Urbonaitė-Vainienė, 2013).

Scientific Relevance of the Present Study. To address this growing health issue researcher worldwide have increased their interest in this problem. The overweight and obesity issue has been researched related to the negative psychological and physical impact of the phenomena (Colditz, Willett, Rotnitzky, & Manson, 1995; Koh-Banerjee, Wang, Hu, Spiegelman, Willett, & Rimm, 2004; Guh, Zhang, Bansback, Amarsi, Birmingham, & Anis, 2009; Rocha, & Libby, 2009), attitudinal, intentional, behavioural and biopsychosocial correlates (Britzman & Main, 1990, Baum & Posluszny, 1999; Jeffery & French, 1999; Savaiano-Brady, 2001; Teixeira et al., 2005; Van Diest, 2007; Kakizaki et al., 2008; Thompson et al., 2009; Hilbert et al., 2009; Stubbs et al., 2011).

A number of studies based on social cognitive models (Armitage & Conner, 2001; Glanz, Rimer, Viswanath, 2008; Knabe, 2012) and interventions ranging from motivational interviewing, group-based weight-control treatment programs, advise by primary care providers, diet plans proposed in numerous books and suggestions by nutritional experts have been used to address the problem (Armstrong et al., 2011; Jelalian, Sato, & Hart, 2011; Rose, Poynter, Anderson, Noar, & Conigliaro, 2013). However, the researcher proposes that these studies lack a holistic approach and a comprehensive theoretical model that provide a systematic model for future interventions with individuals with weight issues. The present study will attempt to

expand on previous studies finding by including a comprehensive theoretical and holistic model based on the principles of Individual Psychology (IP), a social cognitive approach, and biopsychosocial variables extracted from other studies to explore the weight management process.

It was proposed in this study that a void of a comprehensive theory inhibits practitioners and researchers from using the findings to address motivational issues and other personality dynamics that are so critical to individuals to succeed in the behaviour change process. A lack of theory also inhibits other researchers in the future to build on the findings of studies completed previously. An example of practical implementation of the results related to weight control and IP could be the research by Stoltz and his colleagues (2009) who explored the personality attributes related to lifestyle dynamics of the individual could enhance the practitioners understanding of the most effective interventions to address weight issues of clients. For example one of the findings suggested that weight loss interventions that encourage social interactions in small group setting, attend lectures concerning weight issues and the increase their social support system by the client may enhance the individuals' ability to manage their weight more effectively.

More specifically, the present study was designed to investigate lifestyle dynamics referred to as personality in other theoretical models and various other biopsychosocial factors that might interfere in successful weight management. To enhance the understanding of individual lifestyle dynamics the researcher has integrated a social cognitive model described by Sapp (2002) who generalized the social cognitive models with the statement that beliefs (knowledge) cause affect (attitudes), which causes conation (intention), which causes behaviour. These three statements are complimentary to what Adler referred to of attributes that describe the development of lifestyle of perceptions, beliefs, private logic and purposefulness of behaviour. In this study these statements were expanded with claiming that individual may make three mistakes related to the weight managing process which are: (1) incorrect perception of weight (attitudes are not based on reality: when individual does not perceive his/her weight situation correctly); (2) incongruence between perceived weight situation and the active intention to manage it (intention is not based on attitudes: when individual perceives his/her situation as being overweight but has no active intention to manage weight); (3) when healthy behaviour do not correspond to the intention to manage weight (behaviour is not helpful for the intention: when individual reports being actively involved in weight management, yet does not eat healthy, has not good eating habits, is not physically active). These ideas are complimentary

to what Adler referred to of attributes that describe the development of lifestyle of perceptions, beliefs, private logic and purposefulness of behaviour.

To embellish the weight management process the researcher also explored the benefits of a more current model of explaining weight issues of Intuitive Eating. Tylka (2006) stated that eating behaviour research in the past has been mostly pathology-focused. Moreover, some authors analysed the addiction to healthy eating as an eating disorder and called this type of behaviour orthorexia nervosa (Bratman, 1997; Mathieu, 2005; Brytek-Matera, 2012; Varga, Dukay-Szabó, Túry, & van Furth, 2013, 2014; Koven & Abry, 2015). The need to investigate the long-term lifestyle change process from the perspective of the attitudes to the behaviour and psychological approach has been emphasized (Tylka, 2006). Therefore, beside the traditional weight management strategy that usual include healthy eating and physical activity, there are other approaches, such as Intuitive eating that is more related to the personality attributes than traditional weight management behaviours. Intuitive eating is compatible with the ideas of IP in relation to the holistic approach to the person.

Scientific Novelty of the Present Study. The present study is novel for several reasons. First of all it includes theory-based attributes of personality dynamics and ideas of Individual Psychology in the weight related research. Although some personality attributes or themes (lifestyle) based on Individual Psychology have been researched in relation to weight issue (Britzman & Main, 1990, Savaiano-Brady, 2001, Belangee et al., 2003, Stoltz et al, 2009), this will be the first time these ideas will be used in the complex analysis that include other biopsychosocial factors such as body mass index, age, parents' weight situation, being concerned with the appearance or motivated to take care of one's appearance, perceived social support, marital status and income. Moreover these attributes and themes will be employed to assess the impact or moderating effects of Adlerian themes in the weight management process.

Second, the present study will integrate the Social Cognition Models, Individual Psychology and the constructs of Intuitive eating to enhance understanding of the weight management process. Social Cognition Models have been criticized because of the very specific behaviour that can be measured and that some of the other variables such as personality have not been included (Ajzen & Fishbein, 1980). Ideas of Individual Psychology have not been investigated in the complex analysis in relation to weight issue and, finally, approach of Intuitive eating has contradictory findings in relation to weight outcomes and does not have scientific evidence in Lithuania. Exploring a number of theoretical assumptions and integrating several approaches in this research might provide researchers about possibility to integrate the

present situational variables and past childhood experience (which formed the Adlerian lifestyle) trying to explain the weight management process. The results might provide the public with new insights about the weight issue.

Third, though some scientists emphasize the need to explain the mechanisms linking personality and weight issues (Stubbs et al., 2011), most research in relation to personality and weight-related behaviour have focused on the eating disorders rather than adaptive eating strategies (Fairburn, Welch, Doll, Davies, & O'Connor, 1997; Fairburn, Cooper, Doll, & Welch, 1999; Fairburn, Doll, Welch, Hay, Davies, & O'Connor, 1998; Leon, Fulkerson, Perry, Keel, & Klump, 1999; Vohs, Bardone, Joiner, Abramson, & Heatherton, 1999; Tylka, Waldron, Graber, & Brooks-Gunn, 2002). This study will focus on the healthy eating behaviour and physical activity as well as the ideas of Intuitive Eating.

Finally, this study is novel in that it will include and explore the value of two new instruments related to weight issues in the Lithuanian population. It will be the first weight-related research that has used the Basic Adlerain Scales for Interpersonal Success-Adult Form normed on a Lithuanian sample to assess lifestyle. The second instrument that will be employed for the first time is the Intuitive Eating instrument (IES-2) that has be used and researched in other countries but not in Lithuania (Gast & Hawks, 2000; Caldwell, Baime, & Wolever, 2012; Outland, Madanat, & Rust, 2013; Tylka & van Diest, 2013). The results of this study will support scholars with the insights about the constructs of Adlerian lifestyle and Intuitive eating in Lithuanian sample.

Practical Relevance of the Present Study. The need to explain the weight management process from a psychological perspective is critical from a practical perspective. Regardless all the efforts related to medical interventions, diets, or treatment programs have as yet not yielded adequate answers to the obesity and overweight issues. Furthermore, inappropriate tries to solve the overweight issue such as severe dieting may lead to negative physiological and psychological outcomes such as eating disorders or depression (Stice & Agras, 1998; Stice, 2002; Vander Wal, Gibbons, & Pilar Grazioso, 2008; Rawana, 2013). There is some common behaviour for successful weight loss maintenance including low fat diet, self-monitoring of weight and food intake and physical activity (Wing & Hill, 2001), however, some authors state that paying too much attention to healthy eating might be addictive and lead to negative outcomes too (Bratman, 1997; Mathieu, 2005; Brytek-Matera, 2012; Varga, Dukay-Szabó, Túry, & van Furth, 2013, 2014; Koven & Abry, 2015).

As of this date there is translated book to Lithuanian language of the main ideas and suggestions for one who wants to learn and employ the ideas of Intuitive eating as well as organized courses, seminars or consultations. Although there are number of studies that revealed the ideas of Intuitive Eating (Gast & Hawks, 2000; Caldwell, Baime, & Wolever, 2012; Outland, Madanat, & Rust, 2013; Tylka & van Diest, 2013) as effective, there are some contradicting findings too (Van Dyke & Drinkwater, 2013). Furthermore, there is no scientific evidence that support the benefit of application of these ideas in Lithuanian sample. There is a need for such an investigation due to behavioural and personality differences between Americans and Lithuanians (Gaubė, Kern, & Stoltz, 2015). This study may provide additional insights about the role of Intuitive eating in weight management process. These findings may help the lay person and professional who work with this person to choose a more effective way to deal with the weight issue and avoid the dieting behaviour which seems to be related to negative physiological and psychological outcomes (Stice & Agras, 1998, Stice, 2002).

Second, the present study will include Adlerian Lifestyle personality attributes or themes, based on the theory of Individual Psychology, that lead to the practical application of the results (e.g. research by Stoltz et al., 2009). The needs to develop more individual approaches that are sensitive to individual needs and differences have been recognized (Stubbs et al., 2011). Defining and explaining the role of certain theory based personality attributes will support practitioners with new ideas and guidelines for lectures, an individual or group consultations for people dealing with weigh issues.

Third, the holistic or comprehensive analysis that addresses a variety of biopsychosocial variables, personality variables and health based Social Cognitive models may provide a knowledge base for professional to implement more effective interventions with sample under investigation. Moreover this analysis might support individuals who struggle with weight issue with some new insights about their mistakes and possible ways to increase the effectiveness in relation to weight management.

Fourth, the study was designed to further confirm the reliability and validity of the Lithuanian version of the Basic Adlerian Scales for Interpersonal Success-Adult Form (BASIS-A^{LT}) which was normed for this study by the researcher conducting the study. This will support practitioners and researchers with several valid instruments for practical application and future studies.

Objectives of the Study. **The objective** of the present research is the complex analysis of Adlerian Lifestyle themes as they relate to the weight management process based on Social

Cognitive approach and Intuitive Eating. Of equal importance was to provide professionals with a way of integrating lifestyle dynamics within the context of treatment related to weight issues of women.

The empirically based **purpose** of the present study was to identify the interrelatedness of Adlerian Lifestyle themes as potential risk and deterring factors in the context of other biopsychosocial variables in the weight management process that would lead to clearer understanding of the mechanisms linking personality and weight issue in a Lithuanian women sample.

In line with the purpose, the following research questions will be addressed in this study:

(1) What Adlerian Lifestyle themes (in the context of other biopsychosocial factors) are the potential risks and deterrents for the incorrect perception of weight?

(2) What Adlerian Lifestyle themes (in the context of other biopsychosocial factors) are the potential risks and deterrents for the incongruence of the perceived weight situation and the intention to manage weight?

(3) What Adlerian Lifestyle themes (in the context of other biopsychosocial factors) are the potential risks and deterrents for the not corresponding with healthy behaviour and corresponding weight controlling behaviour to the intention to manage weight?

(4) What is the interrelatedness of Adlerian Lifestyle themes, behavioural variables, and Intuitive Eating?

(5) What behavioural and biopsychosocial variables are the most sufficient correlates for the BMI?

Approbation of the research

Journal Articles:

1. Gaubė, J. (2015). The new approach to the weight management: Interrelatedness of Intuitive Eating, Adlerian lifestyle and body mass index among Lithuanian women. // Social transformations in contemporary society : proceedings of an international scientific conference for young researchers [Elektroninis išteklius] / Mykolas Romeris University. Doctoral candidates' assosiation. Vilnius : Mykolo Romerio universitetas.

2. Gaubė, J. Kern, R. M., Stoltz, K. (2015). Psychometric properties of BASIS-A: Lithuanian version. *Journal of Individual psychology*, *71*(3).

3. Gaubė, J., Kern, R. M. (2015). Importance of Adlerian Lifestyle personality attributes for BMI among woman. *European Scientific Journal*, *11*(2), 91-109.

4. Liesienė [Gaubė], J., Endriulaitienė, A., Bukšnytė, L., Gustainienė, L., & Kern, R. M. (2010). Predicting Work Attitudes and Turnover Intentions among Officers: The Importance of Adlerian Personality Attributes // Is, Guc: *The Journal of Industrial Relations and Human Resources* [Electronic source]. Izmit, Turkey: Kocaeli Universitesi, *12*(2), 43-58.

Presentations in International Scientific Conferences:

1. Gaubė, J. (2015, June). The new approach to the weight management: Interrelatedness of Intuitive Eating, Adlerian lifestyle and Body Mass index among Lithuanian women. International Scientific Conference for Young Researchers "Social Transformations in contemporary Society 2015", Vilnius, Lithuania.

2. Liesienė [Gaubė], J. (2010, April). Psychometric properties of BASIS-A: Lithuanian Version. International Young Scientists Conference, Šiauliai, Lithuania.

3. Liesienė [Gaubė], J., Kern, R. M. (2010, April). Adlerian lifestyle: application of BASIS-A personality questionnaire in organizations, Scientific-practical conference: problems of business psychology, Vilnius, Lithuania.

4. Liesienė [Gaubė] (2009, May). Predicting work attitudes and turnover intentions among officers: The importance of Adlerian personality attributes. 14th Congress of Work and Organizational Psychology, Santiago de Compostela, Spain.

Presentations in National Scientific Conferences:

1. Gaubė, J. (2014, December). Psichosocialiniai svorio kontrolės ypatumai: kaip sėkmingai keisti savo įpročius? (Psychosocial peculiarities of weight control: how to succeed in changing habits?) 4th Scientific-practical conference for teachers: Healthy teacher - successful teaching, Radviliškis, Lithuania.

2. Gaubė, J., Kern, R. M. (2014, November). Relation between social support, income and weight control among employed women: the role of socially responsible organization.5th Conference of Organizational Psychology: Socially responsible organization from psychological perspective, Vilnius, Lithuania.

Liesienė [Gaubė], J., Kern, R. M. (2010, March). Assessment of the Lifestyle in organizations, consulting, and research (Gyvenimo stiliaus įvertinimas organizacijose, konsultavime, tyrimuose). Annual conference of the Society of Individual Psychology, Vilnius.
Liesienė [Gaubė], J. (2009, May). Gyvenimo stiliaus pagal Adlerį prognostinė vertė darbinėms nuostatoms.(Predictive value of Adlerian Lifestyle for work attitudes).Scientific-practical conference "Psychologist in organization: today and tomorrow", Kaunas, Lithuania.

1. PROBLEMS OF RESEARCH RELATED TO WEIGHT MANAGEMENT VARIABLES

1.1. Explanation of weight management in various theories

There are number of theories that attempt to explain a person's behaviour. Many of the studies focus on behavioural change. As one might expect, a variety of factors including demographic, social, emotional, personality and cognitive variables must be considered related to health behaviour (Rosenstock, 1974; Taylor, 1991; Adler & Matthews, 1994; Baum & Posluszny, 1999; Teixeira et al., 2005; Van Diest, 2007; Kakizaki et al., 2008; Thompson et al., 2008; Terracciano et al., 2009). Importance of social factors, such as parental models, peer influences or cultural values has been supported (McNeil et al., 1998; Wardle & Steptoe, 1991). Emotional factors were found to be related to overeating among obese people (Greeno & Wing, 1994). Personality theory suggests that there is considerable evidence linking personality traits or combination of traits to behaviour (Furnham & Heaven, 1999). Finally, there are important cognitive factors, such as knowledge about the health issues that might cause certain behaviour, health risk and possibility to this risk performing some behaviour, perceived social pressure for certain behaviour, and perceived control over behavioural performance.

1.1.1. Weigh management process in relation to Social Cognition approach

One popular model used to describe behaviour is the Social cognition approach that focuses on individual cognitions and thoughts which are between observable reality and responses to various situations (Fiske & Taylor, 1991). According to this approach behaviour is best understood as a function of the individual's perception of reality. If to use the Individual Psychology terms one would propose that these perceptions are reflective of the individual's lifestyle, therefore Adlerian lifestyle is considered as related to motivation or behaviour. As described by Gollwitzer (1993), there are two types of behaviour that include motivational and volitional phases. The motivational phase can be described as a phase of consideration of expectations and ends with decision concerning the goal to be pursued. The second, volitional is a phase of planning and action to achieve the goal (Conner & Norman, 2005). Adler would describe these two phases as purposefulness of behaviour related to lifestyle dynamics.

1.1.1.1. Social Cognition models in relation to health behaviour

To follow are three of the most popular health-related behaviours social cognition models to explain the weight management process.

Theory of Planned behaviour (TPB) is perhaps the most popular theory used to explain social and health behaviour (Rivis & Sheeran, 2003). TPB extended the theory of reasoned action (TRA; Ajzen & Fishbein, 1980) (Figure 1). Ajzen (1991) adjusted TRA and included the variable of self-efficacy that was based on the social cognitive theory used to explain individual behaviour (Bandura, 1986).



Figure 1. Variables of the Theory of Planned Behaviour (TPB) Source: Ajzen, I. (2006). TpB Diagram. Retrieved: Jul. 27, 2014 from the World Wide Web:

http://people.umass.edu/aizen/tpb.diag.html

According to the TPB model, behaviour is determined by behavioural intentions. The TPB consist of three components: beliefs about the consequences of the behaviour (behavioural beliefs which produce a favourable or unfavourable *attitude toward the behaviour*), beliefs about the expectations of others (normative beliefs that result in perceived social pressure or *subjective norm*), and beliefs about the factors that may facilitate or impede performance of the behaviour (beliefs that lead to *perceived behavioural control*). The more favourable the attitude and subjective norm and perceived control, the stronger the person's intentions will be to perform the behaviour (Ajzen, 2006; Rivis & Sheeran, 2003, see Figure 1). One of the major limitations of the application of the Theory of Planned behaviour is the narrow focus of the behaviours, which makes it difficult to generalize the findings in future studies. Moreover, predictive value is questionable (Armitage & Conner, 2001). In addition the model does not

address personality characteristics, demographic variables, social status and other variables (Ajzen & Fishbein, 1980). There is however research that supports the use of the model (Armitage & Conner, 2001).

The Health Belief Model (HBM) was developed in the 1950s by social psychologists Irwin M. Rosenstock, Godfrey M. Hochbaum, S. Stephen Kegeles, and Howard Leventhal. According to this model, health behaviour is viewed as an expression of health beliefs.



Figure 2. Variables of the Health Belief Model (HBM) (Strecher & Rosenstock, 1997)

Components of the model include the person's own perception of susceptibility to a disease or condition, the perceived likelihood of contracting that disease or condition, the perceived severity of the consequences of contracting the condition or the disease, the perceived benefits of care and barriers to preventive behaviour. Furthermore the variable named *Cues to Action* also affects Action and might include such internal or external stimuli as media or social pressures of loved ones. Cues to action can be anything that triggers a decision to change behaviour (Rosenstock, 1974; Becker, 1974, Strecher & Rosenstock, 1997, see Figure 2). The authors expanded the model by adding the variable of self-efficacy based on their research findings on unhealthy habits such as smoking and drinking behaviour (Rosenstock, Strecher, & Becker, 1988).

Contrary to the TPB, HBM includes individual characteristics (demographic, psychosocial, and structural variables) as modifying variables that can affect behaviour indirectly by affecting perceived seriousness, susceptibility, benefits, and barriers. Examples of demographic variables include age, sex, race, ethnicity, and education. Psychosocial variables

included personality, social class, and peer and reference group pressure. The knowledge about a given disease or prior contact with the disease could stand for Structural variables (Rosenstock, 1974). However, the health belief model has been criticized for not considering the impact of emotions on health-related behaviour. For example, some researchers suggest that fear may be a key factor in predicting health-related behaviour (Glanz, Rimer, Viswanath, 2008).

Social Cognitive Theory (SCT) was created in 1986 by Albert Bandura. Bandura described three types of factors that interact and determine behaviour. These factors are: (1) personal variable or self-efficacy toward the behaviour; (2) behavioural variable or the result of the behaviour and (3) environmental variables that support or trigger the behaviour (Figure 3). Research supports the assumption of other theories related to the importance of the individual's self-efficacy as a major component in the perception of goals, tasks, and challenges (Bandura, 1993, 2001). Therefore individuals with low self-efficacy are more likely to avoid challenging tasks.



Figure 3. Variables of the Social Cognitive Theory Retrieved: Jul. 27, 2014 from the World Wide Web: http://www.emory.edu/EDUCATION/mfp/eff.html. Pajares (2002). Overview of social cognitive theory and of self-efficacy.

Conner and Norman (2005) described and compared social cognition models including the Health Belief Model, Protection Motivation Theory, Social Cognitive Theory, Theory of Planned Behaviour, Health Locus of Control, and Stage models of Health Behaviour. They concluded that all of the cognitive models have very similar predictive value and that the selfefficacy construct might be described as a key social cognition variable in health behaviour. The sufficient support for the self-efficacy might be considered as a support for the importance of personality attributes in health-related behaviour, including weight management process. Sapp (2002) proposed that social cognitive theories emphasize the relation between attitude and behaviour and rely upon a hierarchy-of-effects principle of beliefs (knowledge), cause affect (attitudes), which causes conation (intention), which causes behaviour. Although some researchers (e.g. Knabe, 2012) criticized social cognitive models because of their rational base and ignorance of some irrational decisions, Ajzen (2011) claimed that these criticisms were an inappropriate interpretation of the theory. He stated that there is no assumption in the TPB, that the attitudes are rational and exactly reflects the real situation. Therefore, when we research the weight management question, it is important to focus on the perception of weight as one of the factors that may influence further weight management. The incorrect perception of weight situation as well as other possible mistakes related to weight issue will be presented in the next chapter.

1.1.1.2. Weight management process

In the present study the weight management process will follow the model described by Sapp (2002). Three of the mistakes related to weight issue presented by Sapp include: (1) incorrect perception of weight situation, (2) incongruence between perceived weight situation and the active intention to manage weight and (3) not corresponding with healthy behaviour to the active intention to manage weight. In this study the research explored the connection of these mistakes, BMI, perceived weight situation, present active intention to control weight and behavioural variables (healthy eating, good eating habits, physical activity and weight controlling behaviour). This is visually illustrated in figure 4. Circle 1 represents the first mistake of incorrect perception of weight situation. Circle 2 low relationships represents second mistake of incongruence between perceived weight situation and the active intention to manage weight. Finally, third (circle 3) relation indicates third possible mistake when not corresponding with healthy behaviour to the active intention to manage weight.

In review, healthy weight management according to the Figure 4 would be: (1) Fit/congruence between BMI category and perceived weight situation; (2) active intention to manage weight based on the perceived weight situation, and (3) supported association between intention to manage weight and healthy behaviour. Each of these variables will be described in the frame work of social cognitive models.



Figure 4. Weigh management process based on Social Cognition Approach

Body Mass Index. If we set a goal for change, it is important to evaluate the present situation as a background variable for behavioural prediction. However, there is no measure of objective or subjective evaluation of the current situation in the TPB model. Contrarily, HBM includes the Modifying variables and Cues to Action as the information about the person's situation in relation to the disease or behaviour (Rosenstock, 1974; Health Belief Model, 2008). Furthermore, Bandura in SCT includes the variable named as Environmental, which is one of the three main determinants of the behaviour. Ajzen (2002) recommends including descriptive norms which might contribute to the subjective norms. Contrary to the subjective norms which are based on the attitudes (about the behaviour) of key people in one's life, descriptive norms come from the society and describe what most people do (Ajzen, 2002). If to focus not on the specific behaviour, but the goal, the researcher proposes that healthy BMI norms could be named as a descriptive norm. It is natural, that there may be a gap between a present situation and preferred result that motivate the individual to take action. Furthermore, BMI reflect the knowledge of the situation presented by Sapp (2002) as the first part of the generalized behaviour schema. Therefore the researcher included BMI in the model as an important variable that described the present situation in the weight management process. Sapp (2002) stated that knowledge impacts attitudes. In this study attitudes will be replaced with the perception of the present situation or perceived self-weight situation.

Perceived weight situation. There are three types of possible predictors of behavioural intention in TPB and two of them might be related to the perceived situation. Keer, Conner, Putte, & Neijens (2014) supported the significant relation between the extent to which intention is based on affect and that perceived behavioural control was stronger than subjective norms (Armitage & Conner, 2001). The implication is that emotional and personal factors such as attitude and perceived behaviour control determine behaviour. Finally, Tailor with colleagues (2007) suggested that behavioural and normative beliefs are determined by perceptions of situation. The research supports former statement that the individual's perception of the present weight situation might contribute to the formation of intention to change or maintain the present weight.

Self-perception of weight appropriateness or perceived weight situation is an important component of eating and weight-loss behaviours (Chang & Christakis, 2003). Yet, there were studies that did not find significant relation between perceived weight and healthy eating or physical activity (Adame & Frank, 1990). Some authors, however, consider that perception of self-weight seems to be a more important variable than actual weight in relation to outcome variables such as well being, life satisfaction, and weight management (Miller & Downey, 1999; Ojala et al., 2007; Chuang & Lee, 2010).

The significant relation between one's actual BMI assessment and perceived weight has been supported (Ali, Minor & Amialchuk, 2013), which seems to support the idea that incorrect perception of weight situation is not frequent. However, the mismatch between perceived weight (subjective evaluation of the weight appropriateness) and weight classified by medical norms was found in several prior studies (Chang & Christakis, 2001; Rahman & Berenson, 2010; Boo, 2014; Bodde et al., 2014; Agrawal et al., 2014).

Incorrect perception of weight situation seems to be one of the possible reasons why overweight or obese people do not take actions to solve the weight issue and current preventive strategies do not work (Miller et al., 2008; Duncan et al., 2011; Chen, Jahns, Gittelsohn, & Wang, 2012; Bodde et al., 2014; Yang, Turk, Allison, James, & Chasens, 2014; Boo, 2014; Agrawal et al., 2014). It may be that overweight or obese individuals do not perceive their situation as problematic as the health and medical community. After all, one of the background rules when analysing behaviour or behavioural change is the requirement of the individual to be dissatisfied with the present situation. Thus, if the person is satisfied, there is low probability that the individual will have an intention to change or take any related actions. If, however, an individual over estimates one's weight as overweight but individual's weight is in the normal BMI range, this may be indicative of some form of eating disorder (Ross & Wade, 2004;

Gingras, Fitzpatrick, & McCargar, 2004). Such an over-classification of weight was found as frequent in the sample of Lithuanian girls (Buzaitytė-Kašalynienė, Rinkevičienė, 2009).

A number of other studies have also been conducted where the individual perceives his/her weight as normal but the BMI classification was in medical terms classified as overweight or obese (Miller et al., 2008; Duncan et al., 2011; Chen, Jahns, Gittelsohn, & Wang, 2012; Bodde et al., 2014; Yang, Turk, Allison, James, & Chasens, 2014; Boo, 2014). Perceived weight situation may contribute to the further intention to manage weight. For example, in a study by Parham-Payne (2013) it was revealed that the majority of obese people had an intention to lose weight, while more than half of those people with BMI classified as overweight, had an intention to keep their current weight. Some studies, however, did not reveal the relation between accuracy of weight perception and positive or negative weight outcomes (Canpolat, Orsel, Akdemir, & Ozbay, 2005; Van Minnen, Davis, Bruce, & Davis, 2011).

Various studies have identified variables that were related to the misclassification or incorrect perception of self-weight. These variables included socioeconomic status (Chang & Christakis, 2003; Alwan et al., 2010; Boo, 2014), age (Chang & Christakis, 2003; Boo, 2014), marital status (Chang & Christakis, 2003; Boo, 2014; Mogre, Abedandi, & Salifu, 2014), gender (Chang & Christakis, 2003; Knight, Illingworth, & Ricciardelli, 2009; Alwan et al., 2010; Squiers et al., 2014), education (Chang & Christakis, 2003; Squiers et al., 2014), race (Chang & Christakis, 2003; Squiers et al., 2014), BMI (Maximova et al., 2008; Rahman & Berenson, 2010; Gruszka et al., 2011; Mogre, Abedandi, & Salifu, 2014) and personality (Sutin & Terracciano, 2014). The research in relation to misperception of weight and BMI has yielded contradictory findings. Some studies found a significant relationship between misperception of weight and BMI (Miller et al., 2008; Maximova et al., 2008; Gruszka et al., 2011; Mogre, Abedandi, & Salifu, 2014), however, other studies revealed that misperception of weight are common for both normal weight and overweight individuals (Rahman & Berenson, 2010).

In reference to weight management, the researcher in this study proposes that a person who fears gaining weight will be more likely to take actions in relation to his/her weight management. Perceived weight situation should be considered as an evaluative or perception variable which describes how person see the situation from his/her perspective and may be a mediating variable between BMI and intentions to manage weight.

Active intention to manage weight. Behavioural Intention has been possibly the most researched and supported variable that mediates the relations between predictors and behaviour in the TPB and Theory of Reasoned Action (Ajzen & Fishbein, 1977; Ajzen, 1985, 1991; Ajzen

& Madden, 1986) as well as in a number of other theories (Eagly & Chaiken, 1993; Austin & Vancouver, 1996; Abraham, Sheeran & Johnston, 1998). However, a meta-analytic study by Sheeran (2002) indicated that only 28 percent of the variance of the goal achievement was explained by the intention. Such a result supports the idea, that there are number of other variables that account for intention and behaviour (Broonen, 2010). Some of these variables include the affective rather than cognition based motives for certain behavioural intentions (Keer, Conner, Putte, & Neijens, 2014), action and coping, planning (Caudroit, Boiché, &Stephan, 2014), or personality characteristics (Chatzisarantis & Hagger, 2008). However, other social cognitive models presented in this study HBM and SCT do not include behavioural intention as a variable in the model (Gerend & Shepherd, 2012).

Many researchers have suggested that a percentage of explained variance of intention and behaviour was insufficient and they have proposed additional variables to improve the predictive value of the TPB model (Beck & Ajzen, 1991; Parker, Manstead, & Stradling, 1995; Terry & O'Leary, 1995; Parker et al., 1995; Richard, van der Pligt, & de Vries, 1995; Gibbons et al. 1998; Armitage & Conner, 1999; Armitage & Conner, 2001; Sideridis & Kaissidis-Rodafinos, 2001; Perugini & Bagozzi, 2001; Presseau, Sniehotta, Francis, & Gebhardt, 2010). Some of the authors proposed that including the goal or desire focused variable into the model of TPB might help to explain one's behaviour (Gibbons et al. 1998; Sideridis & Kaissidis-Rodafinos, 2001; Perugini & Bagozzi, 2001; Presseau, Sniehotta, Francis, & Gebhardt, 2010). Moreover, Sideridis and Kaissidis-Rodafinos (2001) as well as Presseau with his colleagues (2010) supported the importance of the goal variable. However, in their studies goal was indicated at the behavioural level (e.g. goal 'to study hard' instead of goal 'to get max evaluation in the exams' or goal 'participate in regular physical activity' instead of 'lose some weight'). Thought, Perugini and Bagozzi (2001) created a model of Goal-directed behaviour and in their study the purpose of the behaviour was included together with the desire (e.g. participants were asked to evaluate the statement 'my desire for doing physical exercise in the next four weeks in order to decrease my body weight [stay at the same body weight] can be described as' in the scale of six). The mediating effect of desire between predictive variables and intention was supported. Setting a goal or desire for what the individual wants to achieve appears to contribute to change in behaviour. Other ideas by researchers on intention are as follows.

Ajzen and Fishbein (1980) suggested that the predictive variables, intention and behaviour should be measured at the same level in the TPB based model. Questionnaire based on the HBM, which should also include only behavioural level variable. This means that intention only

for specific behaviour should be included in the traditional model based on TPB (e.g. 'I intend to eat three portions of vegetables during the day in the next month'). Although intention and behaviour should be measured at two different times if researchers want to test the original model of TPB, some authors describe intention as a first stage of action (Proschaska & Velicer, 1997). Therefore, after evaluating in previous chapter presented information about the gap between the behavioural intention and actual behaviour, importance of goals, the absence of behavioural intention in HBM and SCT as well as taking in account the goal to be able to generalize the findings of present study for the future research, no intention for the specific behaviour was included in the present study. Instead the current active intention was measured by the statement 'currently I am actively involved in losing weight (or keep current, or gain)' in the model.

Weight management behaviour. As presented in Figure 1 the TPB behaviour was considered as the outcome of behavioural intention and usually was applied to describe a specific behaviour. The same specificity is required in the HBM and SCT models. However, the present study included current active involvement with the intention to lose/keep/gain weight with the emphasis on the weight-related goal (not behavioural intention for specific behaviour) in the model. In addition specific types of behaviour have been included, following the suggestions presented by health specialists (Astrauskienė et al., 2011; WHO, 2013) and research on weight management (Wing & Hill, 2001; Stubbs et al., 2011). The author extrapolates from this proposed model that individuals who have weight-management intentions to keep current or lose weight might choose healthy food and eating habits and participate in physical activity or be involved in more severe weight controlling behaviours. Each of the mentioned weight-related behaviour will be discussed in the next chapter.

1.1.1.2.1. Healthy and drastic ways of weight management

The majority of studies related to weight management and practitioners working with overweight or obese people focus on eating habits and physical activity. These behaviours are extracted for the number of health-related behaviours that mainly include healthy eating, physical activity, smoking, and heavy-drinking. These behaviours effect the relation between nature social environment and health or well-being (Watt et al., 2014).

Many researchers have supported the significance of choosing a healthy diet (diet quality or for example snacking with vegetables or fruits and avoiding desserts or sweets), good eating habits such as eating breakfast, avoiding late night snacks, and exercising as a way of maintaining a healthy BMI (Wing & Hill, 2001; Riou, et al., 2011; Sundararajan, Campbell, Choi, & Sarma, 2014; Vitale, Jirillo, & Magrone, 2014; Guth, 2014; O'Neil, Nicklas & Fulgoni, 2014; Aljuraiban et al., 2015; Barnes, French, Harnack, Mitchell, & Wolfson, 2015).

Although results of physical activity are clear, there are contradictory findings related to healthy eating behaviour and effective weight management. Healthy eating norms were supported as related to certain food consumption (Wang & Worsley, 2014). Yet, healthy eating attitude was related to healthy diet, but was not related to BMI in a sample of more than 1500 students (Fyler, Schumacher, Banning, & Gam, 2014). Another study found a positive relation between healthy eating, self-efficacy and BMI (Clum, Rice, Broussard, Johnson, Webber, 2014). Although physical activity was supported as a significant correlate for healthy BMI among both genders, the importance of the quality of the diet for BMI seemed to be important for men, but not for women (Pate, Taverno Ross, Liese, & Dowda, 2015).

Moreover the possible negative outcomes or addiction to healthy eating have been explored recently. Some scholars suggested that healthy eating attitude can develop in to a pathological condition referred to in the literature as Orthorexia nervosa. Bratman (1997) describes this condition of an eating disorder in which the person is excessively preoccupied with healthy food or identifies affixation on healthy food or health food dependence (Varga, Dukay-Szabó, Túry, & van Furth, 2013, 2014). According to some scholars, obsession about healthy food, leads not only to dietary restrictions but also to a number of negative psychological and social outcomes (Mathieu, 2005; Brytek-Matera, 2012). Although clinicians are interested in this type of behaviour, orthorexia nervosa has received very little empirical attention and is not formally recognized as a psychiatric disorder (Koven & Abry, 2015).

On the other hand, more drastic ways to control weight such as strict diets or fasting have been found as having negative physical and psychological outcomes (Carrier, Steinhardt, & Bowman, 1994; Tribole & Resch, 1995; Steinhardt, Bezner, & Adams, 1999; MacDougall, 2010). Despite these negative outcomes and limited effectiveness from a long-term perspective (Mann et al., 2007; Sung, Lee, Song, 2009), strict dieting and using supplements or fasting remain popular strategies related to weight management (Hooper, 2014; McCarthy, 2014).

Therefore it is important to identify other factors that might increase the possibility of healthy ways to manage weight instead of choosing drastic weight controlling behaviours.

1.1.1.2.2. Role of the personality in weight-related behaviour

A numbers of researchers have investigated the correlates (including personality) of certain type of behaviour (McNeil et al., 1998; Baum & Posluszny, 1999; Furnham & Heaven, 1999; Rivis & Sheeran, 2003; Ajzen, 2006). Some studies have supported the relation between personality characteristics and healthy eating or physical activity (Elfhag & Morey, 2008; Provencher, Bégin, Gagnon-Girouard, Tremblay, Boivin & Lemieux, 2008; Chatzisarantis & Hagger, 2008). However, there are no clear explanations for these relationships or the mechanisms linking personality and certain types and weight related behaviours. For example higher extroversion might be related to less intention to manage weight, but on the other hand higher extroversion might increase the possibility that individual who has an intention to lose weight will choose more healthy food and will be more physical active and less involved in unhealthy weight control behaviour. One of the questions in this study was to find which Adlerian lifestyle themes/personality attributes in the context of other biopsychsocial variables are related to choosing certain type of behaviour to manage weight (relation between "actively doing" and "what doing"). Moreover the predictive value of measured behavioural variables for BMI will be explored.

Personality characteristics, demographic variables and other factors such as social status are excluded from the TPB and considered as important external variables (Ajzen & Fishbein, 1980). According to Ajzen (1991), a person requires resources and opportunity to perform a specific behaviour. There is several different interpretations related inclusion of external variables in the model. On the one hand Ajzen (1991) suggested that external variables are welcome if they increase the percentage of explained variance of behaviour. On the other hand he stated that external variables decrease the reliability of the model. Overlooking the research based on the Theory of Planned behaviour, the most important variable that predicted behaviour was found to be perceived behavioural control (Ajzen, 1991; Rivis, & Sheeran, 2003), however some authors questioned the effectiveness of this measure in all the situations (Kraft, Rise, Sutton, & Roysamb, 2005). This means that if person believes that he or she will be able to control planned behaviour under any circumstances (especially under risky ones), he or she will try to behave in the planned way. Perceived behavioural control might be seen from several perspectives - one of them would be as a situational factor that might change according to the certain behaviour and another would be as a more stable personality attribute, called selfefficacy. Self-efficacy after all was named as a key variable in HBM and SCT. If self-efficacy is a valuable construct to consider in relation to the connection of individual difference one might

ask the question of what additional personality attributes may impact the weight management process?

1.1.2. Weight management from an Individual Psychology perspective

Individual Psychology which views the individual from a holistic perspective might be of help to explain motivational dynamics of individuals who may or may not struggle with weight issues. Individual Psychology stresses the purposefulness or motivational dynamics of behaviour, the importance of social context, and individual childhood experiences. This holistic perspective is imbedded in the personality construct that Adler referred to as lifestyle, life plan or style of life. Adler (1927) and Ansbacher and Ansbacher (1964) describe Lifestyle as a goal directed that integrates social goals of the perceived environment and to a lesser degree the emphasis on an individual's biological and genetic attributes. In this study Lifestyle will be used as a synonym for what other scholars would refer to as personality. The definition that will be used is the one by Jonyniene and Kern (2012). They propose that lifestyle is an organized set of beliefs that an individual creates before the age of seven within the confines of the family that the individual consistently employs throughout life to solve problems related to social relationships, career, intimacy and we believe issues related to weight.

From the perspective of Individual Psychology one of the possible reasons why a person becomes overweight might be the childhood experience in the one's family of origin (Belangee, 2007). For example, a family atmosphere where being thin is valued might increase the possibility of eating disorders in the child's future. On the other hand unhealthy behavioural attitudes in the family might lead to unhealthy behaviour when the child grows up. We could also discuss the parent's response to the infant's needs in more specific way. If, for example, in early infancy, the parent unintentionally provided food to an infant when the need was not hunger but was and unfulfilled emotional/psychological need, it may not only "teach" the child a way to take care of his/her emotional or physiological needs, but also may increase the impulse to overcome the experienced frustration in a non-functional way in the future. These early experiences may result in the adult person who tries to take care of oneself independently and attends to his/her emotional needs such as anxiety, stress, or frustration by consuming food. So the sense of control or being in charge of one's emotional needs may develop into a personality dynamic/lifestyle that is used to cope with a number of life's challenges of which weight becomes one of them. From an Individual Psychology perspective one must understand the purpose of behaviour, perceptions, and family dynamics to most effectively understand the why of weight issues.

1.1.2.1. BASIS-A as a reliable personality instrument

With the exception of the Meyers Briggs Type Indicator Inventory, which is based on the theory proposed by Carl Jung, there are few assessment tools that are anchored in a comprehensive personality theory. The advantage of using Individual Psychology as a comprehensive theory is that extensive research has been devoted to the development of an instrument that was specifically developed to measure a construct that encompasses a majority of the theoretical tenets of personality, as proposed by Alfred Adler. The construct is lifestyle and the instrument is the Basic Adlerian Scales for Interpersonal Success-Adult (BASIS-A).

The instrument was developed in United States after 20 years of research, and evolved from several other lifestyle instruments created by the authors. As presented in the BASIS-A Inventory Interpretative Manual (Kern, Wheeler, & Curlette, 1993), the BASIS-A Inventory is a unique psychological instrument requiring individuals to recall childhood experiences rather than respond to questions concerning present functioning. All items on the BASIS-A Inventory begin with the phrase, "When I was a child, I...." The items have two essential characteristics in common: (a) they form underlying dimensions, and (b) these underlying dimensions about childhood perceptions predict current functioning. The instrument consists of five major scales: Belonging/Social Interest (BSI), Going Along (GA), Taking Charge (TC), Wanting Recognition (WR), and Being Cautious (BC). BSI concerns the individual's comfort with entering and being a part of a group. GA represents a person's need to understand and follow social norms. TC characterizes a person's need to control social activities and assume leadership roles in the environment. WR denotes an individual's need for acknowledgement of accomplishments. BC typifies a person's fear and anxiety in social situations. Further discussion of the scales can be found in Eckstein & Kern (2009).

Additionally, there are five supporting scales: Harshness (H), Entitlement (E), Liked by All (L), Striving for Perfections (P), and Softness (S). The Harshness scale measures whether a person tends to have a negative self-view. The Entitlement scale assesses the degree to which a person prefers being treated as special in social settings. The Liked by All scale measures the importance of approval from others and the Striving for Perfection scale measures a person's tendency to strive for achievement and set high standards. The Softness scale, measures the potential for responding in a socially desirable way on the instrument. Additionally, the Softness scale can be interpreted to be a measure of optimism a person has about self and the world.

The BASIS-A provides insight about an individual's general problem solving approaches to life based on the perceptions resulting from one's early childhood experiences (Frey & Snow, 2005). The instrument was created via years of research whereby the authors of the instrument isolated the most important constructs of Individual Psychology and then created items to directly measure the constructs inherent in the theory (Curlette, Wheeler & Kern, 1993).

Studies related to the field of health psychology have supported the use of the BASIS-A that have included topics related to stress coping (Kern, Gfroerer, Summers, Curlette & Matheny, 1996; Santamaria, 2002; Herrington, Matheny, Curlette, McCarthy & Penick, 2005; Suprina, 2006; Stoltz, Wolff, Monroe, Farris, & Mazahreh, 2013), substance abuse (Bauman, 2001), and insulin dependent diabetic patients (Kern, Penick & Hambry, 1996). Research supports the relationship between Adlerian lifestyle themes and weight issue in relation to lower Wanting Recognition, Being Cautious and Liked by all scales and higher Belonging/Social Interest and Softness scales (Savaiano-Brady, 2001; Stoltz et al., 2009). Belangee, Sherman and Kern (2003) found that higher scores on Wanting Recognition and Being Cautious scales were related to eating disorders. Another study revealed that clients with anorexia nervosa tend to restrict their life tasks of work, society and love and these restrictions may come from feelings of inferiority (Strauch & Erez, 2009). Gaubé and Kern (2015) indicated the significant role of TC (Taking Charge) theme in relation to increased weight.

Although there has been discussion of what comes first, personality traits which lead to overweight, or in the opposite (Sutin et al., 2013), the author of this study agrees with Provencher et al. (2008) that particular dimensions of personality may contribute, either directly or through their association with other factors, to the weight. It is proposed in this study that personality attributes may be related to the four of identified variables and moderate the three relations in the previously presented weight management process (see Figure 4 and Figure 5).

Intuitive eating as well as some interpretations based on IP, emphasize the need to identify and follow physiological hunger rather than emotional reasons for eating. Intuitive eating approach will be discussed in the next chapter.

1.1.3. Description of Intuitive eating and its' importance in weight management

Weight loss strategies traditionally fall into one of three categories that include food restriction, medical intervention, and life changes (Gast & Hawks, 1998; Mann, Tomiyama, Westling, Lew, Samuels, & Chatman, 2007; Powell, Calvin, & Calvin, 2007). Restriction or elimination of certain type of food was not supported as successful way for long term weight loss (Mann et al., 2007). Moreover, food restriction diets might produce harmful side effects including a preoccupation with body size and shape, binge eating, weight cycling, and slow metabolism (Carrier, Steinhardt, & Bowman, 1994; Tribole & Resch, 1995; Steinhardt, Bezner, & Adams, 1999; MacDougall, 2010). Dieting may teach people to follow the external rules instead of learning to understand and follow their body signals such as physiological hunger and satiety (Tribole & Resch, 1995).

Medical intervention related to weight issue includes drug therapy (e.g. orlistat, sibutramine) or surgery (e.g. gastric bypass). MacDougall (2010) states that these medical interventions might be effective in the short-term but also may lead to the negative side effects (e.g., neurotoxicity and hypertension), addictive behaviour or even the life-threatening risk during surgery (Cole, 2006; Powell et al., 2007). Lifestyle change includes modification of behaviour such as diet and exercise. Powell et al. (2007) stated that some traditional weight loss strategies produce modest weight loss and reduce risk for some serious health conditions, such as diabetes and hypertension. Some behaviour was revealed as common for successful weight loss maintenance including low fat diet, self-monitoring of weight and food intake and a lot of physical activity (Wing & Hill, 2001). Therefore while exploring the so called traditional ways to manage one's weight the researcher will also describe several alternative self-weight motoring approaches such as *Intuitive Eating*, *Health at Every Size* and *Mindful Eating*.

May, Furtado and Ornstein, (2014) described *Mindful eating* as eating with intention and attention, or eating with purpose and awareness. Scholars also explore and identify the negative effect of any type of distractions while eating such as TV or working by computer (Gast & Hawks, 1998; Matheiu, 2009; Outland, 2010; Framson, Kristal, Schenk et al., 2009; May, Furtado, & Ornstein, 2014). Authors describe eating problems that can be addressed using mindful eating such as emotional eating, overeating, feeling guilty or weight cycling. However, these problems are also addressed by Intuitive Eating. Nevertheless there is no agreement on whether Intuitive Eating is a part of Mindful Eating (Framson, Kristal, Schenk et al., 2009) or in opposite, intuitive eating approach includes the ideas of Mindful eating (Gast & Hawks, 1998).

Another approach called *Health at Every Size* states that a person can be healthy regardless of weight (Crerand, Wadden, Foster et al., 2007; Provencher, Begin, Tremblay et al., 2009; Gagnon-Girouard, Begin, Provencher et al., 2010). Such an idea is in contrast with the *Intuitive eating* approach that emphasizes the importance of normal weight. However both approaches agree about the value of self-acceptance and nutrition (Bacon, Stern, Van Loan et al., 2005; Hawley, Horwath, Gray et al., 2008).

Ideas about the *Intuitive Eating* and the life-lasting success in weight management became popular all over the world in practice as well as in research in the field (Tylka & Wilcox, 2006; Tylka, 2006, 2007; Caldwell, Baime, & Wolever, 2012; Tylka & van Diest, 2013). Intuitive eating can be described as an alternative to a diet approach to weight management in that there are few restrictions on type of food intake (Tribole & Resch, 1995, 2003; Tylka & Wilcox, 2006, Tylka, 2006, 2007; Tylka & van Diest, 2013). The main idea of Intuitive eating includes the encouragement for people to eat what they desire and follow their internal signals of hunger and satiety (Tribole & Resch, 1995; Tylka, 2006, Avalos & Tylka, 2006, Augustus-Horvath & Tylka, 2011). Listening, recognizing and following the body signals decrease the possibility of automatic or emotional eating and leads to mindful eating (Kristeller, Baer, & Quillian-Wolever, 2006; Wolever & Best, 2009; Boudette, 2011; Kristeller & Wolever, 2011). Some authors describe intuitive eating approach as body wisdom (Gast & Hawks, 1998).

The term Intuitive eating was created and first used in 1995 (Tribole & Resch, 1995). Publication by Gast and Hawks (1998) was the first in relation to Intuitive Eating in peerreviewed journals (Van Dyke & Drinkwater, 2013). The first scale for Intuitive eating was developed and published in the scientific literature in 2004 (Hawks, Merrill & Madanat, 2004). Two years later Tylka created her original Intuitive eating scale that was based on the ten principles of Intuitive Eating proposed by Tribole and Resch (1995). She clustered all the principles into the three central and interrelated features of intuitive eating of: (1) unconditional permission to eat when and what you want, (2) eating for physical rather than emotional reasons, and (3) reliance on internal hunger and satiety cues to determine when and how much to eat (Polivy & Herman, 1987, 1992; Tribole & Resch, 1995, Fedoroff, Polivy, & Herman, 1997; Carper, Fisher, & Birch, 2000; Tylka, 2006). According to Tylka (2006), intuitive eaters recognize the internal signals of hunger and satiety and give themselves unconditional permission to eat the amount and type of food following the physiological hunger. The Intuitive Eating Scale-2 was created by Tylka and van Diest in 2013. The major adjustment from the original Intuitive Eating Scale was the inclusion of a component of Body-Food Choice congruence.

Tylka and Wilcox (2006) emphasized the lack of integrated predictive model for Intuitive Eating, therefore predictors for adaptive eating and a model of body appreciation and Intuitive Eating was constructed and tested (Avalos & Tylka, 2006). Avalos and Tylka (2006) based the model of Intuitive Eating on the theory of unconditional acceptance (Rogers, 1961; Rogers, 1964) and the objectification theory (Fredrickson & Roberts, 1997). Research on objectification theory (e.g., Buchanan, Fischer, Tokar, & Yoder, 2008; Frederickson & Roberts, 1997; Moradi
& Rottenstein, 2007; Tylka & Hill, 2004) addressed the idea that negative interpersonal and societal messages might contribute to disordered eating through self-objectification and body shame. Avalos and Tylka (2006) proposed the idea that positive interpersonal and societal messages (e.g., unconditional acceptance by others and unconditional body acceptance) could enhance one's use of intuitive eating through a focus on how the body feels and functions verses appearance (i.e., body function) and body appreciation.

Intuitive Eating is considered as healthy for both mind and body (Seligman & Csikszentmihalyi, 2000; Avalos & Tylka, 2006; Gast & Hawks, 2000; Tylka, 2006; Tylka & Wilcox, 2006; Tylka & van Diest, 2013; Van Dyke & Drinkwater, 2013). Despite the used instrument, various studies have analyzed and supported the Intuitive Eating as related to healthy eating (Tribole & Resch, 2003), physical activity (Nielson, 2009), less eating disorders (Tylka, 2006; Tylka & Wilcox, 2006), Body Mass Index (Rozin, Pischler, Imada, Sarubin, & Wrzesniewski, 1999; Hawks et al., 2005; Tylka, 2006) and general well-being (Polivy & Herman, 1992; Tylka, 2006; Tylka & van Diest, 2013). The results of a meta-analytic study indicated a relation between Intuitive eating and psychological outcome but not BMI or healthy eating (Van Dyke & Drinkwater, 2013). To this date there is no research to support the association of Intuitive eating with eating disorders or unrestrained eating (e.g., Kahan, Polivy, & Herman, 2003; Polivy & Herman, 1999).

Studies in other countries, however, have supported the construct validity of Intuitive Eating (Tylka, 2006; Tylka & van Diest, 2013) as well as the benefit of including the ideas of Intuitive Eating in the intervention for weight management process, and positive psychological outcomes (Van Dyke & Drinkwater, 2013, Tylka & van Diest, 2013). However, limited samples make the results of these studies difficult to generalize. The majority of cross-sectional studies included students as respondents and clinical studies included Caucasian woman, therefore Dyke and Drinkwater (2013) emphasized the need for more studies with broad mix of participants in order we could get some generalized findings. They also suggested including other eating variables such as nutrition intake, conduct longitudinal studies and long-term follow-ups after Intuitive eating programs. There is a need for more studies in relation to Intuitive Eating if we want to support the benefit of this approach worldwide. As of this date no empirical studies are available related to use of the approach in Lithuania.

The following sections will identify the overlapping or supporting ideas among Intuitive Eating, Individual Psychology and Social Cognitive models as well as proposing an integrative model for the proposed research.

1.1.3. Integration of the weight management process based on Social cognitive models, Individual Psychology and Intuitive Eating

Social cognitive models, especially TPB, have been criticized because of their narrow behavioural variables and findings that are difficult to generalize. Some authors thought that TPB explained insufficient percentage of variance of intention and behaviour (Armitage & Conner, 2001). Furthermore insufficient percent of behavioural variance that could be explained by behavioural intention (Sheeran, 2002) supported the idea that other variables may explain the behaviour or affect the relation between intention and behaviour (Broonen, 2010). One possible solution presented by the author of the TPB was to include other variables to the model that would possibly explain the variance of behaviour (Ajzen, 1991). Nevertheless HBM and SCT included so called in TPB "external" variables in the models as modifying and cue to act factors in HBM or environmental variable in SCT theory. Yet, those variables were considered as behavioural level ones in these models. The literature has demonstrated the inadequacy between BMI and self-classified weight (Chang & Christakis, 2001; Rahman & Berenson, 2010; Boo, 2014; Bodde et al., 2014; Agrawal et al., 2014) as well as behavioural intention and actual behaviour (Armitage & Conner, 2001) and number of variables (including personality) have been found as related to those inadequacies (Chatzisarantis & Hagger, 2008).

Adlerian Lifestyle and social cognitive models. Adlerian lifestyle as discussed in the previous sections is the person's problem solving strategy that one selectively create from personal experiences in one's family of origin and social context. The way the individual creates this problem solving strategy to solve the major tasks of life may be very encouraging and their by validate success or in the terms of the social cognitive model self-efficacy or discouraging that may lead to difficulty in address problems within the social context ranging from career, social, intimate, or in this study the inability to manage one's weight effectively. The importance of the social context as it relates to the formation of behavioural intention and performing behaviour is emphasized by Ajzen (2006), Rosenstock, Strecher, Becker (1988) and Bandura (2011). The major similarity of emphasized importance of the social context construct from an Individual Psychology perspective seems to have a great deal of overlap with the Social Cognition model and Social learning theory (Bandura, 1991) ideas of the significance of others related to human behaviour. Moreover, Ajzen (2006) stated that all the predictors in TPB for intention (attitude toward behaviour, subjective norm and perceived behavioural control) are weighted for their importance among key people in one's life. Adlerian lifestyle seems to be related to what Ajzen called behavioural, normative and control beliefs in TPB and taken as a personality variable in SCT (Ajzen, 1991, Bandura, 2011).

Another link between the Adlerian lifestyle themes and social cognitive models is the possible relationship between certain Adlerian lifestyle themes and perceived behavioural control or self-efficacy in HBM. Furthermore, the relationship between self-efficacy, self-esteem and perceived behaviour control has been supported (Wills, 1994; Terry & O'Leary, 1995), as well as the relation between certain Adlerian themes and self-esteem (Gaube, 2010).

However, personality (Adlerian lifestyle) might play a more complex role in weight management process than affect attitudes, subjective norms and perceived behavioural control. Prior findings supported the moderating role of personality characteristics between behavioural intention and behaviour (Chatzisarantis & Hagger, 2008).

The situational variable of BMI that supports the proposed model with the objective information about the current situation and perception variable perceived weight situation might also contribute to the explanation of the behaviour. The possible variables related to incorrect perception of weight situation have been explored and also included some personality characteristics (Miller et al., 2008; Duncan et al., 2011; Chen, Jahns, Gittelsohn, & Wang, 2012; Bodde et al., 2014; Yang, Turk, Allison, James, & Chasens, 2014; Boo, 2014; Agrawal et al., 2014).

Though personality variables have been included in weight-related studies for years there are no clear explanations of the mechanisms linking personality attributes and weight issues. The author of this study proposed that one of the reasons that personality variables may not have yielded the desired results in previous studies was that the studies over all addressed singular personality attributes such as self-esteem, self-efficacy, conscientious, extroversion and other individual segments of one's personality. The author in this study proposed that by investigating personality attributes based on an organized theory of Individual Psychology and in particular the lifestyle construct that the findings from this study would aid other researchers in the development of a holistic psychosocially based model to understand the total personality dynamics of individuals struggling with weight issues that then could aid in tailored treatment interventions by professionals. Therefore the researcher will explore Adlerian lifestyle (the main construct of Individual Psychology) that might supply the weight management process model based on the TPB with additional ideas and explanations for weight issue. Although some relations between Adlerian lifestyle and weigh issue have been supported (Britzman & Main, 1990, Savaiano-Brady, 2001, Belangee et al., 2003, Stoltz et al, 2009), exploring the role of Adlerian Lifestyle in the frame of the weight management process might support with more clear ideas about the mechanism linking personality attributes and weight issue. Based on the number of prior findings, the author proposed that Adlerian Lifestyle might contribute to the

perceived weight situation, weight-management intention and weight management behaviour as well as moderate the relations between those weight management variables (Figure 5).



Figure 5. Weigh management process with predictive and moderating role of Adlerian Lifestyle

Adlerian lifestyle and Intuitive Eating. Our previous research supported, that increased need to feel a sense of control of self and others was an important personality attribute lifestyle for individuals that were overweight (Gaubė & Kern, 2015). We predicted that food may be a safeguarding tendency used by the individual with elevated Taking Charge scores (which measures individual control issues) on BASIS-A^{lt} to avoid dealing with other intrapersonal or interpersonal issues. One of the major regulations of normal eating is adequate feelings of hunger and fulfilled hunger. Authors proposed based on the findings in relation to Intuitive Eating (Gast & Hawks, 2000; Caldwell, Baime, & Wolever, 2012; Outland, Madanat, & Rust, 2013) that people that overeat may be lacking the natural impulses that alert a person of his/her hunger needs and satiety. Therefore some individuals struggling with weight issues do not possess the appropriate reflective skills to assess if hunger is a result of a real physiological need or, from an Adlerian perspective, a compensatory, secondary gain, or safe guarding tendency evolving from anxiety, depression, boredom, loneliness, or some other emotional trigger.

Tylka (2006) stated that eating behaviour research in the past has been mostly pathologyfocused and used to explore the correlates and predictors of eating disorders rather adaptive eating behaviour. The prior weight management studies had mostly included dieting behaviour rather than the long-term lifestyle change process from the perspective of the attitudes to the behaviour and psychological approach. Powell et al. (2007) emphasized the need to address the genetic, environmental, or psychological correlates of body size or shape in the weight control studies. Other authors added the idea that not only behavioural choices are responsible for BMI, but also genetic, hormonal, and metabolic factors (Gomuzzie, 2001; Tataranni & Ravussin, 2002). Therefore it is proposed by experts that individuals are encouraged to accept a range of body shapes and sizes evolving from their natural physiological hunger and satiety needs (Bacon et al., 2002; Bacon, Van Loan, Stern & Keim, 2005; Carrier et al., 1993; Cole, 2006; Savoye, Berry, Dziura, Shaw, Serrecchia, & 2002; Steinhardt et al., 1999; Tribole & Resch, 1995).

Eating for physiological hunger rather than other reasons is one of the main ideas of Intuitive eating. Moreover the similarity of the ideas of Individual Psychology and Intuitive Eating in relation to the congruence of body and mind can be noticed. Based on this congruence as well as the number of supportive findings (as well as contrary ones) and the absence of any research studies on Intuitive Eating in Lithuania, this research included the variable of Intuitive Eating in the proposed conceptual model as a possible significant factor in weight management process. Although there has been found a relationship between Body functions, positive Body Image and Intuitive Eating (Avalos & Tylka, 2006), Van Diest (2007) suggested that additional exploratory studies should include personality variables as possible supportive factors for Intuitive eating model. Therefore, Intuitive eating was included in the model not as one of other weight management behaviours, bet as a variable dependent on personality dynamics that might be related to these behaviour and BMI.

To address this suggestion the researcher proposed that the inclusion of lifestyle based on the comprehensive theory of Individual Psychology, that it may enhance the understanding of the variables of BMI, Intuitive Eating and other weight related behaviours (Figure 6).

Following this schema, the researcher hoped to explain the BMI of the subjects of the study. One of the explanations was constructed on the weight management process based on the Social Cognition Models and Adlerian lifestyle themes as possible correlates and moderation variables in this process.

Another explanation was based on Intuitive Eating with Adlerian Lifestyle themes as possible correlates. Moreover, the interrelatedness of these two types of behaviours (traditional weight management behaviour and Intuitive Eating) with the Adlerian lifestyle themes was explored.



Figure 6. Weight management process with moderating role of personality (Adlerian Lifestyle) and Intuitive eating as alternative correlate for BMI

1.2. Exploration of factors related to weight management

1.2.1. Importance of Personality for weight management

As discussed previously the significance of personality has been investigated more in relation to eating disorder than positive eating attributes (Fairburn, Welch, Doll, Davies, & O'Connor, 1997; Fairburn, Cooper, Doll, & Welch, 1999; Fairburn, Doll, Welch, Hay, Davies, & O'Connor, 1998; Leon, Fulkerson, Perry, Keel, & Klump, 1999; Vohs, Bardone, Joiner, Abramson, & Heatherton, 1999; Tylka, Waldron, Graber, & Brooks-Gunn, 2002). Tylka (2006) supported the negative relationship between intuitive eating and body dissatisfaction, poor interceptive awareness, pressure for thinness, and internalization of the thin ideal. Thus, many studies supported the relationship between personality attributes and the weight management process. Significant associations of various personality traits have been found with BMI, weight-related behaviour and satisfaction with one's body etc. Several studies with the findings on the solid samples are presented as follow.

A study with 30,722 participants indicated positive association between extraversion and overweight, whereas neuroticism was inversely related to the obesity (Kakizaki et al., 2008).

Results of the study with more than half of the population from four towns in Sardinia, Italy (N=5693) showed that high neuroticism and low conscientiousness were related to both being underweight and obese. High impulsiveness (specifically eating-behaviour items) and low order were related to being overweight and obese according to BMI categories, and abdominal adiposity (waist and hip circumference). The Impulsiveness and Order were supported as significant predictors of general and central measures of adiposity assessed three years later (Terracciano et al., 2009).

Another study in the United States with 3,496 adults investigated the stereotype that overweight employees are less conscientiousness, agreeable, emotionally stable, and less extraverted than their "normal-weight" colleagues. There was substantial convergence between the results, with findings tending to refute commonly held stereotypes about the personality traits of overweight employees (Roehling, Roehling, & Odland, 2008). Only conscientiousness was positively related to BMI. A higher level of neuroticism was found as a significant predictor of higher scores for cognitive dietary restraint, disinheritance and susceptibility to hunger. Conscientiousness was also found to be a positive correlate of cognitive dietary restraint and a higher level of agreeableness was associated with a lower score of susceptibility to hunger. Results also emphasized the other psychological factors, i.e. dysphoria and body esteem, involved in the associations between personality traits and some eating behaviours.

However findings of another study with the Australian adults' sample of 5265 participants indicated that Extraversion, Agreeableness and Neuroticism were positively and Conscientiousness inversely related to the obesity (Magee & Heaven, 2011). Moreover the same study revealed extroversion as a significant predictor for two-year weight gain.

A recent study with the sample of 15,669 participants indicated the positive association between Conscientiousness and healthier weight. In the women sample neuroticism was related to increased weight, while extraversion had a positive association with being overweight among men. Moreover the moderation role of personality for the actual weight and perception of weight was explored. Individuals higher on Neuroticism tended to see themselves as heavier, whereas Extraversion was associated with seeing oneself as thinner (Suttin & Terracciano, 2014).

There were number of other weight related studies that included Big Five personality traits, yet the findings seem to be contradictory. These contradictory findings of direct relation between personality attributes and body mass index supported the idea by Provencher and colleagues (2008) as well as Suttin and Terracciano, (2014) who suggested that investigating personality through association with other psychological factors, may lead to a better understanding of weight and eating behaviours in overweight and obese women.

Lower self-esteem was found to be associated with overweight clients in a meta-analytic study (Miller & Downey, 1999). The correlation between self-esteem and weight was higher in the studies with self-perceived weight than with actual weight (Miller & Downey, 1999). Moreover, a number of researchers have supported the importance of individual's self-esteem and coping recourses (Fennell, 2004; McInnis, Raspopow, Matheson, & Anisman, 2011).

The role of Adlerian Lifestyle themes measured by BASIS-A in weight management process can be predicted by the findings of the norming study of Lithuanian BASIS-A which indicated the significant relations between Big Five personality traits and Adlerian Lifestyle themes (Gaube, Kern, & Stoltz, 2015). Extroversion was positively related to BSI and negatively to BC lifestyle theme. Conscientiousness was positively related to BSI, GA,WR and negatively to BC. There was significant positive relation between emotional stability and BSI as well as GA and negative with BC lifestyle theme. Agreeableness was found as significantly related to BSI and GA and negatively to TC and BC scales. Openness to experience was positively related to BSI, GA and WR and negatively to BC lifestyle theme.

Summarizing the forgoing contradictory findings of Big Five personality attributes, Selfesteem and Adlerian Lifestyle themes, the conclusion that there is a need for more information in relation to Adlerian Lifestyle, BMI and weight management behaviour was made. Additional information might help to support the research questions for this study.

1.2.1.1. Implications for the role of Adlerian Lifestyle themes in this study

Regardless the above findings there appears to be no clear explanation of the way personality is related to weight issue or more specifically the mechanism linking personality and weight management. Some authors suggest the idea that this relation is not a direct one. Elfhag and Rössner (2005) suggest that there is a need for more sufficient studies of association between personality attributes and weight issue. Therefore including Adlerian lifestyle themes in the weight management process may be helpful in the identification one or more of the several mistakes reflected in weight management process.

Since prior findings supported the moderating role of personality for the relation between actual and perceived weight (Suttin and Terracciano, 2014), behavioural intention and actual behaviour (Chatzisarantis & Hagger, 2008), as well as considered importance of personal variables for behavioural intention (Armitage & Conner, 2001) the research proposed that some Adlerian lifestyle themes might contribute to several relationships in weight management process: (1) BMI and perceived weight situation, (2) perceived weight situation and active intention to manage weight, and (3) active intention to manage weight and certain behaviour.

However, some authors argued that what we call healthy eating is not the opposite pole of eating disorder (Tylka, 2006). Due to the contradictory assumptions above and the lack of studies that used BASIS-A in relationship to healthy lifestyle, the role of Adlerian lifestyle

themes measured by BASIS-A^{LT} will be explored in relation to weight management process without creating the direct hypotheses. This study will be the first study employing Adlerian ideas in the weight management process with the hope of providing future scholars with the basic information in related to mechanisms linking Adlerian lifestyle with weight management process.

Furthermore, taking into account the congruence of Adlerian ideas and Intuitive Eating, growing interest in this approach in the practice as well as science (Tylka & Wilcox, 2006; Tylka, 2006, 2007; Caldwell, Baime, & Wolever, 2012; Tylka & van Diest, 2013), and, finally, the suggestion by Van Diest (2007) that additional exploratory studies should include personality attributes as possible supportive factors for Intuitive eating model we will explore Adlerian Lifestyle themes as possible determinants of Intuitive Eating. The exploratory study with addressed question of what is the interrelatedness of Adlerian lifestyle themes and intuitive eating variables will be conducted.

1.2.2. Importance of other variables for weight management

Given there are no studies of BASIS-A in relationship to healthy weight management, this study would be an exploratory in nature with the attempt to explain the mechanisms linking Adlerian lifestyle as a personality variable and the weight management process. To achieve this goal, other biopsychosocial variables, such as appearance-related beliefs, perceived social support, marital status, family income, age and parents' weight situation will be taken in account as they might be related to the weight management process and affect the perceived weight situation, active intention to manage weight or weight management behaviour directly or as a moderating variables. The possible role of each of these variables in weight management process will be described.

1.2.2.1. Appearance related beliefs and weight management

There might be various types of the body image effect on one's life (Cash & Fleming, 2002). For instance, negative perception of body image might affect eating behaviour for one person while the social relations of another person might be impacted. A number of different constructs make up the term of body image. From the Adlerian perspective poor body image is related to feelings of inferiority. Adler (1927) named feelings of ineffectiveness as inferiority

feelings. Inferiority feelings represent the mistaken appraisals of self-worth that come from discouraging experiences (Ferguson, 1984).

Body image as well as personality attributes have been one of the frequent variables in weight-related research, but as discussed in previous section most studies focussed on eating disorders (Van Diest, 2007). Van Diest (2007) discussed the effect of the internalized thin ideal (based on media) on mental health and well-being. Negative body image has been supported to be a risk variable in the relation to eating disorders, depression, and higher levels of body dissatisfaction (Stice, Nemeroff, & Shaw 1996; Fredrickson & Roberts, 1997; Moradi & Subich, 2002; Agliata & Tantleff-Dunn, 2004).

Lithuanian psychologists were also interested in the related topic of eating disorders. Results of the study on body image and it's relatedness to some demographics in the sample of young adults showed that women are more concerned with their weight than men, younger participants related their self-worth with their looks more often than older ones and finally woman who had a partner used to evaluate their appearance better that those without a partner (Miskinyte & Bagdonas, 2010). There were also some studies of the negative eating habits, for example women who were dissatisfied with their body image diet more often and more likely to display bulimic behaviour (Miskinyte, Perminas, & Sinkariova, 2006). Another important finding of the same study revealed the relationship between the experienced parental physical and psychological abuse and anorexic behaviour and dieting (Miskinyte, Perminas, & Sinkariova, 2006).

Moreover results of the study that investigated the relationship between personality traits, body image attitudes and subjective quality of life using NEO Five Factor Inventory (NEO-FFI Costa, McCrae, 1992) indicated significant findings on Neuroticism, Conscientiousness, and Extraversion as related to attitudinal body image components (Miskinyte, 2011).

Van Diest (2007) indicated the lack of studies in relation to dieting, weight preoccupation and eating disorders that would focus on the intuitive eating. He identified the association between internalizing media ideals of thinness and lower Intuitive eating behaviour.

According to the ideas of IP, childhood experience contributes to the personality dynamics and behaviour. Therefore cognitive component of body image might support the weight management process with additional information that could help to support or deny the importance of Adlerian lifestyle. Two cognitive components of body image (appearance schemas) of appearance-related attitudes including importance of the appearance and motivation to take care of one's appearance might contribute to the weight management process as the correlates as well as moderators in several relations. Since poor body image was supported as related to desire to lose weight, poorer appearance schemas might increase the possibility that individual will report active intention to manage his/her weight. On the other hand poor body image was found as a risk variable in the relation to eating disorders (Stice, Nemeroff, & Shaw 1996; Fredrickson & Roberts, 1997; Moradi & Subich, 2002; Agliata & Tantleff-Dunn, 2004). Thus in this study poor appearance schemas might increase the possibility of incorrect perception of weight as higher than it is in reality and choosing the controlling way to cope with weight issue rather than healthy weight management behaviour.

1.2.2.2. Perceived social support and weight management

Social Cognitive models and Individual Psychology emphasize the social context of individual's life and behaviour, such as social norms or social surrounding where certain personality attributes are formed. However, perceived social support is one of the variables that might be considered in the frame of this study as important additional information (situational factor) related to weight management process.

In the terms of Adlerian psychology, perceived high social support might be related to some part of Adler's construct of the need to belong or social interest (Adler, 1927). According to Curlette and Kern (2010) meeting the need to belong is important in a wide variety of situations. The present investigator believes weight management might be one of these situations.

Verheijden with his colleagues (2005) summarized the broad range of concepts of social support in previous studies (Cohen & Wills, 1985; Vaux, 1988; Antonucci & Johnson, 1994; Cohenetal, 1994; Langford et al., 1997). Terms of structural and functional support were used and described. Structural support represents the availability to get the support from other people or being socially integrated. However, in this study functional support was operationalized as a subjective measure or perceived social support.

Sperry with colleagues (2013) emphasized that the individual who tries to control his/her weight is not isolated, therefore it is important to understand and include the role of his/her social surrounding in weight management process. Yet such an inclusion would refer to structural social support but not necessary for perceived social support, which was found to be mostly related to health issue (Wethington & Kessler, 1986).

Perceived social support was found to be associated with body image (Steese et al., 2006). Stuart and Davis (1972) found that spousal support was related to successful weight loss, weight maintenance and weight loss program compliance. Brownell with his colleagues (1978) supported the importance of spouses' attendance in the weight loss sessions and trying to modify eating habits together with their spouse. Nevertheless, Teixeira with her colleagues investigated the possible predictors for successful weight loss and revealed no significance of social support for successful weight loss (Teixeira et al., 2005).

Many researchers revealed the importance of social support for successful weight management, yet findings are not consistent across studies. The same as with personality, there is no clear explanation of the mechanism linking social support and BMI when we are talking about the perceived general social support, not structural support for certain behaviour. It seems reasonable that social support could play a moderating role in some weight management processes. Perceived social support might decrease the possibility incorrect perception of weight and increase a possibility of healthy weight management behaviour. One might propose that social support as a satisfied need to belong might encourage person to perform planned changes related to weight issues. However, social support could be considered as a risk factor of having no active intention to manage weight if support is not targeted to the specific weight issues.

1.2.2.3. Marital Status, family income and weight management

With the purpose to identify the importance of Adlerian lifestyle themes in the weight management process, the researcher included social-demographic characteristics of marital status and family income.

Marital status. Marital status has been supported as a significant factor in relation to selfbody satisfaction. The connection of this factor is not so clear in relation to BMI and perceived weight situation or perceived weight situation and active intentions to manage weight (Heavey, Parker, Bhat, Crisp, & Growers, 1989; Miskinyte & Bagdonas, 2010).

The researcher proposed that having a partner is not an automatic encourager for the individual to gain or loss weight and is more dependent on the quality of the relationship. For example several studies found that marital dissatisfaction increased the possibility of eating disorders (Heavey, Parker, Bhat, Crisp, & Growers, 1989; Van den Brouke & Vandereycken, 1987).

Miskinyte and Bagdonas (2010), however, found that woman who were in intimate relationships perceived less negative emotions as it relates to their body and generally have better perception of appearance. At this point there are no studies that support the relationship of marital status, weight issues and lifestyle dynamics.

Family income. Although Adler and his theory of Individual Psychology did not address the importance of money in person's life, this demographic variable has been included consistently in other studies related to weight issues.

In relation to weight issue, higher income has been supported as related to lower body mass index (Thompson et al., 2008) as well as significant predictor for more successful weight control (Jeffery & French, 1999).

Although family income as well as weight issues might be a result of other factors, the author proposed that higher income might may be a demographic variable that would be additive in the study.

1.2.2.4. Age, Parents' weight and weight management

With the same purpose to identify the role of personality dynamics in weight management process, certain demographic-biological information related to age and hereditability (parents' weight) was explored as the context variables.

Age. A person's age is a biological variable that cannot be ignored in weight related studies. Broad range of participants' age increases the importance to include and explore this variable in the model. However the researcher of this study does not think, that age variable is related to previously mentioned mistakes in weight management process; however age itself (as biological variable) might explain significant account of the variance of BMI.

Parents' weight or hereditability. In line with various personality or social attributes, the possible importance of genetic variables such as hereditability that is related to one's weight situation should be identified.

Some research indicated that parental body mass index (BMI) was related to the increased child's weight (Beech et al., 2003; Rice, Thombs, Leach, & Rehm, 2008; Thompson et al., 2008) and lower success in weight control (Ogden, 2010; Wamsteker et al., 2005). However other authors argue that there is only a few exceptions such as the FTO gene (Loos & Bouchard, 2008), leptin and the MC4 gene variants (Mutch & Clement, 2006), which can be named as genetic predictors of obesity (Stubbs et al., 2011).

There are several explanations that have been presented by experts that rebuke the genetic connection with weight issues. The first rebuttal is that behavioural habits which we adopt from our parents are more important variable than genetic ones (Cutting, Fisher, Grimm-Thomas, & Birch, 1999; Fisher & Birch, 1999 Birch, 1999; Birch & Fisher, 2000). Parent's role with their critical messages about appearance or eating restrictions is also important in forming the negative body image or eating disorders (Striegel-Moore & Kearney-Cooke, 1994; Smolak,

Levine, & Schermer, 1999). This explanation is parallel to the Adlerian point of view that downplays genetic predispositions and highlights the importance of the family origin hypothesis. Belangee, Sherman and Kern (2003) stated that growing up in the surrounding where being thin is valued, increases the possibility to develop problematic eating behaviour. Moreover the family atmosphere that includes morals, values, opinions and communication styles plays the most important role in development of child's lifestyle (Belangee, 2006). Simply said, from our family of origin we learn to think and behave in certain way and these learned habits play a more important role in our lives than genes.

A second explanation presented by Hilbert and colleagues (2009) was that the main variable in relation to genetics and the weight outcome was indicating causal attributions of obesity to genetic/biological factors. In other words if and overweight person thinks that he or she was overweight because of genetics it increased the possibility that he or she will struggle to solve the weight issue (Frosch, Mello, & Lerman, 2005; Harvey-Berino et al., 2001; Ogden, 2000; Wamsteker et al., 2005). These results were relevant to a number of other findings which supported the association of the way one perceives the causation of a health condition and health behaviour as well as health problems (Bandura, 1997; Cameron & Leventhal, 2003; Marteau & Weinman, 2006). Social cognitive theory (Bandura, 1997) might explain the mechanisms linking causal attributions of one's increased BMI to genetics and weight management. In the cognitive theory, self-efficacy or perceived ability to cope effectively (Bandura, 1986), is a main determinent of coping behaviour. Therefore if the person thinks that his/her weight is determined by genetic factors, it may decrease his/her self-efficacy and intention to try to control weight as well. These results and ideas support the importance of perceived behavioural control described in the theory of planned behaviour.

Lubrano-Berthelier and Clement (2005) indicated that it will be a challenge to support low relatedness between genetics and obesity in the future research. Thus in this study parents' weight as possible correlate and moderator variable in weight management process and attempt to isolate a mechanisms linking higher parents' weight and higher BMI. The researcher proposed that perceived higher parents' weight might increase the possibility of misperceived weight situation, less intention to manage weight and being less involved in healthy behaviour. However the author will explore the predictive value of parents' weight in BMI.

1.3. Constructing model for possible explanation of weight management:

Summary of the literature analysis

The researcher in this study has presented and explained weight management process that included Adlerian lifestyle as possible correlate and moderator in weight management process as well as correlate of Intuitive Eating. Biological variables of age and parent's weight together with behavioural variables (healthy eating, good eating habits, physical activity, weight controlling behaviour and intuitive eating) may be possible predictors for BMI. The author has also explained the possible roles of other biopsychosocial variables in this weight management process (as possible risks or deterrents of (1) less correct perception of weight situation, (2) incongruence between perceived weight and the intention to manage weight (decrease the relation between perceived higher weight and intention to manage weight), and (3) not corresponding with healthy behaviour to the active intention to manage weight (decrease the relation between the intention to manage weight and healthy behaviour)(Figure 7).

In this study the researcher will explore the variables and relations from this research scheme. First, each relation in the weight management process without correlates or moderating variables will be explored. Second, moderators and correlates will be included and analysed in relation the three previously described mistakes of weight management. The construct of Intuitive Eating as it relates to Healthy behaviour, Adlerian lifestyle and BMI will be analysed. Finally, a predictive model will be created to attempt to explain a significant account of the variance for BMI.



Figure 7. Research scheme of weight management process with correlates and moderating variables

Note 1 - incorrect perception of weight; 2 - incongruence between perceived weight and intention to manage weight; 3 - healthy behaviour does not correspondent to the intention to manage weight.

2. RESEARCH OF ADLERIAN PERSONALITY ATTRIBUTES IN RELATION TO WEIGTH MANAGEMENT

2.1. Research methods

2.1.1. Sample and procedures

The research sample of this study consisted of various age healthy women not under the treatment condition.

Rationale for a sample. The value of selecting a non-clinical women sample with a large age range can be supported for the following reasons:

(1) There is a lack of weight management studies with non-clinical populations (Brownel & Rodin, 1994; Stubbs et al., 2011).

(2) The majority of existing weight related studies have been conducted with college age students and thereby limits the generalizability of the findings (Stubbs et al., 2011). The present study included various age participants with families and various occupations.

(3) A final reason for the selection of this sample was the supporting evidence that women in general have more concern for weight, appearance, pressure in society to look a certain way related to weigh; therefore women experience more psychological issues that men related to weight control (Ball, Mishra, & Crawford, 2003; Neumark-Sztainer, Sherwood, French, & Jeffery, 1999; White, O'Neil, Kolotkin, & Byrne, 2004).

Data collection procedures. A specialized platform for online data collection www.apklausa.lt was employed to collect the data for this research. The data collection began in April 2014 and was completed in September 2014. Invitations to participate in the study were sent to various online forums, discussion groups etc. Several incentives for participation in the study were employed. Incentives included individual feedback on the BASIS-A Inventory, an invitation to a seminar on Individual Psychology and motivation, and participating in a lottery with two prizes including the coupon for an individual/family photo session and the coupon for a purchase at a local mall. The platform provided the researcher with the information about the response rate of the questionnaire. From 6980 people who accessed the on line survey, 1188 (17.2%) of the participants completed the survey.

Hewson with colleagues (2003) suggested that the problems related to sampling with the on line approach should be addressed so as to support generalization of the findings. However a number of studies supported that demographic variables do not differ in Internet and non-Internet samples (Smith & Leigh, 1997, Krantz et al., 1997) and the psychometric properties of the questionnaires filled online and on paper had no significant differences (Stanton, 1998;

Buchanan & Smith, 1999). However as of this date there are not enough studies to support or not support the on line data collection approach.

Sample description. Selection of participants was decided on the following criteria as a way of neutralizing the biological factors that could have impacted results of the study. The criteria was the female participants were not expecting, did not have a baby one year of age or younger, and had not been diagnosed with a disease that could impact their metabolism or physical activity. 784 women respondents met the criteria defined by the author of this study.

The age of women sample ranged from 18 to 60 with the mean of 32.43 (SD = 9.798) and was moderately positive skewed (0.714) (see Table 1).

Characteristic	Ν	%
BMI		
Decreased	59	7.5
Normal	543	69.3
Increased	182	23.2
Marital Status		
Married	311	39.7
Lives with a partner	99	12.6
Has a partner	115	14.7
Divorced	67	8.5
Widower	6	0.8
Single	186	23.7
Education		
Basic	6	0.8
Secondary	60	7.7
High school	48	6.1
Unfinished university or relevant degree	94	12.0
University degree or other relevant education	555	70.8
Other	21	2.7
Children		
Has	365	46.6
Does not have	419	53.4

Table 1. Demographic characteristics of the research sample

Note. N = number of respondents, % = percentage of respondents

The average Body Mass Index in the sample was 22.73 (ranging from 14.53 to 51.54 with a SD= 4.00). The women were divided into the categories of BMI defined by World Health Organization, thus the numbers of underweight, normal weight and overweight woman as well as further demographic information in relation to the research sample is presented in the Table 1.

Approximately half of the participants were married, lived with a partner and had children. Over 70 percent of the women were highly-educated. Three quarters of the research sample were women with BMI in normal range, and almost one quarter of the women reported and elevated BMI.

2.1.2. Measures

Demographic information included age, marital status, children, education, income, perceived parents' weight situation.

Personality attributes were measured by the Basic Adlerian Scales for Interpersonal Success- Adult Form (BASIS-A) (Wheeler, Kern & Curlette, 1993). The 65-items BASIS-A Inventory was designed to assess five lifestyle themes: Belonging/Social Interest, Going Along, Taking Charge, Wanting Recognition, and Being Cautious and the five supporting scales of harshness, entitlement, liked by all, striving for perfection and softness. Each item is a single sentence asking the participant to respond, "When I was a child, I..." and to rate their response on the scale ranging from 1 (strongly disagree) to 5 (strongly agree), with the midpoint (3) representing *indifferent*. Seventeen items were reverse scored because of negative phrasing. The back forward translation of the instrument was completed following guidelines presented by Hambleton, Merenda and Spielberger (2005), van Widenfelt et al. (2005) and Maneesriwongul and Dixon (2004). The research studies on Lithuanian samples have been completed and published in peer reviewed journals. The studies supported the internal reliability of the instrument (Liesiene et. al., 2010; Astrauskaite & Kern, 2011; Jonyniene & Kern, 2012; Kazakavičiūtė et al., 2013; Gaubė & Kern, 2015). Cronbach's alpha in this study of the all main scales was 0.730 and for primary scales ranged from 0.787 to 0.890. The coefficient of the agreement of the HELP Scales had a range from 0.84 to 0.95 in the normative study (Gaubė, Kern, & Stoltz, 2015).

Intuitive Eating was measured by the Intuitive Eating Scale-2 (IES-2) (Tylka & Van Diest, 2013). The 23-items IES-2 was constructed from the original Intuitive Eating Scale (Tylka, 2006) with an additional component. The final scale was designed to measure four components of Intuitive Eating: (1) Unconditional Permission to Eat (UPE) which represented individual's willingness to eat when hungry and avoid labelling certain food as forbidden, (2) Eating for Physical Rather than Emotional Reasons (EPR) which represented individuals' patterns of eating when physically hungry verses emotional distress or boredom, (3) Reliance on Hunger and Satiety Cues (RHSC) which identified individuals' who trusted their internal signals of hunger and satiety to guide the behaviour, and, a final component of Body-Food Choice Congruence (B-FCC), which measures the extent to which individuals match their food choices with their bodies' needs. The permission to translate the instrument to the Lithuanian language was approved by the author. Procedures of back-forward translation were conducted. A pilot study with student group (N=20) was conducted to identify reliability of scales of the IES-2. The

results indicated high internal reliability of these scales ranging from 0.851 to 0.929. The UPE scale yielded a Cronbach's alpha= 0.629. In the present study the Cronbach's alpha was 0.877 for the total 23-item IES-2. Internal reliability of UPE was 0.687, 0.900 for EPR, 0.903 for RHSC, and 0.772 for B-FCC.

Appearance related beliefs were evaluated by Appearance Schemas Inventory– Revised (ASI-R) (Cash, 2003) was secured from the website: www.body-images.com as well as several others instruments related to Body Image. However, with the author's permission, the translated Lithuanian version of the instrument (Miskinyte, 2010) was used. ASI-R is a 20-items measure for appearance related beliefs and importance in one's life, the cognitive aspect of body image. Self-Evaluative Salience (12 items) indicated individual's certain beliefs or assumptions about the importance, meaning, and influences of appearance in his/her life. Motivational Salience (8 items) was a measure for the attendance in appearance management behaviours. The Cronbach's alpha for the total 20-item ASI-R was 0.879; 0.836 for Self-Evaluative Salience and 0.827 for Motivational Salience.

Perceived social support was measured by Multidimensional Scale of Perceived Social Support (MSPSS) (Zimet, Dahlem, Zimet, Farley, 1988). This 12-items scale measures 3 sources of perceived support: family, friends and significant others. However as for context variable, only general score of MSPSS was counted and included in the study. Cronbach for the scale was 0.926.

Eating habits were measured by two scales constructed for this study. The Healthy Eating scale of 9 items was created following the recommendations for consumption of the certain food/healthy eating presented in the methodological book for healthy lifestyle (Astrauskienė et al., 2011). The Healthy eating scale included questions about the consumption of various healthy foods such as grains and vegetables each day, avoiding fat food, replacing fat meat with leguminous vegetables, fowl or fish, choosing milk products with less fat, choosing food with less sugar, decreasing intake of salty foods, and drinking two litres of liquid each day. The Cronbach's alpha for the Healthy eating scale was 0.719.

The scale of Good Eating habits was an inverse measure for eating after 7 p.m., eating by TV or computer, eating fast-food and overeating. These variables were extracted from various studies that analysed eating behaviour related to weight issue. The Cronbach's alpha for the 4-items Good Eating scale was 0.569 which indicated poor but appropriate for a group measure internal reliability (Schmitt, 1996). However the findings related to good eating should be interpreted carefully.

Physical activity was measured by Godin Leisure-Time Exercise Questionnaire (Godin & Shephard, 1985, 1997). A number of reliability and validity studies supported this instrument as suitable to measure physical activity (Godin & Shephard, 1985; Sallis et al., 1993; Jacobs et al., 1993; Miller, Freedson, & Kline, 1994). Participants were asked to report how many times during the 7 days period they were involved in strenuous, moderate and mild exercise. The level of physical activity was counted by the formula $9 \times strenuous + 5 \times moderate + 3 \times mild$.

Weight controlling behaviour scale was created for this study based upon a literature review and included 8 items related to counting calories, planning meals, consumption of meal substitute or weight control supplements, fasting, strict dieting, consultation with a dietician, and weighing oneself. The Cronbach's alpha for this scale was 0.687, which indicated poor but appropriate for a group measure internal reliability (Schmitt, 1996).

Perceived weight situation was measured by one question extracted from the twoquestion scale The Multidimensional Body-Self Relations Questionnaire (MBSRQ)(Cash, 2000).Two questions from MBSRQ were analysed that included (1) how the individual perceives his/her weight situation and (2) how the individual perceives other's opinion about his/her weight situation. The possible answers were (1) very underweight (2) somewhat underweight (3) normal weight (4) somewhat overweight (5) very overweight.

Active weight management intention was assessed by asking participants' "Which of the following best describes you at the moment?" The response options were: (1) I am actively doing things to gain weight at the moment; (2) I am actively doing things to try to avoid gaining weight at the moment; (3) I am actively doing things to try to lose weight at the moment; or (4) I am not doing anything in particular for my weight at the moment (Jeffery et. al, 2013).

Body Mass Index (BMI) was calculated from two self-reported measures - height and weight using the formula BMI=weight (kg)/height² (m²). Self-reported measures would likely be a reliable alternative to the measured height and weight (Ali, Minor, & Amialchuk, 2013). The BMI categories presented by the World Health Organization were regrouped into three categories of underweight (BMI less than 18.5), normal weight (BMI from 18.5 to 24.99) and overweight and obese (BMI 25 and over) woman (see Table 2). As mentioned previously, underweight woman were not included in all the analysis.

 BMI range – kg/m²
 Category
 New category and BMI

 less than 15
 Very severely underweight from 15.0 to 16.0
 Underweight less than 18

Table 2. Regrouping of BMI categories provided by World Health Organization

less than 15 from 15.0 to 16.0 from 16.0 to 18.5	Very severely underweight Severely underweight Underweight	Underweight – less than 18.5
		Normal weight -
from 18.5 to 25	Normal (healthy weight)	18.5-24.99
from 25 to 30	Overweight	Overweight and obese -
from 30 to 35	Obese Class I (Moderately obese)	25 and over
from 35 to 40	Obese Class II (Severely obese)	
over 40	Obese Class III (Very severely obese)	

Note. BMI = body mass index

2.1.3. Selection of the statistical procedures

Missing data. The questionnaire was created online with the employed rule of "must", despite several open questions about one's height and weight, to report to every question. Thus, only one participant did not report her weight, therefore was not included in the analysis.

Normality test. Prior to analysing the data researcher explored the distribution of each of the interval variables with the Kolmogorov-Smirnov test. The variable of Intuitive eating was distributed normally, while others did not fall under the normal distribution. The Skewness of each of the variables was calculated. Findings revealed that the major distributions were approximately symmetric (skewness ranged from -0.5 to +0.5). However there were several moderately skewed variables that included the BSI, BC, weight controlling behaviour, and perceived social support, (skewness were in one of the ranges: from -1 to -0.5 or from 0.5 to 1). Moreover there were two highly skewed variables that included BMI and physical activity (Table 3). The data was transformed according to the logarithmic and square root transformations, following the guidelines by Tabachnick and Fidell (2007) and Howell (2007).

After the transformations most of the previously moderately skewed variables became approximately symmetric (BSI, BC, Perceived Social support). Two of the highly skewed original variables became approximately symmetric, however, skewness of the physical activity decreased but stayed highly skewed. Skewness of the weight controlling behaviour decreased to moderate level. From this analysis the researcher made the decision to exclude the outliers from the original scales of weight controlling behaviour and physical activity in analysis. The skewness was 0.745 for weight controlling behaviour and 0.855 for physical activity after outliers were excluded. All the other transformed variables were included in the further analysis.

			Moderately	skewed varia	High skew	ed variables	
			(Sqrt tra	ansformation	(LOG tran	sformation)	
		BSI	BC	CB	SOC	BMI	PA
Before	S	-0.766	0.534	0.894	-0.808	1.667	1.952
transformation	Κ	0.804	-0.458	0.681	0.264	5.483	9.522
After	S	0.040	0.199	0.575	0.337	-0.005	-1.343
transformation	Κ	0.083	-0.837	-0.160	-0.493	7.610	1.372

Table 3. Skewness before and after the transformation of initially skewed variables

Note. S – Skewness; K – Kurtosis; Sqrt = square-root; LOG = Logarithmic; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; BC = Being Cautious; CB = Weight controlling behaviour; SOC = perceived social support; BMI = Body mass index; PA = physical activity.

A Pearson correlation was conducted on the original and transformed variables. A negative relationship was revealed between the original and transformed BSI scales as well as original and transformed scale of perceived social support. These negative relations are important for the interpretations of the results, because for example negative correlation between transformed BSI and higher weight would mean that lower BSI is related to higher weight.

Statistical procedures. The data was analyzed using the IBM SPSS Statistics 20. Data was transformed in order to decrease the skewness of some mostly skewed interval variables and outliers of some behaviour variables were excluded, therefore parametric criteria were chosen for statistical analysis. The statistical methods included descriptive statistics and frequencies, Cronbach's alpha, Pearson correlation coefficient and ANOVA. Moreover a Hierarchical linear regression and Multinomial logistic regression analysis was used to explore the relationship and moderation effect of the Adlerian Lifestyle themes for BMI, perceived weight situation, intention to manage weight and weight management behaviour in the context of other biopsychosocial variables. Analysis was conducted on the total female sample (N=784), normal weight group (N=543) and increased BMI group (N=182).

2.2. Results

Means, standard deviations and correlations of the variables are presented in Appendix 1. Body mass index was significantly related to several Adlerian lifestyle themes and supporting themes including BSI, TC, BC, and Striving for perfection. Significant positive correlations of BMI to weight controlling behaviour, age and parents' weight were supported. The BMI was negatively related to all the measures of Intuitive eating BMI was inversely related to higher motivation to take care of the appearance and perceived higher social support.

2.2.1. Association between body mass index and perceived weight situation

The first analysis of this study was to explore the relation between BMI and perceived weight situation. Results in Table 4 indicated that BMI accounted for 38.8 percent of the variance of perceived weight situation in the regression model (see Table 4).

Table 4. Linear regression analysis of BMI on perceived weight situation, F=497.382, p=0.000, R Square = 0.388(N=784)

Variable	В	SE	95% CI		t value	p-value
(constant)	-4.768	0.375	5.504,	-4.032	-12.724	0.000
BMI	6.182	0.277	5.638,	6.726	22.302	0.000

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; dependent variable = perceived weight situation

Additionally, association between BMI and perceived weight situation was explored separately in the three groups of women according to their BMI and weight change during the past year and weight-related behaviour changes during the past year. As presented in Appendix 2, BMI accounted for the largest variance of perceived weight situation (1) in the group of women with increased weight, (2) in the group of women who reported weight loss during last year, (3) in the group of women who stayed with the same weight-related habits during the last year in compare to the other groups in each of the analysis. However, one of the tasks of this study was to find the relation between Adlerian lifestyle and correctly perceived weight, therefore additional statistical analysis was conducted.

2.2.1.1. Correlates of incorrectly perceived weight situation

The first research question of this study was to explore the role of Adlerian personality attributes/lifestyle themes related to correct perceptions of weight. To address this question, the first task was to identify those participants who used to evaluate their weight correctly or viewed them incorrectly as having lower or higher weight in compare to the category of their BMI.

Two questions about perceived weight situation were included. BMI had a stronger relation with perceived others opinion about one's weight (r=0.681, p=0.000) than with an individually perceived weight situation (r=0.624, r=0.000). Crosstabs showed that underweight women used to perceive their weight more correctly if were reporting others' opinion about their weight situation. However, overweight women individually perceived their weight more correctly than reporting opinion by others' (see Table 5 and Appendix 3).

Correlation between	perceived weight		I think th	at my we	ight is		Total
situation and BMI: r=0.624, p=0.000		Very decreased	A little decreased	Normal	A little increased	Very increased	
Count		4	16	34	5	0	59
ਤ % within thre	e groups of BMI	6.8%	27.1%	57.6%	8.5%	0.0%	100.0%
se % within I thi ⊑ se is.	nk that my weight	80.0%	53.3%	10.4%	1.4%	0.0%	7.5%
Count		1	14	285	233	10	543
Ъ % within thre	e groups of BMI	0.2%	2.6%	52.5%	42.9%	1.8%	100.0%
sd no % within I thi	nk that my weight	20.0%	46.7%	87.4%	65.8%	14.5%	69.3%
\mathfrak{G} Count		0	0	7	116	59	182
ਤ% within thre	e groups of BMI	0.0%	0.0%	3.8%	63.7%	32.4%	100.0%
s % within I thi	nk that my weight	0.0%	0.0%	2.1%	32.8%	85.5%	23.2%
Count		5	30	326	354	69	784
Tetel % within three	e groups of BMI	0.6%	3.8%	41.6%	45.2%	8.8%	100.0%
% within I thi is.	nk that my weight	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%

Table 5. The distribution of perceived weight situation in three groups of decreased, normal and increased BMI (N=784).

According to the crosstabs analysis an additional variable with three categories was created. There were 22 women who perceived themselves as being in lower weight category in compare to their BMI (see Table 6).

Groups	Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Cumulative Percent
perceives lower weight	22	2.8	2.8	2.8
correct perceived weight	480	61.2	61.2	64.0
perceives higher weight	282	36.0	36.0	100.0
Total	784	100.0	100.0	

Table 6. The distribution of correctly-incorrectly perceived weight situation (N=784).

Further ANOVA analysis was conducted to compare the lifestyle themes of women in those three categories. No significant differences of Adlerian lifestyle themes among the categories were supported (see Appendix 4) in total female sample.

A multinomial logistic regression analysis of lower and higher perceived weight situation was conducted in the total female sample. Correctly perceived weight was chosen as a reference category and personality attributes as well as other biopsychosocial variables of both incorrect perceptions (seeing oneself as lower weight or seeing oneself as higher weight) were compared to the group of correctly perceived weight. The model was included with five major Adlerian lifestyle scale themes and five supporting scales and other biopsychosocial variables. No significant association was found (see Table 7).

However, several biological variables were related to incorrectly perceived lower weight. Results of the multinomial logistic regression analysis indicated that in the context of personality and other biopsychosocial variables, women's reported higher age and parents' lower weight were related to incorrectly perceived lower weight. Moreover, some psychosocial variables were supported related to incorrectly perceived higher weight. Younger women who reported a concern with their appearance and perceived less social support evaluated themselves incorrectly as being of higher weight (Table 7).

		В	SE	Wald	Sig.	Exp(B)	95% (CI
	Intercept	735	4.798	.023	.878	-	-	
	BSI	.005	.057	.007	.932	1.005	.898	1.125
	GA	029	.058	.250	.617	.971	.866	1.089
	TC	.020	.049	.171	.679	1.021	.927	1.124
	WR	.040	.106	.141	.708	1.041	.845	1.281
	BC	.035	.042	.667	.414	1.035	.953	1.125
	Н	099	.120	.680	.409	.906	.716	1.146
	Е	.017	.062	.072	.789	1.017	.900	1.149
perceives lower	L	078	.168	.213	.645	.925	.665	1.287
weight	Р	038	.089	.186	.667	.963	.809	1.145
	S	022	.105	.045	.832	.978	.797	1.200
	Appearance	748	.466	2.570	.109	.473	.190	1.181
	Motivation	.360	.410	.772	.379	1.434	.642	3.202
	Soc	.042	.236	.032	.857	1.043	.657	1.657
	Parents	608	.236	6.621	.010	.545	.343	.865
	Age	.047	.023	4.304	.038	1.048	1.003	1.095
	Marital	034	.257	.017	.895	.967	.585	1.598
	Income	.114	.192	.356	.551	1.121	.770	1.633
	Intercept	053	1.788	.001	.977	-	-	
	BSI	.000	.020	.000	.993	1.000	.961	1.041
	GA	.017	.023	.537	.464	1.017	.973	1.063
	TC	.000	.017	.000	.993	1.000	.967	1.034
	WR	.020	.036	.295	.587	1.020	.950	1.095
	BC	.017	.015	1.202	.273	1.017	.987	1.048
	Н	018	.042	.180	.671	.982	.904	1.067
	E	001	.022	.001	.976	.999	.956	1.044
perceives higher	L	037	.057	.418	.518	.964	.862	1.077
weight	Р	018	.030	.371	.542	.982	.927	1.041
	S	.001	.037	.001	.979	1.001	.931	1.077
	Appearance	.369	.158	5.485	.019	1.447	1.062	1.970
	Motivation	.169	.138	1.505	.220	1.184	.904	1.551
	Soc	198	.079	6.353	.012	.820	.703	.957
	Parents	048	.070	.469	.493	.953	.830	1.094
	Age	057	.010	33.217	.000	.944	.926	.963
	Marital	.172	.096	3.244	.072	1.188	.985	1.432
	Income	.042	.072	.348	.555	1.043	.907	1.200

Table 7. Multinomial logistic regression analysis for incorrect weight perception, Chi-Square=97.599, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.117 (N=784)

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval for Exp(B); BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Marital= 1 - single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight).

Personality attributes and other biopsychosocial variables were analyzed in various weight perception groups among normal weight women in the next section.

2.2.1.1.1. Correlates for incorrectly perceived weight situation with the group of women with normal BMI

Multinomial regression analysis of incorrectly perceived lower and higher weight in compare to the correctly perceived weight was conducted among normal weight women. The same Adlerian lifestyle themes, supporting scales and biopsychosocial factors were included as independent variables in the model. BMI was an additional independent variable, to control the objective information of weight which might be related to ability to perceive weight correctly. Correlates of perceived lower weight are presented in the table 8.1.

Table 8.1. Multinomial logistic regression analysis: for incorrectly perceived lower weight in the group of women with normal BMI, Chi-Square=258.98, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.379 (N=543)

		В	SE	Wald	p value	Exp(B)	95%	CI
	Intercept	45.153	13.957	10.466	.001	_		
	BMI	-2.231	.606	13.538	.000	.107	.033	.353
	BSI	017	.095	.031	.860	.983	.816	1.185
	GA	168	.094	3.226	.072	.845	.704	1.015
	TC	.004	.067	.004	.951	1.004	.881	1.144
	WR	.062	.175	.128	.720	1.064	.756	1.499
	BC	004	.068	.003	.958	.996	.872	1.138
	Н	145	.176	.673	.412	.865	.613	1.222
	Е	086	.099	.758	.384	.918	.756	1.113
perceives	L	026	.279	.009	.924	.974	.564	1.682
lower weight	Р	.097	.153	.402	.526	1.102	.817	1.486
	S	064	.172	.140	.708	.938	.669	1.314
	Appearance	820	.707	1.346	.246	.440	.110	1.760
	Motivation	049	.576	.007	.932	.952	.308	2.946
	Soc	.244	.412	.351	.554	1.276	.569	2.862
	Parents	458	.334	1.877	.171	.633	.329	1.218
	Age	.143	.044	10.421	.001	1.154	1.058	1.259
	Marital	157	.440	.127	.721	.855	.361	2.024
	Income	051	.328	.024	.878	.951	.500	1.808

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval for Exp(B); BMI = Body Mass Index; BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Marital= 1 – single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight).

Results indicated that no Adlerian lifestyle themes were related to incorrectly perceived weight among women with normal weight. However, there were other variables, such as lower BMI and higher age that were found as significant correlates of incorrectly perceived lower weight in compare to correctly perceived weight.

Table 8.2 includes information about the correlates for the intention to lose weight.

		В	SE	Wald	p value	Exp(B)	95%	CI
	Intercept	-16.324	2.864	32.495	.000			
	BMI	.811	.082	98.350	.000	2.249	1.916	2.640
	BSI	.019	.028	.467	.494	1.019	.965	1.075
	GA	.000	.031	.000	.991	1.000	.942	1.062
	TC	009	.024	.128	.721	.992	.946	1.039
	WR	.000	.049	.000	.994	1.000	.909	1.101
	BC	.003	.021	.024	.877	1.003	.963	1.045
	Н	.005	.056	.007	.935	1.005	.900	1.121
	Е	011	.032	.112	.738	.990	.930	1.053
perceives	L	063	.077	.671	.413	.939	.807	1.092
inghei weight	Р	024	.040	.347	.556	.977	.902	1.057
	S	.038	.052	.534	.465	1.038	.939	1.149
	Appearance	1.114	.228	23.904	.000	3.048	1.950	4.764
	Motivation	117	.190	.380	.538	.889	.613	1.291
	Soc	294	.108	7.361	.007	.745	.602	.922
	Parents	.044	.098	.197	.657	1.045	.862	1.266
	Age	085	.015	30.724	.000	.919	.892	.947
	Marital	.300	.133	5.072	.024	1.350	1.040	1.752
	Income	107	.095	1.274	.259	.898	.745	1.082

Table 8.2. Multinomial logistic regression analysis: for incorrectly perceived higher weight in the group of women with normal BMI, Chi-Square=258.98, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.379 (N=543)

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval for Exp(B); BMI = Body Mass Index; BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Marital= 1 – single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight).

It was found that women with higher BMI, who were more concerned with the appearance, in a relationship or married, younger and perceived lower social support, incorrectly perceived their weight (see Table 8.2). They reported incorrectly higher weight.

In the next section the correlates of incorrectly perceived weight situation among overweight women were analysed.

2.2.1.2.2. Correlates for incorrectly perceived weight situation in the group of women with increased BMI

A multinomial regression analysis as was conducted with total women sample and the normal weight women was also conducted with women of increased BMI. The purpose was to identify factors that could be named as significant correlates of incorrectly perceived lower weight. Although the Adlerian lifestyle of BC was found as significantly related to incorrectly perceived lower weight, the fit of the regression model was not confirmed (see Appendix 5).

An independent sample t-test was employed to compare Adlerian lifestyle personality attributes between those with incorrectly perceived lower weight and those women who correctly perceived weight situation in the group of women with increased BMI.

Ν Mean SD t p value 7 -0.900 incorrectly perceived lower weight 32.29 4.821 0.369 BSI correctly perceived weight 175 5.572 34.21 incorrectly perceived lower weight 30.29 5.438 0.931 0.171 7 GA correctly perceived weight 175 30.11 5.122 incorrectly perceived lower weight 7 21.86 4.259 0.009 0.993 TC correctly perceived weight 175 21.83 6.904 incorrectly perceived lower weight 38.29 8.321 -1.025 0.305 7 WR correctly perceived weight 175 40.58 5.692 incorrectly perceived lower weight 7 23.00 3.055 3.459 0.007 BC correctly perceived weight 175 18.57 7.313 incorrectly perceived lower weight 13.71 2.138 0.760 0.448 7 Η correctly perceived weight 175 12.99 2.489 incorrectly perceived lower weight 0.904 7 16.29 3.450 0.121 E 16.09 correctly perceived weight 175 4.183 incorrectly perceived lower weight 7 20.57 4.504 -0.794 0.428 L correctly perceived weight 175 21.65 3.471 incorrectly perceived lower weight 0.302 7 20.71 2.928 -1.034 Р correctly perceived weight 175 22.02 3.294 2.299 -0.586 0.559 incorrectly perceived lower weight 7 18.57 S 3.136 correctly perceived weight 175 19.27

Table 9. Comparison of Adlerian personality attributes between women who perceive their weight incorrectly as normal and those who perceive their weight correctly among overweight women (N=182)

Note. SD = standard deviation; BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness.

An independent sample t-test was conducted with the other biopsychosocial variables with the two groups of overweight women who perceived their weight correctly and the group who perceived themselves incorrectly as being normal weight. Results indicated no significant differences between those groups (see Table 10).

Table 10. Comparison of biopsychosocial variables between women who perceive their weight incorrectly and those who perceive their weight correctly in the group of women with increased BMI (N=182)

		Ν	Mean	SD	t	p value
A	incorrectly perceived lower weight	7	45.86	11.408	1.921	.056
Age	correctly perceived weight	175	37.86	10.783		
Annoaranaa	incorrectly perceived lower weight	7	3.0833	.45644	-1.274	.204
Appearance	correctly perceived weight	175	3.3810	.61077		
Motivation	incorrectly perceived lower weight	7	3.2143	.52893	174	.862
	correctly perceived weight	175	3.2586	.66558		
See	incorrectly perceived lower weight	7	4.8333	1.19799	-1.063	.289
500	correctly perceived weight	175	5.3210	1.18991		
Donomto	incorrectly perceived lower weight	7	2.4286	1.53917	-1.440	.152
Parents	correctly perceived weight	175	3.0600	1.12091		

Note. SD = standard deviation; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivational towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight).

The first research question supported the relationship of the BC lifestyle theme related to incorrectly perceived weight among women with increased BMI. Women who perceived their weight as normal (when having increased BMI) had more expressed personality attribute of BC in compare to those, who perceived their weight correctly as having increased weight. It means that overweight women who are oversensitive and with lack of problem solving skills tend to perceive their weight incorrectly as normal more often than women with less expressed BC. However, in the total women sample or among normal weight women, personality attributes did not play the significant role in correct or incorrect weight perception.

2.2.2. Association between perceived weight situation and active intention to manage weight

A second research question addressed the relationship of perceived weight situation and active intention to manage weight and the role of Adlerian lifestyle.

The perceived weight situation was compared to active intention to manage weight. The ANOVA analysis revealed a significant difference of perceived weight situation among groups with various intentions (F=66.697, p=0.000, see Table 11).

	N	Mean	SD	SE	95% CI	
gain weight	4	1.75	.500	.250	.95	2.55
nothing	390	3.37	.727	.037	3.30	3.45
keep current	161	3.43	.589	.046	3.34	3.52
lose weight	229	4.06	.563	.037	3.98	4.13
Total	784	3.58	.732	.026	3.53	3.63

Table 11.Perceived weight situation in the groups of women with various weight management intentions, F=66.697, p=0.000 (N=784)

Note. SD = Standard deviation; SE = standard error; 95% CI = confidence interval.

There were 4 women who expressed their active intention to gain weight; therefore they were eliminated from the further analysis for the present research question. After excluding these participants the ANOVA showed a positive significance of the difference between the groups (F=84.237, p=0.000). Levene's Statistic indicated the difference of the variance among groups (33.32, p=0.000). Post-Hoc test with Games-Howell criteria indicated a significant difference of perceived weight situation between women who had an intention to lose weight and other groups having no weight management intention or having an intention to keep current weight (Table 12).

Table 12. Comparison of perceived weight situation in between groups of various intention to manage weight (N=780)

(I) INTENTION	(J) INTENTION	Mean Difference (I-J)	SE	p value	95% C	I
no intention	keep current	054	.059	.631	19	.09
	lose weight	682*	.052	.000	81	56
keep current	no intention	.054	.059	.631	09	.19
	lose weight	628*	.059	.000	77	49
lose weight	no intention	.682*	.052	.000	.56	.81
	keep current	.628*	.059	.000	.49	.77

Note. SE = standard error; 95% CI = confidence interval.

A multinomial logistic regression analysis was employed to assess perceived weight situation on the intention to manage weight. A significant relationship was identified between the perceived weight situation and the intention to lose weight (p=0.008, see Table 13).

Table 13. Multinomial logistic regression of perceived weight situation on various intentions to manage weight Chi-Square = 154.340, p=0.000, Cox and Snell =0.180 (N=780)

INTENTION:		В	SE	Wald	p value	Exp(B)	95% CI	
keep curren	Intercept	-1.308	.495	6.996	.008			
	Perceived weight	.124	.142	.765	.382	1.132	.857	1.497
lose	Intercept	-6.570	.596	121.583	.000			
weight	Perceived weight	1.623	.155	109.429	.000	5.070	3.740	6.872

Note. The reference category is: nothing; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error

The findings of the multinomial logistics analysis indicated the most significant relation between perceived weight situation and intentions to keep and lose weight in the group of women with normal BMI (see Appendix 6). In the group of overweight women a significant relationship of perceived weight situation and intention to lose weight was supported. The best predictive value of the perceived weight situation for the intention to lose weight was revealed in the groups of those women who reported weight loss and the improvement of the weight related habits during the last year (see Appendix 6).

2.2.2.1. Correlates and moderators for the intention to manage weight

ANOVA was used to compare the major lifestyle and supporting themes in the groups related to weight management intention. Results indicated the significant differences for woman who reported the intention to keep current weight and elevated scores on the lifestyle major themes of WR and supporting theme Liked by all when compared to those women who reported no intention to manage weight (see Appendix 7).

Two multinomial logistic regression analyses on the intention to manage weight were conducted. The first regression was conducted to assess the interaction effect of perceived weight situation and lifestyle themes. No significance was identified in relation to lifestyle themes and intention to keep current weight. The BC and Softness supporting lifestyle theme had a negative moderation effect between perceived weight and intention to lose weight (Table 8.1 in Appendix 8).

Another multinomial model including other biopsychosocial variables and their interactions with perceived weight did not indicated perceived weight and lifestyle themes as significant predictors for the intention to keep current weight, however, the Softness supporting theme had a negative moderation effect for the relation between perceived weight and intention to lose weight (see Table 8.2 and Table 8.3 in Appendix 8).

Other biopsychosocial variables were found as significant correlates. Motivation towards appearance was positively related to the intention to keep current weight. Parents' weight had a negative moderation effect for the relation between perceived higher weight and the intention to keep current weight (Table 8.2 in Appendix 8). Motivation towards appearance was positively related to the intention to lose weight while age was negatively related to the intention to lose weight. Parents' weight tended to have a negative moderation effect related to perceived higher weight and the intention to lose weight (Table 8.3 in Appendix 8).

However, it is important to explore the relation between the perceived weight situation and various intentions to manage separately in two groups of women with normal and increased BMI. In the group of women with normal weight no weight-related intention or the intention to keep current would be named as the congruence between the perception and intention, while in the group of overweight women the best congruence would be with the intention to lose weight.

2.2.2.1.1 Correlates and moderators for the intention to manage weight in the group of women with normal BMI

A multinomial logistic regression analysis was used to assess the intention to manage (keep current or lose) weight in the group of women with normal BMI. One part of the regression model related to the intention to keep current weight included all the personality/lifestyle themes and biopsychosocial variables as possible predictors (Table 14). Results indicated that perceived higher weight and motivation towards appearance were significantly related to the intention to keep current weight in the group of women with normal BMI (Table 14).

Perceived higher weight was also positively related to the intention to lose weight. The BC and Softness themes had a negative moderation effect on the relation between perceived weight and intention to lose weight (see Appendix 9). Motivation towards appearance and perceived higher weight were positively related to the intention to lose weight while being concerned with appearance, perceived social support and age were negatively related to the intention to lose weight.

In summary, results of this regression analysis indicated that personality did not play a significant role for the normal weight women in relation to the intention to keep current weight. Perceived higher weight and higher motivation toward appearance were those psychosocial variables that were positively related to the intention to keep current weight. However, Adlerian personality attributes of BC and Softness were supported as having the significant negative effect for the relation between perceived weight and the intention to lose weight among normal weight women. It means that being oversensitive or having better self-view could be named as those personality attributes that help to keep the congruence between the perceived weight and the intention to manage them, in other words, women with the normal BMI do not have an intention to lose weight.

INTENTION		В	SE	Wald	p value	Exp(B)	95% CI	
		-8.111	3.340	5.898	.015			
keep current	Intercept							
	Perceived weight	.506	.253	4.016	.045	1.659	1.011	2.722
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.032	.238	.018	.892	1.033	.648	1.647
	GA	033	.036	.832	.362	.967	.901	1.039
	TC	.004	.028	.022	.883	1.004	.950	1.061
	WR	.043	.059	.540	.462	1.044	.930	1.172
	BC	325	.227	2.052	.152	.722	.463	1.127
	Н	.011	.067	.028	.866	1.011	.888	1.152
	E	002	.040	.003	.959	.998	.924	1.078
	L	.021	.092	.053	.817	1.021	.853	1.223
	Р	.082	.050	2.693	.101	1.085	.984	1.196
	S	028	.060	.225	.635	.972	.865	1.093
	PerceivedxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	342	.265	1.666	.197	.710	.423	1.194
	PerweightxGA	.055	.244	.052	.820	1.057	.655	1.704
	PerweightxTC	160	.229	.490	.484	.852	.544	1.334
	PerweightxWR	.244	.450	.293	.588	1.276	.528	3.084
	PerweightxBC	249	.244	1.048	.306	.779	.483	1.256
	PerweightxH	.211	.219	.928	.335	1.235	.804	1.899
	PerweightxE	.165	.214	.596	.440	1.180	.776	1.794
	PerweightxL	.048	.428	.013	.911	1.049	.453	2.429
	PerweightxP	092	.213	.186	.666	.912	.601	1.384
	PerweightxS	269	.267	1.010	.315	.764	.452	1.291
	Appearance	448	.284	2.495	.114	.639	.366	1.114
	Motivation	1.258	.253	24.671	.000	3.519	2.142	5.780
	PerweightxAppearance	242	.237	1.045	.307	.785	.493	1.249
	PerweightxMotivation	.335	.228	2.164	.141	1.398	.895	2.185
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	.557	.430	1.678	.195	1.745	.752	4.049
	PerweightXSOC ⁽⁻⁾	.072	.204	.124	.725	1.075	.720	1.604
	Marital	.122	.167	.529	.467	1.129	.814	1.568
	PerweightxMarital	085	.198	.182	.670	.919	.623	1.355
	Income	106	.120	.786	.375	.899	.711	1.137
	PerweightxIncome	102	.177	.330	.566	.903	.639	1.278
	Age	.012	.017	.523	.469	1.012	.980	1.046
	PerweightxAge	.382	.210	3.298	.069	1.465	.970	2.211
	Parents	.096	.119	.659	.417	1.101	.873	1.389
	PerweightxParents	253	.176	2.069	.150	.776	.550	1.096

Table 14. Regression analysis for the intention to keep current weight in the group of women with normal BMI, Chi-Square=256.396, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.377

Note.^(\circ) = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital: 1 = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight).

The biopsychosocial variable, of motivation toward appearance was found as significantly related to both intentions to keep current weight and lose it. However, overestimating the importance of the appearance had an inverse relation with the intention to lose weight. Finally,

perceived social support and increased age were negatively related to the intention to lose weight in the group of women with normal BMI.

2.2.2.1.2. Correlates and moderators for the intention to manage weight in the group

of women with increased BMI

In the group of women with increased BMI the main task was to identify those lifestyle themes that are related to the higher intention to lose weight in the context of other variables. A multinomial logistic regression analysis was conducted to find the correlates of the intention to lose or keep current weight. Results revealed significant findings related to Adlerian lifestyle themes and the intention to lose weight (Table 15). Adlerian lifestyle themes were found as significant in relation to the intention to lose weight in the group of overweight women. The GA and TC lifestyle themes were negatively related to the intention to lose weight. The same themes, however, had a positive moderation effect between perceived higher weight and intention to lose weight. Perceived higher weight was the only other variable that was significantly related to the intention to lose weight.

Generalizing the analysis related to the second research question, overweight women with increased need for clear rules in their life and dominating character are less likely to have the intention to lose weight; however, these personality attributes have a positive effect for the relation between perceived weight situation and the intention to lose weight. For example overweight woman who need clear rules and with dominate character attributes will have more intention to lose weight if she perceives herself as being overweight.

Another part of the multinomial regression analysed the correlates of the intention to keep current weight, which seems not the best solution among overweight women. Higher scores on the BC scale were negatively related to the intention to keep current weight among overweight women (Appendix 10). Moreover increased age was positively related to the intention to keep current weight.
		В	SE	Wald	Sig.	Exp(B)	95%	6 CI
	Intercept	-5.393	11.819	.208	.648			
	Perceived weight	2.882	.986	8.552	.003	17.854	2.587	123.217
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	129	.745	.030	.863	.879	.204	3.786
	GA	262	.129	4.114	.043	.769	.597	.991
	TC	193	.098	3.912	.048	.824	.681	.998
	WR	171	.173	.979	.323	.843	.601	1.182
	BC	-1.258	.693	3.293	.070	.284	.073	1.106
	Н	.227	.221	1.051	.305	1.255	.813	1.936
	E	002	.117	.000	.985	.998	.794	1.254
	L	.259	.289	.802	.371	1.295	.735	2.283
	Р	116	.166	.493	.483	.890	.643	1.232
	S	.319	.231	1.904	.168	1.375	.875	2.163
	PerceivedxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	058	.724	.006	.936	.944	.228	3.902
	PerweightxGA	1.490	.713	4.364	.037	4.438	1.096	17.967
	PerweightxTC	1.656	.736	5.068	.024	5.240	1.239	22.162
	PerweightxWR	.643	.932	.476	.490	1.903	.306	11.823
.	PerweightxBC	.613	.557	1.212	.271	1.846	.620	5.495
Lose	PerweightxH	940	.590	2.532	.112	.391	.123	1.243
weight	PerweightxE	453	.546	.689	.407	.635	.218	1.854
	PerweightxL	816	1.012	.650	.420	.442	.061	3.214
	PerweightxP	.996	.644	2.391	.122	2.707	.766	9.567
	PerweightxS	-1.669	.974	2.936	.087	.189	.028	1.271
	Appearance	.393	.869	.204	.651	1.481	.270	8.128
	Motivation	.642	.780	.677	.410	1.900	.412	8.762
	PerweightxAppearance	537	.547	.965	.326	.584	.200	1.707
	PerweightxMotivation	.357	.525	.462	.497	1.429	.510	4.001
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	1.516	1.320	1.318	.251	4.553	.342	60.563
	PerweightXSOC ⁽⁻⁾	721	.482	2.239	.135	.486	.189	1.250
	Marital	.006	.429	.000	.989	1.006	.434	2.333
	PerweightxMarital	071	.378	.035	.852	.932	.444	1.956
	Income	491	.396	1.540	.215	.612	.282	1.329
	PerweightxIncome	.354	.492	.518	.472	1.425	.543	3.736
	Age	.012	.043	.078	.780	1.012	.930	1.101
	PerweightxAge	369	.450	.673	.412	.691	.286	1.669
	Parents	.458	.344	1.776	.183	1.581	.806	3.101
	PerweightxParents	- 444	346	1.644	.200	642	326	1.264

Table 15. Regression analysis for the intention to lose weight among overweight women, Chi-Square = 120.733, p=0.000, Cox and Snell = 0.485 (N=182)

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; Perweight = perceived weight; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = 1- single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member; Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = intention to lose weight.

2.2.3. Association between the intention to manage weight and behaviour variables

The third research question of this thesis addressed the relation between the intention to manage weight and certain type of behaviour, including healthy eating, good eating habits, physical activity, and weight controlling behaviour.

The first ANOVA analysis explored the differences of the scores of each behaviour in various groups of intentions. Before each of the analysis all outliers were excluded following the criteria presented in the appendix 11.

Results of ANOVA analysis revealed the significant differences of the behavioural variables among the various groups of intentions (see Table 16). Post hoc analysis identified that healthy eating, good eating habits and physical activity were less expressed in the group of women who had no active intention to manage weight in compare to those who had an intention to keep or lose weight, however weight controlling behaviour used were different in all three groups (Appendix 12, Table 12.1). Homogeneous subsets of healthy eating, good eating habits and physical activity among those who had an intention to keep current weight and those who had an intention to lose weight were found (see Appendix 12, Table 12.2). Therefore in the further analysis related to the intention to manage weight and these behaviours in total female sample, these groups of intentions were integrated together as one group named "having an active intention to manage weight".

	Ν	Mean	SD	SE	95% CI for	Mean
HEALTHY EATING (F	=32.296, p=0.00	0)				
nothing	379	3.1114	.59460	.03054	3.0513	3.1715
keep current	159	3.4605	.59176	.04693	3.3678	3.5532
lose weight	229	3.4294	.51377	.03395	3.3625	3.4963
Total	767	3.2787	.59394	.02145	3.2366	3.3208
GOOD EATING HABIT	S (F=14.383, P=	=0.000)				
nothing	387	5.1266	1.24642	.06336	5.0020	5.2512
keep current	161	5.6863	1.15288	.09086	5.5069	5.8658
lose weight	227	5.5077	1.23697	.08210	5.3459	5.6695
Total	775	5.3545	1.24581	.04475	5.2667	5.4424
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY	(F=27.832, p=0	.000)				
nothing	385	24.9611	20.49447	1.04449	22.9075	27.0148
keep current	152	34.9408	22.30530	1.80920	31.3662	38.5154
lose weight	220	37.6182	22.91237	1.54475	34.5737	40.6627
Total	757	30.6434	22.34073	.81199	29.0493	32.2374
WEIGHT CONTROLLI	NG BEHAVIOU	JR (F=202.026, p	o=0.000)			
nothing	390	1.4061	.29948	.01516	1.3763	1.4359
keep current	161	1.8075	.44128	.03478	1.7388	1.8761
lose weight	226	2.0205	.44713	.02974	1.9619	2.0791
Total	777	1.6680	.46666	.01674	1.6351	1.7008

Table 16. Weight-related behaviour in various groups of intention to manage weight

Note. SD = standard deviation; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval.

2.2.3.1. Association between the intention to manage weight and healthy eating

Linear regression analysis revealed the significant relation between the active intention to manage weight and healthy eating, however the regression model accounted only for 7.8 percent of the variance of healthy eating (see Table 17).

The predictive value of the intention on healthy eating was also weak in separate groups of women with various BMI, weight change and weight-related habits' change during the last year. However the best fit of the model was the group of women with (1) normal BMI (2) who reported no weight change during the last year and those (3) who improved their weight-related habits during the last year in compare to other groups (see Appendix 13).

Table 17. Linear regression analysis of intention to manage weight on healthy eating, F=64.374, p=0.000, R Square = 0.078 (N=767)

	В	SE	t	p value
(Constant)	2.781	.065	42.512	.000
Intention to manage weight	.331	.041	8.023	.000

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; Intention to manage weight = 1 - no active intention to manage weight, 2 - active intention to keep or lose weight; dependent variable = healthy eating.

Additional independent variables including personality attributes and other biopsychosocial factors were analysed in the next chapter.

2.2.3.1.1 Correlates and moderators for healthy eating

Regression analysis was conducted to evaluate the Adlerian lifestyle themes as possible correlates and moderators together with the intention to manage weight and other biopsychosocial variables for the healthy eating in the total female sample. The model accounted for 20.2 percent of the variance of healthy eating (Appendix 14).

The significance of some of Adlerian personality attributes was supported. Higher scores on supporting lifestyle themes of Striving for Perfection scale and lower scores on the scale of Harshness were related to healthy eating in total female sample group.

Some other biopsychosocial factors were also revealed as significant correlates in the model. Concern with the appearance was negatively related to healthy eating, while motivation towards appearance was related to healthy eating in a positive direction. Furthermore marital status of being single, higher income and increase in age was positively related to the more of healthy eating (Appendix 14). Further the relation between the intention to manage weight and healthy eating was analysed in two groups of women with normal and increased BMI.

2.2.3.1.1.1. Correlates and moderators for healthy eating in the group of women with normal BMI

A hierarchical regression analysis related to healthy eating was conducted in the group of women with normal BMI. Although the similarity of two intentions to keep current weight and lose weight was supported in relation to behavioural variables, when conducting analysis separately in two groups of women with normal and increased weight, intention to lose weight and intentions to keep current weight were included as separate independent variables in the regression model.

The first step of the regression included only two types of intentions to manage weight (lose or keep), lifestyle themes were included in the next step, and then interactions of each of the personality attributes and intention to keep current weight were included. In the fourth step interactions between the intention to lose weight and all lifestyle themes were included and in the final step, the other biopsychosocial variables were added into the model. The summary of each step of the regression supported the importance of intentions to manage weight, Adlerian personality attributes and other biopsychosocial variables for the healthy eating (Table 18). However, lifestyle themes had no effect between the intention to keep or lose weight and healthy eating.

Model	R	R Square	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F Change	Sig. E Change
			Square		Change		r Change
1	.269	.072	.069	.57590	.072	20.545	.000
2	.360	.130	.110	.56314	.057	3.415	.000
3	.381	.145	.108	.56366	.015	.905	.529
4	.392	.153	.099	.56650	.008	.493	.895
5	.443	.196	.132	.55588	.043	3.739	.001

Table 18. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on healthy eating in the group of women with normal BMI: coefficients of each step

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

The final regression model was included with all the correlates and interaction variables to measure the moderation effect of various personality attributes for the intention to keep current or lose weight and healthy eating (Table 19). Both intention to keep current weight and intention to lose weight were positively related to healthy eating. Harshness was the only significant personality attribute negatively related to healthy eating. No moderation effect of personality was supported in the relation between the weight management intentions and healthy eating (Table 19).

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	2.552	.852		2.996	.003
keep current weight	.304	.066	.219	4.615	.000
lose weight	.304	.065	.225	4.649	.000
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.098	.068	.136	1.440	.151
GA	8.540E-005	.010	.001	.009	.993
TC	.001	.008	.016	.177	.860
WR	.000	.016	.001	.009	.993
BC	.068	.057	.094	1.191	.234
Н	041	.019	177	-2.217	.027
E	009	.010	065	928	.354
L	012	.027	067	441	.659
Р	.017	.013	.094	1.243	.215
S	.021	.016	.120	1.298	.195
KeepxBSI	.094	.094	.078	1.003	.317
KeepxGA	083	.090	072	929	.354
KeepxTC	.132	.094	.116	1.405	.161
KeepxWR	021	.165	017	127	.899
KeepxBC	047	.082	038	571	.569
КеерхН	.042	.082	.036	.519	.604
KeepxE	105	.078	078	-1.335	.182
KeepxL	075	.152	064	494	.621
KeepxP	.064	.078	.052	.825	.410
KeepxS	024	.098	019	248	.805
LosexBSI	065	.086	058	749	.454
LosexGA	.053	.086	.050	.612	.541
LosexTC	.013	.081	.012	.161	.872
LosexWR	.028	.159	.023	.177	.859
LosexBC	.018	.080	.016	.229	.819
LosexH	.007	.080	.006	.088	.930
LosexE	.071	.067	.066	1.053	.293
LosexL	080	.152	068	527	.599
LosexP	060	.074	054	810	.419
LosexS	083	.086	079	967	.334
Appearance	110	.050	117	-2.211	.027
Motivation	.138	.046	.160	3.036	.003
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	162	.080	097	-2.008	.045
Marital	066	.030	099	-2.192	.029
Income	.032	.022	.064	1.474	.141
Age	.007	.003	.105	2.276	.023
Parents	.026	.023	.048	1.124	.262

Table 19. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for the healthy eating among women with normal BMI (N=530)

Note.^(\circ) = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = 1- single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member; Parents= Parents' weight situation; dependent variable = healthy eating.

Other biopsychosocial variables were also found as significant correlates of healthy eating among normal weight women. Women who were more concerned with their appearance used to eat less healthy, while motivation towards appearance was positively related to healthy eating. Moreover, women who were single, perceived more social support, and had increased age were more likely to eat healthy (Table 19).

2.2.3.1.1.2. Correlates and moderators for healthy eating in the group of women with increased BMI

In the group of women with increased BMIa hierarchic regression analysis with the same independent variables in various steps was used and included Adlerian lifestyle themes, interaction with the two types of intention, and other biopsychosocial variables. The final model explained 37.8 percent of the variance of healthy eating (see Table 20).

Table 20. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on healthy eating in the group of women with increased BMI: coefficients of each step

Model	R	R Square	Adjusted R Square	SE	R Square Change	F Change	Sig. F Change
1	.270	.073	.063	.54048	.073	7.004	.001
2	.485	.235	.181	.50532	.162	3.564	.000
3	.515	.265	.163	.51075	.030	.645	.774
4	.566	.320	.173	.50757	.055	1.199	.296
5	.618	.382	.211	.49581	.062	2.015	.057

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

In the group of women with increased BMI, the final step of regression analysis revealed several significant correlates (Table 21). First, the intention to lose weight (but not the intention to keep current) was positively related to healthy eating. Personality attribute of GA was supported as negative correlate for healthy eating, however, it has a positive effect on the relation between the intention to keep current weight and healthy eating.

From the other variables, only marital status of being single was related to healthy eating (Table 21).

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	6.828	1.474		4.631	.000
keep current weight	.040	.186	.023	.216	.829
lose weight	.216	.091	.194	2.385	.018
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	135	.110	200	-1.224	.223
GA	033	.017	299	-1.952	.050
TC	007	.013	089	576	.565
WR	033	.029	340	-1.128	.261
BC	192	.109	291	-1.769	.079
Н	050	.035	223	-1.422	.157
E	.015	.016	.110	.911	.364
L	.029	.046	.182	.632	.528
Р	.032	.021	.188	1.542	.125
S	048	.031	268	-1.568	.119
KeepxBSI	.207	.199	.152	1.040	.300
KeepxGA	.475	.230	.223	2.069	.040
KeepxTC	.138	.197	.085	.699	.486
KeepxWR	.215	.476	.132	.452	.652
KeepxBC	.078	.244	.053	.321	.748
KeepxH	.162	.261	.100	.619	.537
Keepx E	202	.181	135	-1.117	.266
KeepxL	151	.509	090	297	.767
KeepxP	009	.218	006	043	.966
KeepxS	.354	.201	.226	1.763	.080
LosexBSI	.038	.129	.043	.291	.772
LosexGA	.235	.122	.291	1.934	.055
LosexTC	.191	.127	.240	1.509	.133
LosexWR	.019	.219	.024	.086	.931
LosexBC	.147	.129	.181	1.137	.257
LosexH	.175	.119	.210	1.477	.142
LosexE	015	.098	018	156	.876
LosexL	033	.211	041	157	.875
LosexP	035	.108	034	322	.748
LosexS	.232	.138	.256	1.681	.095
Appearance	175	.091	189	-1.912	.058
Motivation	.104	.078	.123	1.343	.181
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	.031	.138	.020	.224	.823
Marital	089	.045	148	-1.987	.049
Income	.046	.040	.091	1.154	.250
Age	.004	.005	.088	.997	.321
Parents	.047	.038	.096	1.236	.218

Table 21. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for the healthy eating among women with increased BMI (N=181)

Note.^(c) = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = healthy eating.

2.2.3.2. Association between intention to manage weight and good eating habits

The linear regression analysis which was conducted in the total female sample with the intention to manage weight as an independent variable, only accounted for 3.3 percent of the variance of good eating habits (see Table 22).

Table 22. Linear regression analysis of the intention to manage weight on good eating habits, F=26.728, p=0.000, R Square = 0.033 (N=775)

	В	SE	t	p value
(Constant)	4.671	.139	33.541	.000
ntention to manage weight	.455	.088	5.170	.000

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; Intention to manage weight = 1 - no active intention to manage weight, 2 - active intention to keep or lose weight; dependent variable = good eating habits.

The predictive value of the intention to manage weight on good eating habits was explored in the separate groups of women in relation to their BMI, weight and weight-related habits change during the last year (Appendix 15). The model did not fit the data in the group of underweight women, related behaviour changes during the past year or those women whose eating behaviour got worse during the past year. The best fit of the model and data was found in the groups of women with normal BMI, who reported weight gain or improvement of the habits during the last year. However, the explained variance was quite small (Appendix 15).

2.2.3.2.1 Correlates and moderators for good eating habits

A linear regression analysis on good eating habits was conducted with the independent variables of the intention to manage weight, personality and other biopsychosocial factors as well as their interaction with the intention to manage weight. The model accounted for 16.9 percent of the variance (see Appendix 16).

Intention to manage weight was related to better eating habits. Striving for perfection supporting lifestyle theme that was positively related to better eating habits. Other situational variables were found as significant correlates. Motivation towards appearance and increased age was related to better eating habits, while being concerned with the appearance was inversely related to good eating habits (Appendix 16).

2.2.3.2.1.1. Correlates and moderators for good eating habits in the group of women with normal BMI

In the group of women with normal BMI, the hierarchical regression analysis was conducted. The first step included the intention to keep and lose weight as two independent variables, lifestyle themes were added in the second step and third and fourth step included interactions of lifestyle themes and two types of intentions and the final fifth step included other biopsychosocial variables. The summary of each step of the analysis and the improvement of the model in each step is presented in Table 23. The same as with the healthy eating, lifestyle themes and other biopsychosocial variables were supported as those who added a significant value for the model, while significant moderating role of the lifestyle themes were not supported (according to the F change, see Table 24).

Table 24. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on good eating habits in the group of women with normal BMI: coefficients of each step (N=538)

Model	R	R Square	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F Change	Sig.
			Square		Change		F Change
1	.203	.041	.037	1.21512	.041	11.460	.000
2	.342	.117	.097	1.17722	.076	4.501	.000
3	.369	.136	.099	1.17559	.019	1.145	.326
4	.399	.159	.106	1.17119	.023	1.387	.183
5	.440	.193	.130	1.15524	.034	3.006	.004

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = standard error.

The coefficients of the final step of the hierarchical analysis are presented in the table 25. Both the intention to keep current and the intention to lose weight were positively related to better eating habits. This result might indicate that the intention to lose weight (even when) being of normal BMI leads to welcomed outcome behaviour (good eating). Striving for perfection was supported as a significant supporting theme related to good eating habits. The BSI lifestyle theme was found to have a positive effect on the relation between the intention to lose weight and good eating habits.

Talking about the other biopsychosocial variables, motivation towards appearance and increased age were those positively related to better eating habits (Table 25).

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	2.154	1.739		1.239	.216
keep current weight	.575	.136	.199	4.234	.000
lose weight	.389	.136	.138	2.871	.004
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.172	.138	.115	1.242	.215
GA	.024	.020	.104	1.195	.233
TC	.030	.016	.164	1.898	.058
WR	032	.033	148	987	.324
BC	029	.117	019	251	.802
Н	037	.037	078	988	.324
E	.005	.020	.016	.231	.817
L	004	.054	012	082	.935
Р	.071	.027	.195	2.610	.009
S	.027	.034	.074	.808	.420
KeepxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	076	.192	031	397	.692
KeepxGA	.090	.185	.037	.489	.625
KeepxTC	047	.192	020	245	.807
KeepxWR	119	.329	047	360	.719
KeepxBC	026	.170	010	155	.877
КеерхН	.188	.166	.078	1.132	.258
Keepx E	074	.159	027	466	.642
KeepxL	.186	.305	.076	.611	.541
KeepxP	216	.161	083	-1.342	.180
KeepxS	129	.201	050	640	.523
LosexBSI ⁽⁻⁾	485	.181	205	-2.676	.008
LosexGA	193	.179	087	-1.082	.280
LosexTC	247	.168	112	-1.472	.142
LosexWR	036	.330	014	109	.913
LosexBC	075	.166	030	455	.649
LosexH	.187	.166	.079	1.125	.261
LosexE	122	.139	054	871	.384
LosexL	030	.315	012	094	.925
LosexP	202	.155	087	-1.304	.193
LosexS	.062	.179	.028	.347	.729
Appearance	105	.103	054	-1.026	.306
Motivation	.196	.093	.111	2.112	.035
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	165	.166	048	991	.322
Marital	.032	.062	.023	.509	.611
Income	.033	.045	.031	.727	.468
Age	.022	.006	.157	3.398	.001
Parents	.008	.047	.007	.171	.864

Table 25. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for good eating habits among women with normal BMI (N=538)

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = good eating habits.

2.2.3.2.1.2. Correlates and moderators for good eating habits in the group of women with increased BMI

A hierarchical regression analysis for good eating habits in the group of overweight women was conducted and resulted in the final model accounting for 35.7 percent of the variance of the good eating habits (see Table 26). Statistical information on each of the steps of the regression analysis supported the significance of lifestyle themes (2nd step) and other biopsychosocial variables (5th step) for good eating habits. However an explained variance of the good eating habits was not increased significantly by the interactions of lifestyle themes and the intention to lose (3rd step) or keep current (4th step) weight.

Table 26. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on good eating habits in the group of women with increased BMI: coefficients of each step (N=181)

Model	R	R Square	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F Change	Sig.
			Square		Change		F Change
1	.192	.037	.026	1.27642	.037	3.404	.035
2	.422	.178	.120	1.21351	.142	2.893	.002
3	.448	.201	.089	1.23416	.022	.443	.923
4	.515	.265	.106	1.22300	.064	1.290	.241
5	.597	.357	.179	1.17209	.092	2.876	.008

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

Regression coefficients of the 5th model were presented in the table 27. Intention to lose weight, but not the intention to keep current weight was found as significant correlate for good eating habits among overweight women. The TC lifestyle theme was negatively related to good eating habits. The supporting theme of Striving for Perfection was positively related to good eating habits. It was also found that the TC theme had a positive effect on the relation between the intention to keep current weight and good eating habits, while Entitlement and Striving for Perfection used to decrease the relation between the intention to lose weight and good eating habits (see Table 27).

Women concerned with their appearance was inversely related to good eating habits while motivation toward appearance was positively related to good eating habits (Table 27).

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	4.976	3.494		1.424	.157
keep current weight	037	.440	009	083	.934
lose weight	.589	.214	.228	2.752	.007
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	357	.256	229	-1.396	.165
GA	003	.040	013	080	.936
TC	061	.030	323	-2.050	.042
WR	032	.067	146	481	.631
BC	.207	.257	.136	.807	.421
Н	.056	.082	.107	.677	.500
Е	.034	.039	.109	.881	.380
L	005	.106	015	052	.959
Р	.126	.049	.319	2.567	.011
S	007	.073	017	094	.925
KeepxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	114	.468	036	244	.808
KeepxGA	.281	.542	.057	.518	.605
KeepxTC	1.031	.466	.276	2.214	.028
KeepxWR	018	1.122	005	016	.987
KeepxBC	178	.576	052	309	.758
КеерхН	481	.616	129	780	.437
Keepx E	733	.429	212	-1.708	.090
KeepxL	.041	1.201	.011	.034	.973
KeepxP	271	.516	077	525	.601
KeepxS	752	.476	207	-1.579	.117
LosexBSI ⁽⁻⁾	293	.303	143	968	.335
LosexGA	015	.288	008	052	.959
LosexTC	.318	.299	.173	1.063	.290
LosexWR	.562	.512	.314	1.098	.274
LosexBC	391	.306	207	-1.280	.203
LosexH	003	.278	001	010	.992
LosexE	511	.234	255	-2.181	.031
LosexL	261	.493	139	529	.598
LosexP	630	.256	268	-2.462	.015
LosexS	261	.329	124	792	.430
Appearance	664	.216	313	-3.082	.002
Motivation	.395	.184	.202	2.151	.033
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	267	.327	074	815	.416
Marital	160	.107	115	-1.496	.137
Income	.059	.094	.051	.630	.530
Age	.016	.011	.137	1.531	.128
Parents	.099	.089	.087	1.107	.270

Table 27. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for good eating habits among women with increased BMI (N=181)

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivational towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = good eating habits.

2.2.3.3. Association between intention to manage weight and physical activity

The linear regression analysis revealed a significant relationship between active intention to manage weight and physical activity, however the regression model accounted only for 6.7 percent of the variance of physical activity (Table 28).

Table 28. Linear regression analysis of intention to manage weight on physical activity, F=54.253, p=0.000, R Square = 0.067 (N=757)

	В	SE	t	p value
(Constant)	13.398	2.469	5.426	.000
ntention to manage weight	11.563	1.570	7.366	.000

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; Intention to manage weight = 1 - no active intention to manage weight, 2 - active intention to keep or lose weight; dependent variable = physical activity.

Intention used to account for less of the variance of physical activity in separate groups of women in relation to their BMI, weight and habits' change during the last year (Appendix 17).

2.2.3.3.1 Correlates and moderators for physical activity

The hierarchical regression analysis with the intention to manage weight, lifestyle themes, and interaction with the intention to manage weight, as well as other biopsychosocial variables was calculated to predict physical activity. The model accounted for 15.2 percent of the variance of physical activity (see Appendix 18).

Additional regression analysis including the intention to manage weight as independent variable and physical activity as dependent variable in three groups yielded a positive moderation effect of BC lifestyle theme on the relation between the intention to manage weight and physical activity.

Motivation towards appearance was positively related to higher physical activity while marital status of being married and increased age were related to lower physical activity (see Appendix 18).

2.2.3.3.1.1. Correlates and moderators for physical activity in the group of women with normal BMI

The hierarchical regression analysis with the same variables was conducted in the group of women with normal BMI. The coefficients of the each step of the regression analysis indicated that the intentions to manage weight and other than personality biopsychosocial variables were those that significantly increased the explained variance of physical activity in the group of women with normal BMI.

Table 29. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on physical activity in the group of women with increased BMI: coefficients of each step (N=181)

Model	R	R Square	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F Change	Sig.
			Square		Change		F Change
1	.268	.072	.068	21.36851	.072	20.148	.000
2	.308	.095	.073	21.30750	.023	1.299	.228
3	.328	.107	.068	21.36683	.013	.716	.710
4	.350	.122	.065	21.39992	.015	.845	.585
5	.438	.192	.127	20.68233	.070	5.962	.000

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

However, significance of several included variables for physical activity was revealed (Table 30). First, both intentions to keep current and lose weight were positively related to physical activity.

BC has a positive moderation effect on the relation between the intention to keep current weight and physical activity, which means that oversensitive women (high scores of BC) used to choose physical activity if they wanted to keep their current weight more often in compare to those with lower BC scores.

Analysis of the other biopsychosocial variables revealed significant positive relationships between the motivation towards appearance and physical activity while concern with the appearance was negatively related to physical activity. Finally those women who were married and older reported less physical activity (Table 30).

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	55.325	31.127		1.777	.076
keep current weight	10.178	2.486	.195	4.094	.000
lose weight	9.180	2.458	.181	3.735	.000
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	1.570	2.482	.059	.633	.527
GA	673	.362	163	-1.858	.064
TC	169	.288	051	589	.556
WR	.003	.599	.001	.006	.995
BC	730	2.096	027	348	.728
Н	280	.662	033	423	.673
E	052	.367	010	141	.888
L	163	.982	025	166	.868
Р	247	.491	038	503	.615
S	1.042	.601	.161	1.734	.084
KeepxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	-4.058	3.466	091	-1.171	.242
KeepxGA	.479	3.332	.011	.144	.886
KeepxTC	2.320	3.577	.054	.649	.517
KeepxWR	-3.815	6.101	084	625	.532
KeepxBC	6.115	3.093	.129	1.977	.049
KeepxH	.454	3.033	.010	.150	.881
Keepx E	-2.685	2.939	054	914	.361
KeepxL	159	5.603	004	028	.977
KeepxP	1.403	2.915	.030	.481	.631
KeepxS	-2.247	3.618	049	621	.535
LosexBSI ⁽⁻⁾	282	3.215	007	088	.930
LosexGA	4.969	3.235	.126	1.536	.125
LosexTC	2.324	3.057	.059	.760	.448
LosexWR	-5.027	5.982	111	840	.401
LosexBC	5.308	2.987	.121	1.777	.076
LosexH	332	2.988	008	111	.912
LosexE	.538	2.534	.013	.212	.832
LosexL	1.667	5.717	.038	.292	.771
LosexP	333	2.782	008	120	.905
LosexS	-2.302	3.204	058	718	.473
Appearance	-5.475	1.887	157	-2.902	.004
Motivation	7.463	1.718	.235	4.345	.000
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	-2.157	2.996	035	720	.472
Marital	-3.511	1.122	142	-3.130	.002
Income	609	.834	032	731	.465
Age	259	.117	103	-2.204	.028
Parents	295	.848	015	349	.727

Table 30. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for physical activity among women with normal BMI (N=525)

Note.^(\circ) = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = physical activity.

2.2.3.3.1.2. Correlates and moderators for physical activity in the group of women with increased BMI

After conducting hierarchical regression with the same variables in the group of women with increased weight, the significant R Square change was found only when the intention to keep and the intention to lose weight were included (1st step, Table 31). Variables included in the next steps (2nd – lifestyle themes, 3rd - interaction of themes and an intention to keep current weight, 4th - interaction of themes and an intention to lose weight, and 5th - other biopsychosocial variables) did not increased the explained variance of physical activity significantly (p (F Change)>0.05). However, the independent variables of the final model explained 31.4 percent of the variance of physical activity.

Table 31. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on physical activity in the group of women with increased BMI: coefficients of each step (N=177)

Model	R	R Square	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F Change	Sig.
			Square		Change		F Change
1	.292	.085	.075	21.52	.085	8.129	.000
2	.409	.167	.106	21.16	.082	1.606	.109
3	.482	.232	.123	20.96	.065	1.310	.230
4	.541	.293	.136	20.80	.061	1.238	.272
5	.561	.314	.119	21.00	.021	.607	.749

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

In the final regression model intention to lose weight was significantly related to higher physical activity (Table 32).

The TC theme was the only other significant correlate for physical activity. Women who had the elevated scores on the TC theme were less physical active. However at the same time the tendency (p<0.1) of the positive moderation effect of TC on the relation between intention to lose weight and physical activity was noticed (see Table 32). Additional regression analysis revealed that in the group of overweight women who reported elevated scores on the TC theme, there was the strongest association between the intention to lose weight and physical activity.

There were no other biopsychosocial variables related to physical activity (Table 32).

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	171.960	62.779		2.739	.007
keep current weight	7.846	8.354	.109	.939	.349
lose weight	9.723	3.882	.217	2.504	.013
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	-3.530	4.598	130	768	.444
GA	-1.097	.735	249	-1.493	.138
TC	-1.124	.543	340	-2.068	.041
WR	091	1.213	023	075	.940
BC	-8.883	4.613	340	-1.925	.056
Н	.136	1.491	.015	.091	.927
Е	549	.693	102	792	.430
L	571	1.902	088	300	.764
Р	1.218	.874	.180	1.394	.166
S	-1.794	1.294	252	-1.386	.168
KeepxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	2.913	8.493	.054	.343	.732
KeepxGA	-4.918	9.915	057	496	.621
KeepxTC	5.235	8.403	.082	.623	.534
KeepxWR	19.786	20.484	.265	.966	.336
KeepxBC	4.147	10.419	.071	.398	.691
КеерхН	12.793	11.061	.189	1.157	.249
Keepx E	3.667	7.715	.062	.475	.635
KeepxL	-25.040	23.054	311	-1.086	.279
KeepxP	11.094	9.714	.185	1.142	.255
KeepxS	7.172	8.517	.115	.842	.401
LosexBSI ⁽⁻⁾	-3.811	5.628	108	677	.499
LosexGA	7.782	5.279	.240	1.474	.143
LosexTC	10.156	5.499	.313	1.847	.067
LosexWR	-12.438	9.209	405	-1.351	.179
LosexBC	6.644	5.494	.206	1.209	.229
LosexH	.203	5.074	.006	.040	.968
LosexE	940	4.234	027	222	.825
LosexL	15.674	8.852	.489	1.771	.079
LosexP	-1.769	4.586	044	386	.700
LosexS	-3.714	5.906	102	629	.531
Appearance	4.209	3.875	.115	1.086	.279
Motivation	-1.609	3.316	048	485	.628
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	-5.380	5.941	087	906	.367
Marital	086	1.956	004	044	.965
Income	-1.498	1.692	074	886	.377
Age	092	.195	044	473	.637
Parents	435	1.614	022	269	.788

Table 32. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for physical activity among women with increased BMI (N=177)

Note.^(\circ) = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = physical activity.

2.2.3.4. Association between intention to manage weight and weight controlling behaviour

A linear regression analysis was used in total women sample to explore the relation between the intention to manage weight and weight controlling behaviour in the total female sample. Women with the intention to keep current weight and the intention to lose weight were not found as homogeneous sample in relation to weight controlling behaviour (see Appendix 12, table 12.2). Therefore, the two independent variables for the intention to keep current weight and having an intention to lose weight were included in the regression analysis. The model accounted for 34.3 percent of the variance of weight controlling behaviour (see Table 33).

Table 33. Linear regression model of intention to manage weight on the weight controlling behaviour, F=202.026, p=0.000, R Square = 0.343 (N=777)

	В	SE	t	p value
(Constant)	1.406	.019	73.316	.000
Intention to lose weight	.614	.032	19.404	.000
Intention to keep weight	.401	.035	11.313	.000

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; dependent variable = weight controlling behaviour.

An additional regression analysis was run to assess the relation between the two types of intention to manage weight (to keep current or to lose) and weight controlling behaviour in the separate groups of women with various BMI, weight change and weight-related habits' change during the past year (see appendix 20). The intention to keep current and lose weight explained the largest variance of weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with decreased BMI or normal BMI, among those women whose weight stayed the same or who lost some weight during the last year. However explained variance of weight controlling behaviour did not differ among various groups of habits' change during the past year (Appendix 19).

2.2.3.4.1 Correlates and moderators for weight controlling behaviour

A hierarchical regression analysis was conducted to explore the possible correlates and moderators for weight controlling behaviour. Intention to keep current weight and to lose weight, lifestyle themes, and their interactions with the two types of intentions to manage weight and biopsychosocial variables and were stepwise included in the model. The model accounted for 40.9 percent of the variance of weight controlling behaviour (see Table 34).

Model	R	R Square	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F Change	Sig.
			Square		Change		F Change
1	.586	.343	.341	.37874	.343	202.026	.000
2	.600	.359	.349	.37640	.017	1.969	.034
3	.606	.367	.349	.37659	.008	.920	.514
4	.616	.379	.352	.37561	.012	1.398	.177
5	.639	.409	.377	.36819	.030	5.324	.000

Table 34. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on weight controlling behaviour in the total female sample (N=777)

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

The final regression model for weight controlling behaviour in the total women sample indicated that both intentions to keep current and to lose weight were related to more of weight controlling behaviour. However, there were no lifestyle themes related to weight controlling behaviour or intention to lose or keep current weight and weight controlling behaviour (see Appendix 20). The biopsychosocial variables positively related to weight controlling behaviours included concern with the appearance, increased age and higher parents' weight (Appendix 20).

2.2.3.4.1.1. Correlates and moderators for weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with normal BMI

The same hierarchical regression analysis was conducted in the group of women with normal BMI. Including lifestyle themes and biopsychosocial variables added a significant part of the explained variance of weight controlling behaviour in the model (Table 35). The final model accounted for 43.4 percent of the variance of weight controlling behaviour.

R R Square Adjusted R SE R Square F Change Sig. Model F Change Square Change 1 .588 .346 .343 .36222 .346 142.268 .000 2 .380 .366 .002 .616 .35601 .034 2.893 3 .622 .361 .838 .387 .35747 .007 .570 4 629 396 .358 .35817 .797 .009 .631 5 .659 .434 .390 34913 .038 4.806 .000

Table 35. The summary of the hierarchical regression model on weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with normal BMI (N=541).

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

Both intention to keep current and lose weight were related to the weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with normal BMI.

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	1.080	.522		2.070	.039
keep current weight	.384	.041	.368	9.372	.000
lose weight	.542	.041	.531	13.281	.000
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.053	.042	.099	1.266	.206
GA	008	.006	100	-1.372	.171
TC	.002	.005	.036	.501	.616
WR	008	.010	101	806	.421
BC	.013	.035	.023	.360	.719
Н	012	.011	073	-1.113	.266
E	.000	.006	002	043	.965
L	002	.016	012	096	.924
Р	.009	.008	.066	1.066	.287
S	.004	.010	.033	.434	.665
KeepxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	055	.058	062	954	.340
KeepxGA	008	.056	009	146	.884
KeepxTC	008	.058	009	135	.893
KeepxWR	.065	.099	.071	.654	.514
KeepxBC	.021	.051	.022	.410	.682
KeepxH	.010	.050	.011	.195	.845
Keepx_E	.033	.048	.033	.690	.491
KeepxL	048	.092	054	525	.600
KeepxP	048	.048	051	984	.326
KeepxS	026	.061	028	432	.666
LosexBSI ⁽⁻⁾	063	.054	075	-1.176	.240
LosexGA	054	.054	068	995	.320
LosexTC	.010	.051	.013	.204	.838
LosexWR	.037	.099	.040	.373	.709
LosexBC	093	.050	105	-1.861	.063
LosexH	.028	.050	.033	.563	.574
LosexE	041	.042	050	971	.332
LosexL	048	.095	054	512	.609
LosexP	.013	.046	.015	.274	.784
LosexS	026	.055	031	467	.641
Appearance	.052	.031	.074	1.692	.091
Motivation	.075	.028	.117	2.681	.008
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	014	.050	011	279	.780
Marital	035	.019	070	-1.857	.064
Income	001	.014	002	061	.952
Age	.003	.002	.061	1.575	.116
Parents	.045	.014	.111	3.154	.002

Table 36. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with normal BMI (N=541)

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = weight controlling behaviour.

The final regression model indicated that normal weight women who were more motivated towards their appearance and reported their parents' lower weight, tended to be more involved in weight controlling behaviour (see Table 36).

These results also showed that women with healthy weight (BMI in normal range) who had an intention to keep that weight (which indicated congruence between the weight and intention) or lose it (which indicated incongruence between weight and intention) used to be involved in weight controlling behaviour more often (Table 36).

2.2.3.4.1.2. Correlates and moderators for weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with increased BMI

The hierarchical regression analysis was included with two types of intentions (to keep current or lose weight), lifestyle themes, two types of intentions and, biopsychosocial variables in the group of women with increased BMI. The summary of each model indicated no significant change in explained variance in any of the steps (p (F change)>0.05), see Table 37). This regression model (Table 38) explained 40.4 percent of the variance of weight controlling behaviour.

Table 37. The	e summary o	of the hier	archical	regression	model or	ı weight	controlling	behaviour	in
the group of	women with	increase	d BMI (N	<i>I=180)</i> .					

Model	R	R Sc	quare	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F Change	Sig. E Change
				Square		Change		r Change
1		509	.259	.250	.41786	.259	30.898	.000
2		545	.297	.247	.41887	.039	.915	.521
3		592	.350	.259	.41551	.053	1.271	.251
4		624	.389	.256	.41628	.039	.941	.497
5		636	.404	.238	.42124	.015	.509	.827

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; SE = Standard error.

Two significant correlates for weight controlling behaviour including intention to lose weight and higher scores on Harshness supporting lifestyle theme were supported in the group of overweight women. Moreover, additional regression analysis in various groups revealed that WR had negative and Liked by all positive effect on the relation between the intention to keep current weight and weight controlling behaviour (Table 38).

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	1.370	1.252		1.095	.276
keep current weight	.302	.158	.197	1.913	.058
lose weight	.507	.077	.526	6.566	.000
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	041	.091	071	456	.649
GA	.004	.014	.038	.260	.795
TC	015	.011	214	-1.434	.154
WR	.028	.024	.330	1.143	.255
BC	096	.092	170	-1.045	.298
Н	.063	.030	.323	2.125	.035
Е	005	.014	038	328	.743
L	023	.038	168	608	.544
Р	013	.018	090	754	.452
S	001	.026	007	044	.965
KeepxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	.038	.168	.033	.227	.821
KeepxGA	038	.195	021	195	.846
KeepxTC	.133	.167	.096	.795	.428
KeepxWR	992	.403	708	-2.460	.015
KeepxBC	.301	.207	.238	1.456	.148
КеерхН	075	.221	054	340	.734
Keepx_E	.249	.154	.193	1.616	.108
KeepxL	.930	.432	.640	2.154	.033
KeepxP	.068	.185	.052	.365	.716
KeepxS	.235	.170	.173	1.376	.171
LosexBSI ⁽⁻⁾	.012	.109	.015	.107	.915
LosexGA	086	.104	116	827	.410
LosexTC	.085	.107	.118	.791	.431
LosexWR	149	.184	218	807	.421
LosexBC	.106	.110	.150	.961	.338
LosexH	156	.100	215	-1.553	.123
LosexE	.000	.085	.000	002	.999
LosexL	.050	.177	.071	.284	.777
LosexP	062	.092	070	668	.505
LosexS	.108	.117	.137	.920	.359
Appearance	011	.077	014	144	.886
Motivation	.028	.066	.037	.417	.677
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	161	.117	121	-1.380	.170
Marital	.001	.038	.002	.032	.974
Income	.022	.034	.052	.665	.507
Age	001	.004	014	157	.875
Parents	.028	.032	.065	.860	.391

Table 38. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for weight controlling behavior in the group of women with increased BMI (N=180)

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = weight controlling behaviour.

2.2.4. Interrelatedness of Intuitive Eating, weight-related behaviour and Adlerian lifestyle

The fourth research question addressed the interrelatedness of the Intuitive Eating, behaviour variables (healthy eating, good eating habits, physical activity and weight controlling behaviour), and Adlerian lifestyle themes.

2.2.4.1 Association between Intuitive eating and weight-related behaviours

A number of significant relations between general score as well as subscales of the intuitive eating and other behavioural variables were revealed (see Table 39). General score on the Intuitive eating instrument was positively related to good eating habits and negatively to the weight controlling behaviour. Unconditional permission to eat scale was negatively related to all the included behaviour, while other scales of Intuitive eating were related to the behaviours in various directions.

Table 39. Pearson correlations of the general score and subscales of the Intuitive eating and behavioural variables in total women sample

	General					
	Score for		Subscales f	Subscales for Intuitive Eating		
	Intuitive Eating	UPE	EPR	RHSC	B-FCC	
Healthy eating	0.043	-0.383**	0.076*	0.107*	0.458*	
Good eating habits	0.209**	-0.216**	0.342**	0.134**	0.168*	
Physical activity	-0.040	-0.216**	-0.025	0.025	0.183**	
Weight controlling	-0.363**	-0.489**	-0.230**	-0.271**	0.146**	

Note. *= Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed); ** = correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed); UPE = Unconditional permission to eat; EPR = Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons, RHSC = Reliance on hunger and satiety cues; B-FCC = Body-Food Congruence subscale.

Relations between the intuitive eating scales and weight related behaviour variables were explored in separate groups of women with decreased, normal and increased BMI (see Appendix 21). Some differences of these relations in between the groups were found. Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and reliance of the hunger and satiety cues were significantly related to healthier eating in the group of women with increased BMI. However, the same two scales of intuitive eating were negatively related to the weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with normal BMI.

2.2.4.2 Association between Intuitive eating and Adlerian lifestyle themes

A Pearson correlation was used to explore the association of general score of the intuitive eating instrument and Adlerian lifestyle themes. The findings included positive relations with BSI, GA major lifestyle theme and the supporting Striving for Perfection and Softness lifestyle themes with the Intuitive eating scales. Additional findings included and negative/inverse relationships with total scores on the Intuitive eating inventory and the BC and Harshness themes (see table 40).

		General Score for Intuitive		Subscales for 1	Intuitive Eating	
		Eating	UPE	EPR	RHSC	B-FCC
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	-0.131**	0.071*	-0.186**	-0.073*	-0.108*
	GA	0.107**	0.023	0.178**	0.013	-0.042
	TC	-0.046	-0.096**	-0.051	0.003	0.071*
Adlanian	WR	-0.040	0.014	-0.107**	0.018	0.061
	BC	-0.131**	0.046	-0.224**	-0.014	-0.060
lifestyle	Н	-0.164**	0.047	-0.243**	-0.057	-0.104**
themes	Е	-0.024	-0.090*	0.008	-0.021	0.042
	L	-0.057	0.044	-0.141**	0.014	0.030
	Р	0.152**	-0.090*	0.142**	0.176**	0.182**
	S	0.171**	-0.057	0.260**	0.057	0.103**

Table 40. Pearson correlations of the general score and subscales of the Intuitive eating Adlerian lifestyle themes in total women sample

Note. *= Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed); ** = correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed); (·) = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variable; UPE = Unconditional permission to eat; EPR = Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons; RHSC = Reliance on hunger and satiety cues; B-FCC = Body-Food Congruence subscale; BSI =. Belonging/social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness.

In addition the subscales of intuitive eating and unconditional permission to eat were negatively related to BSI, TC, and the supporting themes of Entitlement and Striving for Perfection. Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons was positively related to BSI, GA, Striving for Perfection and Softness themes. Negative relations were supported with WR, BC, Harshness and Liked by all lifestyle supporting themes. Reliance on hunger and satiety was positively related to BSI and Striving for Perfection lifestyle supporting theme. Body-food congruence was positively related to BSI, TC, WR, Striving for Perfection and Softness supporting lifestyle themes and negatively to the harshness theme (see Table 40).

2.2.4.3 Association between Intuitive eating and weight management intention

In the model this relation was not included, however additional analysis was conducted trying to identify if Intuitive eating was related to the weight-related intention. An ANOVA analysis revealed a significant differences of intuitive eating between all the groups of various intentions to manage weight (Table 41, for post hoc see Appendix 22).

Table 41. Comparison of the general score of Intuitive eating in various groups of intentions, F=36.545, p=0.000, (N=780)

	Ν	Mean	SD	SE	95%	CI
nothing	390	3.5715	.56224	.02847	3.5155	3.6274
keep current	161	3.4402	.56473	.04451	3.3523	3.5281
lose weight	229	3.1838	.49880	.03296	3.1188	3.2487
Total	780	3.4305	.56924	.02038	3.3905	3.4706

Note. SD = standard deviation; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; nothing = no intention to manage weight; keep current = intention to keep current weight; lose weight = intention to lose weight.

The analysis was conducted on all correlates and moderators to identify the relationship between intention to manage weight and intuitive eating. All the lifestyle themes, other biopsychosocial variables and their interaction with the intention were included as possible predictors in the linear regression model (see Appendix 23).

Further the regression analysis with included only significant variables was conducted and explained 26.2 percent of the variance of Intuitive Eating (Table 42).

Intention to manage weight, being concerned with the appearance and perceived higher parents' weight were negatively related to the intuitive eating (see Table 42). However, the variables of being more motivated towards appearance, married and having higher income were positively related to the higher scores on intuitive eating scales.

Table 42. Linear regression analysis on the general score of the Intuitive eating, F=39.108, p=0.000, R Square = 0.262 (N=780)

	В	SE	t	p value
(Constant)	4.541	.158	28.690	.000
Intention	168	.021	-7.880	.000
Appearance	335	.033	-10.018	.000
Motivation	.199	.031	6.443	.000
SOC	175	.052	-3.349	.001
Marital	.054	.020	2.647	.008
Income	.036	.015	2.356	.019
Parents' weight	057	.016	-3.643	.000

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; Intention = active intention to keep or lose current weight; Appearance = concerned with the appearance; motivation = motivation towards appearance; SOC = perceived social support; marital = 1-single, 2- in a relationship, 3 – lives with a partner or married; income – income for one family member; dependent variable = intuitive eating.

2.2.5 Prognostic model for BMI: importance of behavioural variables, Intuitive eating, Age and Parents' weight

The final research question was related to the analysis of possible correlates for body mass index. The hierarchic regression model with several blocks of possible predictors was conducted. The variables were as follow: (1) the biological variables of age and parents' weight, (2) behavioural variables of healthy eating, good eating habits, physical activity and weight controlling behaviour, (3) four scales of Intuitive eating (4) lifestyle themes/personality attributes (5) and other social variables. A summary of the various models is presented in the Table 43. All the inserted variables significantly increased the significance of the model (all p values for F changes <0.001).

The table with the coefficients for model 5 is presented in the Appendix 25. Various types of variables were supported as significant in relation to the BMI.

Table	<i>43</i> .	Summary	of	the	hierarchical	regression	analysis	of	Alderian	lifestyle	and	other
biopsy	chose	ocial variab	les d	on Bl	MI							

							Change statistics			
Model	R		R Square	Adjusted R	SE	R Square	F	p value for		
				Square		Change	Change	F Change		
1		435	.189	.187	.06655	.189	91.069	.000		
2		507	.257	.252	.06385	.068	17.871	.000		
3		548	.301	.292	.06212	.043	11.970	.000		
4		583	.340	.323	.06075	.039	4.544	.000		
5		600	.360	.338	.06004	.020	4.618	.000		

Note. R Square= coefficient of determination; SE = standard error;

Significant predictors in the models(+ = positive relation; - = inverse relation):

(1) Age (+), Parents' weight (+);

(2) Age (+), Parents' weight (+) Healthy eating (-) Good eating habits (-) weight controlling behaviour (+);

(3) Age (+), Parents' weight (+) weight controlling behaviour (+) eating for physical rather than emotional reasons (-), reliance on hunger and satiety cues (-);

(4) Age (+), Parents' weight (+) weight controlling behaviour (+) eating for physical rather than emotional reasons (-), reliance on hunger and satiety cues (-), BSI (+), GA (+), TC (+), BC (+), P (+), S (-);

(5) Age (+), Parents' weight (+) weight controlling behaviour (+) eating for physical rather than emotional reasons (-), reliance on hunger and satiety cues (-), BSI (+), GA (+), TC (+), BC (+), P (+), S (-), concerning with the appearance (+), motivation towards appearance (-).

The significant variables created in the final model for BMI, explained 35.6 percent of the variance of BMI (see Table 44).

Age, parents' weight, and weight controlling behaviour were related to higher BMI. However two scales of intuitive eating (eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and reliance on hunger and satiety cues) were related to lower BMI. Moreover, higher scores on the lifestyle themes of BSI, GA, TC, BC, and Striving for Perfection were significantly related to the higher body mass while the Softness supporting lifestyle theme was associated with BMI (see appendix 25).

Finally, scores on both of the scales on the Appearance schemas Inventory were found as significant correlates in the model for BMI. Motivation to take care of one's appearance was related to lower BMI while being concerned with the appearance was associated with higher BMI (see table 44).

	В	SE	t	Sig.	95.0%	CI
(Constant)	1.228	.049	25.109	.000	1.132	1.324
Age	.003	.000	12.467	.000	.002	.003
Parents' weight	.007	.002	3.810	.000	.004	.011
Weight controlling behaviour	.032	.005	6.322	.000	.022	.041
EPR	010	.003	-3.470	.001	015	004
RHSC	013	.003	-4.483	.000	019	007
Belonging/ Social interest ⁽⁻⁾	011	.004	-2.872	.004	018	003
Going along	.002	.001	3.202	.001	.001	.003
Taking charge	.001	.000	1.466	.143	.000	.001
Being Cautious	.007	.003	2.120	.034	.001	.014
Striving for perfection	.002	.001	3.164	.002	.001	.004
Softness	002	.001	-2.058	.040	004	.000
Appearance	.009	.004	2.119	.034	.001	.018
Motivation	020	.004	-5.174	.000	028	013

Table 44. The final regression model for BMI, F=32.718, p=0.000, R Square = 0.356

Note. ^(·) = inverse relation to the original variable due to transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; EPR = eating for physical rather than emotional reasons scale of Intuitive eating; RHSC = reliance on hunger and satiety cues scale of Intuitive eating; Appearance = being concerned with the appearance; Motivation = motivation to take care of one's appearance.

2.3. Discussion

The main goal of this study was to explain the mechanisms linking personality dynamics and weight issues by exploring the total sample of women who responded to the online battery of instruments. These mechanisms were also explored in two groups of women with normal and increased BMI. The theoretical model of the weight management process in this study were based on the social cognitive models of the theory of planned behaviour, social cognitive theory and health belief model. The theory of Individual /Adlerian Psychology was employed to explain personality dynamics of the sample in the study. To assess the major construct used to assess personality, lifestyle, the researcher completed a norming study on the and objective instrument validated to measure the construct of lifestyle which was the BASIS Adlerian Scales for Interpersonal Success Lithuanian version (BASIS-A lt). At the same time the context of the other biopsychosocial variables related to the present situation was investigated. Furthermore the interrelatedness of Adlerian lifestyle themes, behavioural variables and Intuitive eating were also employed to enhance the understanding of the mechanisms accounting for weight issues in the sample. Finally, the prognostic model for BMI was studied. A number of research questions were addressed. The first part of each question focused on the total female sample under investigation and the second part of the questions addressed two groups of women with normal and increased BMI.

The author believed the value of this study was that it differs from a number of other studies where personality attributes were found as related to BMI or successful weight loss, but with no clear explanation of the why the personality attributes were associated with the weight loss or gain process. The advantage of this study was that the relation between Adlerian lifestyle themes and BMI can be explained by investigating the role how personality impacts or is associated with the weight management process. Moreover the results can be discussed and interpreted from a strong theoretical framework of Individual Psychology.

To follow are the research questions in the study and the findings related to the biopsychoscial and personality factors and the weight process.

The first research question investigated in this study was the relationship between Body Mass Index (BMI) and perceived weight situation with the three groups under investigation (total female sample, normal, and increased BMI group). The assumptions that there will be a statistically significant relationship between BMI and perceived weight were supported, however there were some women who used to perceive their weight incorrectly. Women tend to perceive their weight incorrectly as higher more often that as lower, thus, there were only 22 women who perceived their weight incorrectly as lower.

The role of Adlerian Lifestyle themes for correctly and incorrectly (as lower or higher) perceived weight situation in the context of other biopsychosocial variables consisted of conducting a multinomial logistic regression analysis in the total sample of women in the study. No personality attributes were supported as significant in the model, however there were several biopsychosocial variables that played a significant role for weight perception.

Additional biopsychosocial variables related to weight issues were investigated via the administration and analysis of the questionnaires an inventories which included Appearance Schemas Inventory– Revised (ASI-R) (Cash et al., 2004), the Multidimensional Scale of Perceived Social Support (MSPSS) (Zimet, Dahlem, Zimet, Farley, 1988) and a demographic questionnaire. The following section will address some of these findings associated with the first research question.

First, two biological variables of age and parents' weight were related to incorrectly perceived lower weight. Women who reported higher age and lower parents' weight perceived their weight incorrectly as lower. Possibly age and experiences allow women to be less critical of weight issues and become more comfortable with their self-image verses what they view on television or the general media as ideal weight suggestions. Second, the important findings for the total female sample supported the relationship between being concerned with self-appearance and incorrectly perceived higher weight. Women who perceived less social support used to evaluate their weight incorrectly as higher too, which did not support the findings by Teixeira and colleagues (2005) who found no significance of social support for successful weight loss. Finally, women who were younger incorrectly perceived higher weight, which revealed that younger women might be more concerned with their appearance and base their self-worth with their looks more often (Miskinyte & Bagdonas, 2010).

The first research question was also designed to assess the possible differences related to the correlates of perceived weight of women with normal and increased BMI. No Adlerian lifestyle themes correlated in the group of women with normal BMI, however there were some other biopsychosocial variables that were supported as significant correlates for the incorrectly perceived lower or higher weight.

The finding in this study indicated that women with higher BMI tend to overestimate their weight and women with lower BMI used to underestimate their weight situation more often.

Older women in the sample incorrectly perceived lower weight where as younger women incorrectly perceived higher weight. This study showed that women in a relationship or married perceived their weight as higher.

In the group of overweight women, BC was the only variable that appeared to play the significant role related to the perceived weight situation. Higher scale scores on BC were related to incorrect perception of self-weight as lower. This finding revealed several studies that explored the possible correlates of incorrectly perceived weight (Miller et al., 2008; Sutin & Terraciano, 2014). Based on the above personality dynamics of the lifestyle findings, women who were highly sensitized to the effect of others in social situations (BC) contributed to the inability assess one's perceived weight realistically in relation to BMI. In other words this lifestyle theme increased the possibility of incorrect perception of weight situation as normal even when being overweight. These results partially supported the previous research findings that elevated BC scale scores were associated with lower self-esteem and positive correlations with eating disorders (Gaube, 2010; Belangee, 2006). It might be that women who are overly sensitized to affect of others (BC) may not receive clear and reliable information from others about their weight. Although one might assume that being attuned at a high level to affect of others (BC) would be important in relation to maintaining one's weight additional analysis of the data in this study revealed that attending to the opinion of others in the social context may be problematic. The findings indicated that others may not comfortable confronting directly the overweight issue with an individual and thereby may distort their responses with individuals with weight issues. Peers, friends and family, for example, may be uncomfortable providing candid feedback to the individual. For example, it is polite to tell a friend to see a doctor or take some medicine if he or she has a headache, infection, stomach ailment, or other health related issue. However, it is not polite to confront a person about one's weight issues. So when confronted in a social setting where the person may directly ask "do you think I need to lose some weight" the friend or family member may be more likely to avoid the question or indicate that they do not view it as a problem for the individual.

One may feel comfortable in stating this lifestyle dynamics as risk factor based on the research related to the BC theme in previous studies. The findings in other studies indicate the theme is associated with issues of depression, substance abuse, potential for harassment in the work setting and other health issue (Morton & Wheeler, 1993, Bauman, 1997, Astrauskaite, & Kern, 2011) and health problems (White, 1990, Kern et al., 1996, Kern, Gormlay, & Curlette, 2008).

A summary of the findings of the first research question have supported the relationship of the Adlerian lifestyle and incorrectly perceived lower weight only in the group of overweight women. The main finding was that individual lifestyle preferences played the most significant role among overweight women for incorrectly perceived lower weight, while in the group of normal weight women other biopsychosocial variables were found as significant correlates for incorrectly perceived lower or higher weight. These findings supported the idea by Provencher and colleagues (2008) that particular dimensions of personality may contribute, either directly or through their association with other factors, to the weight.

The **second research question** explored the relationship between perceived weight situation and intention to manage (keep current or lose) weight. The assumption, that people who perceived their weight as higher will have an intention or motivation to lose weight, was supported.

The predictive and moderation effect of Adlerian lifestyle themes as well as other biopsychosocial variables was explored separately for the intention to keep weight and the intention to lose weight as it compared to no active intention to manage weight. As expected, perceived weight situation was a significantly associated with the intention to lose weight, but not for the intention to keep current weight in total female sample.

In the total female sample, perceived weight situation and personality attributes of the individual lifestyles were not supported as significant correlates for intention to keep current weight. However one of the supporting scales of the lifestyle measurement the Softness scale was found to be associated with individuals in the study who viewed themselves as overweight but had no intentions to lose weight. In other words softness scale findings were associated with the second mistake related to the weight management process (incongruence between perceived weight and intention to manage it). Although the softness scale initially was created as a scale to measure social desirability on the BASIS-A Inventory the authors of the original instrument believe it to also be a measure of self-efficacy and positive view of life. It might be that women, who view their lives in a favourable light, can accept being overweight more easily and therefore have minimal active intentions to lose weight.

In the group of women with normal BMI, perceived weight was found as a significant predictor for the active intention to keep current weight. Striving for Perfection theme was related to more of the intention to maintain current weight in this group, which means that good structuring and planning skills (Striving for perfection) are related not only to the effective problem solving strategies, but also so the effective try to avoid the presents of any problems. The same as in the total female sample, higher softness used to increase the incongruence between perceived higher weight and intention to lose it in the group of women with normal BMI. Moreover BC theme also contributed to such an incongruence in this group. These attributes indicated two different reasons for the incongruence between perception of higher weight and intention to lose it. High scores of softness indicate more positive view of life, therefore women might not be active in losing weight because they do not see the problem in being overweight (even if perceive their weight as increased). On the other hand women might feel really frustrated about being overweight, but are not active trying to lose weight because of the lack of the coping resources (high BC).

Additional support of the impact of lifestyle dynamics were found in the group of overweight women. There was an inverse relationship between the GA, and the TC lifestyle themes with the intention to lose weight. However the same attributes (GA and TC) had a significant positive effect for the relation between perceived weight and intention to lose it. A possible explanation for these findings is that on the one hand focusing on rules in the social context, and the need of the individual to control self and others could be viewed as risk factors for overweight women in that it interferes with active intention to decrease their weight. Rules-focused women might be less invested or motivated to lose weight because they distort the need of weight control by incorrect estimate of their weight as reflected in the findings in the first research question.

As expected, motivation toward appearance as assessed by the Appearance Schemas Inventory– Revised (ASI-R) (Cash et al., 2004), was significantly related to both active intentions to keep current and lose weight in the total female sample. An additional finding related to parents' weight was that it used to increase the incongruence between perceived weight and active intentions to keep current weight or lose weight. One may infer from these findings that being around overweight people in childhood might change the subjective norms of weight maintenance and, therefore, even if a woman perceives herself as being overweight, it does not necessary mean that she will have active intention to lose it. This finding supported some explanations related to the importance of parents' weight. Some authors suggested that perception of higher parents' weight as a reason for being overweight interferes with the individual need to lose weight due to adult images that over weight is acceptable, lack of parent support, or that weight may be related to some form of genetic aberrations in the body (Frosch, Mello, & Lerman, 2005; Harvey-Berino et al., 2001; Ogden, 2000; Wamsteker et al., 2005). Additionally, age and perceived social support were negatively related to the active intention to lose weight. These findings could be explained as follows. As one ages social pressure related to

appearance may decrease and therefore motivation to lose weight or change may follow. This coupled with the finding in this study that as a woman ages she perceives that she has a higher level of social support. These two conditions may block intentions to change.

Exploration of the other biopsychosocial variables separately in the group of women with normal BMI indicated the significant relation between higher motivation towards the appearance (appearance schemas motivational salience) and both intentions to keep current or lose weight. An intention to lose weight while being in a normal weight range (healthy BMI) can be considered as related to some disordered eating. Such an assumption might be supported by the prior findings which indicated the relation between the negative body image and eating disorders (Stice, Nemeroff, & Shaw 1996), as appearance schemas are a measure for the cognitive component of body image (Cash et al., 2004). Additionally, appearance schemas selfevaluative salience, perceived social support and age were found to be inversely related to the intention to lose weight among women with normal BMI. Another finding in the group of women with normal BMI was that as women get older, perceives more social support and are more concerned about their appearance they have less intention to lose weight. These biopsychosocial variables might be named as preventive ones from the eating disorders among normal weight women. No biopsychosocial variables (except personality attributes) had a predictive value in the group of overweight women.

A summary of the finding for the second research question support the importance of psychological attributes of Adlerian lifestyle themes related to the intention to keep current or lose weight. Furthermore there was support for Adlerian lifestyle themes as conditional (moderating) variables in relation to perceived weight and the intention to manage weight. More of the lifestyle theme personality attributes were found as significant in the group of overweight women, whereas more biopsychosocial variables were found to be significant of the group of women with normal BMI. This is an interesting finding in that it may support the assumption that there is a difference not only in lifestyle personality dynamics but also in the mechanisms linking personality dynamics and weight issue between normal and overweight females. To identify these possible differences the researcher would suggest a qualitative study to explore these findings.

The **third research question** addressed the relation between the intentions to keep current or lose weight and four types of behaviour variables including healthy eating, good eating habits, physical activity and weight controlling behaviour. The analysis was conducted in total female sample and then separately in two groups of normal increased BMI. The best predictive value of the intention to manage weight was found for the weight controlling behaviour. However intention accounted for minimal variance of healthy behaviour, such as healthy eating, good eating habits and physical activity. This finding revealed an existing problem as it relates to choosing not healthy behaviour, but other (sometimes risky) ways to lose weight, which seems not to work as a long-term solution for weight management (Carrier, Steinhardt, & Bowman, 1994; Tribole & Resch, 1995; Steinhardt, Bezner, & Adams, 1999; Mann et al., 2007; MacDougall, 2010).

After exploring various analysis, two groups of women with the intention to keep current and lose weight were found as similar in relation to healthy eating, good eating habits and physical activity, therefore in the first regression analysis were integrated together into one group of "having active intention to manage weight". However intention to keep current weight and the intention to lose weight were included in the regression separately in the groups of women with normal and increased BMI.

The healthy eating variable as measured by items of a self-constructed questionnaire by the author was analysed. The findings in the total female sample on the healthy eating indicated an association of the lifestyle attributes of Striving for Perfection and Harshness supporting scales. The Striving for Perfection scale can be considered as an indicator of a person with effective coping resources, better self-view, confidence and physical health (Kern et al., 1996) and the Harshness scale seems to identify individuals who are more critical of themselves than others. Partial support for this finding can be extrapolated from a study of lifestyle themes and diabetic patients which found that patients with higher scores on Striving for Perfection scale on the BASIS-A were more likely to follow the doctor's recommendations of being timely with insulin injections (Kern et al., 1996).

In the group of women with normal BMI, both intentions to keep current and to lose weight were found as related to healthier eating. The Harshness theme was also found as a significant negative correlate of healthy eating in the group of women with normal BMI, which partially revealed the relation between lower self-esteem and increased weight (Miller & Downey, 1999). This could be interpreted that normal women with negative self-view or who are more critical of themselves will be less involved with healthy eating behaviour. Being overly critical of oneself can be seen as a risk factor for women. This critical self-view has been found to be risk variable in the relation to negative outcomes such as eating disorders, depression, and higher levels of body dissatisfaction (Stice, Nemeroff, & Shaw 1996; Fredrickson & Roberts, 1997; Moradib & Subich, 2002; Agliata & Tantleff-Dunn, 2004).

However, in the group of overweight women no significant lifestyle themes were indicated in direct relation to healthy eating. Yet, Adlerian lifestyle themes of GA and Softness used to increase the relation between the intention to keep current weight and healthy eating; moreover GA increased the relation between the intention to lose weight and healthy eating too. This could mean that overweight women who are rules-focused tend to choose healthy eating when having an intention to keep current or lose weight.

Other findings of interest related to biopsychosocial variables in the total female sample were that women being more concerned about their appearance were less likely to eat healthy. Such a result partially supported the relation between negative body image and eating disorders (Stice, Nemeroff, & Shaw 1996). It was also found that as a women increases in age, are single, more motivated to care for their appearance and more financial secure they adopt more healthy eating habits. They might choose healthier eating habits not because of their weight, but because of their health. All the same bipsychosocial variables were found as significant with the exception for family income when a woman had a normal BMI. Moreover, perceived social support was additionally found as related to healthier eating in the group of women with normal BMI. Concern with the appearance and marital status were found as the same significant correlates in the group of women with increased BMI too. These two variables indicate different reasons for not choosing healthy eating despite women's weight: increased frustration related to the appearance that might lead to lower self-efficacy and having a partner or husband as deterrent situation that might decrease the importance of appearance or bring struggles for choosing healthy food because of not healthy eating habits employed by the partner.

The next analysis addressed Adlerian Lifestyle themes as well as other biopsychosocial variables and **good eating habits**. In the total female women group the Striving for Perfection theme was positively related to good eating habits. After exploring the correlates for good eating habits in separate groups of women with normal and increased BMI, a number of differences was found, yet Striving for perfection remained significantly related to better eating habits in all groups. In the group of normal weight women TC was related to better eating habits. The positive finding from a practical application perspective is that if this group have the psychological resources such as good social support, interpersonal skills and the ability to make adjustments in their eating behaviour (BSI), this (even with inadequate intention to lose weight while having normal BMI) may lead to better eating habits (which can be named as healthy weight management strategy.)

.Moreover if the women have an increased need to control their life (TC), this may increase the possibility that good eating habits will be incorporated as one of the weight management strategies.

In the group of overweight women, TC was inversely related to good eating habits, which indicated that overweight women with an increased need to control or in charge of their lives struggles with implementation of good eating habits. It might be explained with their preference for more severe ways to solve their weight issue or even avoid dealing with it, trying to avoid confrontation with the problem as an example that they are not able to control everything in their life. Striving for Perfection and the Entitlement lifestyle attributes had a negative conditional (moderation) effect for the relation between intention to lose weight and good eating habits. This might mean that women with good problem solving and organizational skills coupled with effective stress coping strategies unrelated to their weight management intentions may view good eating habits as a good investment related to fewer health issues, higher energy and quality of life (supported by the relation between Striving for Perfection and good eating habits in total female sample). Therefore overweight women with high Striving for Perfection tend to have good eating habits not because of the intention to lose weight, but because of taking care of their health. Supporting research related to the effect of Striving for Perfection and Entitlement themes revealed the finding on diabetic sample that those patients with higher Striving for Perfection scores were less likely to be late with injections and those with higher scores on Entitlement scale were less cooperative with the recommended program (Kern et al., 1996c). Other biopsychosocial findings from the total female sample indicated that general motivation to take care of one's appearance was positively related to good eating habits. Results related to the direct relation between age and behaviour was the same as with healthy eating - as women get older they adopt have better eating habits.

Motivation towards appearance was that biopsychosocial variable related to better eating habits in all weight groups. Moreover in the group of women with normal weight, reported higher age was also related to better eating habits, while in the group of women with increased BMI, concern with the appearance was that attribute negatively related to good eating habits.

Third, the relation between intention to manage weight and **physical activity** was explored. BC scale scores in the total female sample had a positive moderation effect for the relation between intention to manage weight and physical activity. This could be interpreted that women with the intention to manage weight who felt anxious, sensitized to effect of others, and have concerns of belonging in social situations viewed themselves as more physical active. In
this particular situation physical activity might be seen as not only weight management behaviour but as a stress coping strategy for this group.

In the group of women with normal BMI, both intention to lose and intention to keep current weight were positively related to physical activity. BC was found as the only lifestyle theme with a positive effect between an intention to keep current weight and physical activity. On the one hand high scores on BC scale are related to problems with following the recommendations (Kern et. al., 1996), less coping resources or stress monitoring (White, 1990; Kern et al., 1996). However results of the present study indicated that the same lifestyle theme may lead to being more physical active if the women have an intention to keep current weight. In that the BC theme is a measure of a hyper vigilant approach to life individuals with elevated scores on this theme may be much more sensitized to other's opinions related to weight issues. In other words this individual struggles with overcoming the fear of belonging and thereby will do what it takes feel accepted which keeping up one's appearance.

In the group of overweight women only active intention to lose weight (not keep current) was related to being more physical active. TC played the only significant role from all the measures personality attributes. If the women were high on TC, they were less physical active, however, at the same time high TC scores played a positive moderator role between active intention to lose weight and physical activity. This finding may indicate that overweight woman with the intention to lose weight with elevated TC scale scores will be more physical active, but if the overweight women do not have an intention to lose weight, TC will lead to lower physical activity. This finding partially contradicts the previous finding with the diabetic sample where researchers reported the relation between elevated TC scores and skipping or being late with the meals (Kern et al., 1996). However no information about the intention of the participants to follow the recommendations was reported in that study. If they had to report the intention and the skipping or being late with the meals was explored only in the group of those who had an intention to follow the rules the results might have indicated the positive moderation effect of high TC scores for the relation between the intention and actual less skipping the meals.

Other personality correlates of physical activity were also explored in the total female sample. Motivation to take care of the appearance increased the level of physical activity. However being in a relationship or married and of younger age were two factors revealed as the risk ones for being less physical active. In the group of women with normal BMI, overestimating the importance of one's appearance was associated with decreased physical activity, which revealed the findings that overestimating the importance of the appearance is related to the internalization of social standards and sometimes lead to the opposite than welcome outcomes (Braitman, & Ramanaiah, 2002). No biopsychosocial variables (except intention to manage weight and personality attributes) that were related to the physical activity with the overweight group.

The last behaviour included in this study was the **weight controlling behaviour**. Both the intention to lose and the intention to keep current weight were related to weight controlling behaviour in the total female sample, however no personality attributes played the significant role for this type of behaviour.

In the group of women with normal BMI, there were also no significant personality attributes, however, among overweight women, Harshness lifestyle theme was positively related to weight controlling behaviour, which means that perception of the situation as a challenging (high Harshness) may increase the possibility of from long-term perspective non-effective weight controlling behaviour. Additionally two of the lifestyle themes used to moderate the relation between the intention to keep current weight and weight controlling behaviour: WR used to decrease and Liked by all – increased this relation. As WR lifestyle theme describes how much individuals are concerned about what other think of them and work on to be approved by other (Wheeler & Acheson, 1993), severe weight controlling behaviours are those that are usually questioned as not having the long lasting effect on weight management. On the other hand those women with highly expressed Liked by all theme are able to organize their resources and solve the problem, however do not trust their own judgements to decide upon the behaviour, therefore sometimes it is easier to find some popular diet with clear rules than to decide to change whole habits and find individually the most appropriate way to manage weight.

Furthermore only in the total female sample and in the group of women with normal weight, some other biopsychosocial variables were supported as significant. Being concerned with appearance, reported higher age and parents' higher weight were positively related to weight controlling behaviour in the total female sample.

Motivation towards appearance and increased parents' weight were two additional significant correlates for weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with normal BMI. However, in the group of overweight women, only intention to lose weight and previously presented personality attributes played the significant role for weight controlling behaviour.

The **fourth research question** addressed the interrelatedness of Adlerian lifestyle, behavioural variables, and Intuitive Eating. A number of significant relationships between

Adlerian lifestyle themes and general Intuitive eating measure and the four sub-measures were revealed. The overall general score of intuitive eating was positively related to BSI, GA, Striving for perfection and Softness lifestyle themes and negatively to BC and Harshness themes. Unconditional permission to eat was found as negatively related to BSI, TC, entitlement and Striving for perfection lifestyle themes.

Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons was positively related to BSI, GA, Striving for Perfection and Softness themes. Negative relations were supported with WR, BC, Harshness and Liked by all lifestyle themes. Reliance on hunger and satiety was positively related to BSI and Striving for Perfection lifestyle themes. Body-food congruence was positively related to BSI, TC, WR, Striving for Perfection and Softness and negatively to the Harshness theme. All of these lifestyle themes have supportive research related to psychological well being (White, 1990; Kern et al., 1996).

To follow are some problematic issues related to the Intuitive eating scales the subscale of unconditional permission did not appear to fit the present sample under investigation. This might be because of the context of the study and that participants might have considered this construct as a negative one and therefore were not open with their responses. Also it could be a cultural issue to the Lithuanian sample. The research bases these assumptions on the fact that this scale had negative correlations with others in the instrument and in particular the more reliable BASIS-A instrument. However negative relation between Unconditional permission to eat and body-food congruence scales has been supported and explained by the authors of the instrument (Tylka & Van Diest, 2013). To follow are the findings related to the other scales on the instrument.

A review of the findings indicated that the BSI major scale and the Striving for Perfection supporting scale of the BASIS-A were related to all the scales of Intuitive eating. It means that socially oriented woman with good problem solving, organizational and stress coping skills tend to be intuitive eaters. These two scales of BASIS-A seem to be the mostly related to the good coping resources as well as self-confidence (Curlette, Wheeler, & Kern, 1993). Moreover need to know the social norms and follow them (high GA) as well as perceiving one's life in a more favourable light (high softness) could increase the possibility of being intuitive eater. Moreover, feeling comfortable in social situations (low BC) and positive self-view (low harshness) used to decrease the possibility to eat intuitively. The combination of these attributes above describes the woman that in Adlerian terms could be called as healthy personality with strong ability to cope with various situations. Therefore the construct of intuitive eating as related to healthy

personality traits, might be considered as good solution for those who seek for some weight management strategies. However relationship between personality attributes and Intuitive eating do not supply the study with the information about the effectiveness of intuitive eating for weight management. Therefore the relations between intuitive eating and other weight related behaviours were explored.

First finding of the negative relation between various weight management behaviours and unconditional permission to eat scale supported the prior decision that this scale do not fit with the other scales of the instrument. On the other hand, Tylka and Van Diest (2013) explained the negative relation between unconditional permission to eat and the body-food congruence scale as a normal result. Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and Reliance of hunger and satiety scales of Intuitive eating were found as significantly related to healthy eating, good eating habits and negatively to weight controlling behaviour. The one scale of Intuitive eating called body-food congruence was positively related to weight control behaviour as well as physical activity. This means that responding the questions of the body-food congruence scale participants used to evaluate not necessary the inner need to eat healthy food, but based this choice more on the consciousness decision to eat healthy, which is more similar to some aspects of the controlling behaviour than the intuitive behaviour.

Some differences between two groups of women with normal and increased BMI occurred. First of all eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and reliance on hunger and satiety were significantly related to healthier eating but only in the group of women with increased BMI. This might mean that if woman with normal BMI learns the principles of Intuitive eating it does not mean that she will be eating healthy. However negative significant relations between eating for physical rather than emotional reasons, reliance on hunger and satiety and weight controlling behaviour were supported only in the group of women with normal BMI. Such a finding brings the idea; those overweight women who include some principles of intuitive eating in their behaviour, at the same time might use some weight controlling strategies.

However in the complex analysis other variables than Lifestyle themes were supported as associated to the Intuitive eating. Profile of typical Intuitive eater could be described as follow: having an intention to manage weight and motivated to take care of her appearance, but not over concerned (does not take appearance as the most important thing in her life) women who is financially secured, has a partner, perceives enough social support and, finally whose parents' are/were not struggling with the weight issue. From the Adlerian perspective such a social conditions can be seen as supportive for the formation and keeping a healthy personality; and these relations again indirectly support the benefit of Intuitive eating.

The **fifth research question** addressed the possibility to predict BMI. First of all the value of prognostic model which included behavioural variables, intuitive eating, age and parents' weight as possible predictors for BMI was explored. Woman's age and parents' weight were significantly related to higher BMI. Weight controlling behaviour was positively related to higher BMI, however only tendency of the significant negative relation between healthy eating and BMI was found. Two measures of Intuitive eating including eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and reliance on hunger and satiety were related to lower BMI.

Further the significant predictive role of several Adlerian lifestyle themes including BSI, GA, TC, BC and Striving for perfection for higher BMI was revealed. However the Softness theme was related to lower BMI. The findings of the direct relation between personality attributes and BMI emphasized those lifestyle themes that should be mostly addressed in the prevention and intervention strategies in relation to weight issue among women. Before going to the recommendations, each of these personality attributes deserve more explanation from the perspective of Adlerian psychology and their supported role in the weight management process.

2.3.1. Generalizing the findings

Based on the previous studies related to weigh issue and the integration Individual Psychology, Social Cognitive Models, and Intuitive Eating, the present study aimed to identify the interrelatedness of Adlerian personality attributes or Lifestyle themes and weight management variables as potential risk and deterring factors in weight management process in single and integrative analyses, i.e. by examining direct and conditional effects. The findings of the present exploratory study expanded the knowledge about the mechanisms linking personality and weight management process, by exploring Adlerian lifestyle themes separately in number of the relations as possible correlates and conditional (moderating) variables. To increase the generalization of the findings a number of other biopsychosocial variables were extracted from the weight-related literature. Personality variables which were found as significant for weight management used to differ if taking or not taking in account the other biopsychosocial variables.

Moreover the present study was the first analysis of Intuitive Eating as it related to behavioural variables, Adlerian personality attributes and BMI in Lithuanian sample, thus the construct of Intuitive Eating, which was supported in other countries (Tylka, 2006; Tylka & van Diest, 2013), was also partially supported in the Lithuanian culture.

In summary this was the first attempt to incorporate Adlerian lifestyle, weight management process, based on Social Cognitive Models, and Intuitive Eating. Finally, the prognostic model for BMI was explored including not only variables for healthy behaviour or controlling behaviour, but the measures of Intuitive Eating and Adlerian personality attributes as the predictive variables. Woman's age and parents' weight were supported as significant correlates for BMI. Two scales of Intuitive Eating had a more significant value for BMI than healthy eating, good eating habits or physical activity. These scales included eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and reliance on hunger and satiety. Finally, six of ten measured personality attributes were found as significant in relation to BMI. Further, the role of each of the Adlerian personality attributes related to BMI was discussed so as to acquire a deeper understanding of the mechanisms linking these attributes and higher BMI.

Role of Lifestyle in overall finding of the study. Though the study addressed a number of biopsychosocial variables the major thrust of this study was to isolate the benefits of using the BASIS-A Lithuanian version related to weight issues. To follow are presented various findings directly related to the instrument.

Belonging/Social Interest (BSI). In the context of other biopsychosocial variables the significance of BSI was limited. It revealed significant effect of the higher BSI for the relation between the intention to lose weight and good eating habits in the group of women with normal BMI. On the other hand the finding that BSI was positively related to higher BMI partially supported previous research on the extraversion trait and higher weight (Miller & Downey, 1999, Roehling, Roehling, & Odland, 2008, Terracciano et al., 2009). However, no clear mechanism linking BSI lifestyle theme and higher BMI was suggested by the results of this study. However a study by Stoltz and his colleagues (2009) indicated that people with high scores on BSI scale regressed or remained the same while using trans-theoretical model to measure weight change. A guess would be that individuals, who have a higher need to be around people and socialize and are engaging, might be more prone to attend social gatherings such as dinning or making meals for others as a mean of sharing joy and pleasure. So they may find themselves in situations where they eat and the amount of food is not monitored. If person has some genetic or other predisposition for gaining weight, such a lifestyle attribute might get in a way to control healthy weight.

Going Along (GA). Several mechanisms linking GA theme and the weight management process were found in this study and could explain the relationship between higher GA scores and higher BMI. High scores on GA scales were negatively related to the intention to lose

weight among overweight women. Another finding showed the significant effect of GA theme on the relation between the intention to lose weight and healthy eating in the group of overweight women.

From the Adlerian perspective the importance of the connection of the GA theme and BMI might be explained by viewing this scale as one that measures rules-focused behaviour. It could be proposed that the desire to be "the same as others" within the social context could interfere with the individual choosing or avoiding certain foods when the person is eating with others. In other words the need to belong from an Adlerian perspective may be a stronger incentive that possible weight issues in the future. Another explanation could be that although the need to follow the rules social norms increases the possibility of healthy eating, the same need might be related to the unsatisfied requirements for very specific guidelines to follow in order to manage weight successfully in a social appropriate way. Or, as discussed above, if these guidelines exist, the individual might view these as non-acceptable in that the guidelines may be socially not accepted and be perceived by the individual as being different from others. Another possibility might be that individuals with high GA may associate with others where weight is not an issue to them, thus allowing the person to view the weight situation as not an issue, therefore they are less likely to have an intention to lose weight even when having an increased BMI.

Taking Charge (TC). TC theme addressed the need of the individual to be in charge of self and others. One would assume that this individual would have little trouble with weight issues in that the TC lifestyle theme points to a person who prides oneself on being in control of one's environment. Some results revealed the benefit of being high on TC scale as it was related to better eating habits and being more physical active for overweight group who had an intention to keep or lose weight. However, TC was one of those attributes related to higher BMI. A possible explanation for the mechanism linking TC and higher weight was also suggested by the results of this study. Higher scores on TC scale were found as negatively related to the intention to lose weight among overweight women. Furthermore high scores on TC were negatively related to the unconditional permission to eat scale of Intuitive eating, which might be one of the explanations for having increased weight due to the negative effect of over controlling the food. Another explanation could be that individuals who are highly sensitized to being controlled by others may reject implementing intervention strategies from and external perspective such as instructions by dieticians, weight control supplements etc. in that the individual may view this as being weak and incompetent which is inconsistent with the person's lifestyle dynamics. Therefore these individuals struggling with weight issues may at a sub conscious level choose not to address the problem of weight for fear of losing control.

Another possibility might be that food may be a safeguarding tendency or coping strategy being used by the individual with elevated TC as a way avoiding other intrapersonal or interpersonal issues. One of major regulations of normal eating is adequate feelings of hunger and fulfilled hunger. Based on the findings in relation to Intuitive Eating (Gast & Hawks, 2000; Caldwell, Baime, & Wolever, 2012; Outland, Madanat, & Rust, 2013), people that overeat may be lacking the natural impulses that alerts a person of his/her hunger needs and satiety. Therefore one could propose that some individuals struggling with weight issues do not possess the appropriate reflective skills to assess if hunger is a result of a real physiological need or, from an Adlerian perspective, a compensatory, secondary gain, or safeguarding tendency.

One of other possible reasons why a person becomes overweight and also develops a lifestyle theme of Taking Charge might be imbedded in early development and the parent's response to the infant's needs. If, for example, in early infancy, the parent unintentionally provided food to an infant when the need was not hunger but was and unfulfilled emotional/psychological need, it may not only "teach" the child a way to take care of his/her emotional or physiological needs, but also may increase the impulse to overcome the experienced frustration (or inferiority in Adlerian terms) by increasingly taking care of him or herself, or in other words - taking charge of his/her own life and situations. These early experiences may result in the adult person who tries to take care of him or her independently and attends his/her emotional needs such as anxiety, stress, or frustration by consuming food. So the sense of control or being in charge of one's emotional needs may develop into a personality dynamic that is used to cope with a number of life's challenges of which weight becomes one of them.

Being Cautious (BC). The positive relationship between BC and BMI added additional information to the previous findings. There are several results from this study that explain the mechanism linking BC and weight issue. First of all BC was found as the only risk factor for incorrectly perceived weigh situation. Women with higher scores on BC scale used to perceive themselves as being normal weight, while their BMI was increased according to the WHO norms. Moreover, a significant inverse relation between BC and Eating for physical rather than psychological reasons was supported. Findings of this study partially supported prior findings when BC was found as related to eating disorders in several other research studies (Savaiano-Brady, 2001; Belangee, Sherman & Kern, 2003). Higher BC may indicate that a person is more sensitive and has perceived more stressful and unpredictable family experiences in one's life. Furthermore people with high scores on BC scale might have less social support than others and also have diminished skills to listen and hear their body signals of stress (Curlette, Wheeler, & Kern, 1993). If the individual learned early in life that food could serve as a stress reliever,

he/she may continue to use this strategy into adulthood. It also would make sense that it could be more difficult for this individual to develop good eating habits in that stressors are contingent upon ones perception of the event and there by the individual may feel in less control of stress as well as one's eating behaviour.

Striving for Perfection (P). The positive relation between this theme and higher BMI also requires more explanation. The findings of this study indicated a positive role of this theme in weight management process that included the intention to keep current weight in the normal weight group, or the significant relation of the Striving for Perfection with healthy eating and good eating habits. The relation between Striving for Perfection scale and better stress coping strategies as well as better problem solving strategies (Kern et al., 1996) was revealed. However several findings could explain some negative effect of having high scores on Striving for Perfection scale. Before other biopsychosocial variables were included in the model, Striving for Perfection scale was directly related to weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with normal BMI. However weight controlling behaviour was viewed as risk behaviour that increased the possibility of eating disorders (Mann et al., 2007; MacDougall, 2010). Moreover Striving for Perfection theme had a negative effect between intention to lose weight and good eating habits in the group of overweight women. It might be that women with high structuring skills in their life are really frustrated with being not able to solve the weight issue and seek for more quick results related to weight loss. However, this finding was confusing and will require additional studies to clarify or refute it.

Softness (S). The Softness scale was related to the lower BMI. One possibility is that people with high scores on the Softness scale just reported more desirable numbers for their weight (knowing that softness scale is also considered as a scale of socially desirability). However a number of studies indicated Softness as a positive attribute in various samples (Kern et al., 1995; Newbauer, 1995; Bauman, 1997). Other mechanisms linking the Softness supporting scale and weight management were also supported in this study. Higher scores on the softness scale increased the relation between intention to keep current weight and healthy eating among overweight. Moreover Softness theme used to decrease the relation between the perceived higher weight and intention to lose it in the group of women with normal BMI. Such a finding supported the prior idea that "perceiving one's childhood experience in a favourable light, regardless of the accuracy of those perceptions, is an indicator of greater stress coping resources" (Curlette, Wheeler, & Kern, 1993). In this particular situation women with normal BMI with higher self-confidence (higher Softness) do not have an intention to lose weight and, therefore, avoid psychological and physiological (yo-yo effect) weight issues.

Other Adlerian themes (wanting recognition (WR), entitlement (E), liked by all (L), harshness (H)). Although these prior lifestyle theme attributes were found as significant in the prognostic model for BMI, some other Adlerian themes might support the general findings with additional information.

It was interesting that WR theme was supported as significant only in relation to the negative effect for weight controlling behaviour among overweight women in this study, as this lifestyle theme was one of the most significant attributes in prior research on eating disorder (Belangee, 2006).

In the group of overweight women the Entitlement supporting scale on the BASIS-A was found as decreasing the relation between the intention to lose weight and good eating habits.

The Harshness theme was negatively related to the healthy eating behaviour in the total women sample and normal weight group and positively to the weight controlling behaviour in the group of women with increased BMI. Moreover in the group of women with increased BMI, the Liked by all supporting lifestyle theme used to strengthen the relation between the intention to keep current weight and weight controlling behaviour.

In summary, this study clarified several of the mechanisms linking certain Adlerian personality attributes and weight issues. Most of the significance was found in the relation between personality attribute of BC and perception of weight. Moreover, among overweight women personality attributes seemed to be responsible for forming the intention to lose weight. This is in particular significant finding, because intention in number of studies was considered as a very strong correlate of behaviour (Ajzen & Fishbein, 1977; Ajzen, 1985, 1991; Ajzen & Madden, 1986). Finally, the type of behaviour women chose to manage weight was also related to the personality attributes.

However, despite the explained mechanisms linking some personality attributes and weight issue, there are number of limitations and implications for future research that could increase the reliability, generalizability of the findings and, support with additional information about the mechanisms linking personality and weight change dynamics.

2.3.2 Limitations and implications for the future research

As in any research, this study has some limitations. Most of the limitations are related to the methodological issues that could decrease the reliability of the findings.

First, though the online data collection process has been employed more and more in scientific studies, the researcher was aware of the limitations of the procedure, and that face to face or group data collection procedure with a monitor present may have yielded different results.

A second limitation was related to sampling. Although weight issues seem to affect women's well-being more than men, the singular gender sample could be viewed as a limitation related to the generalizability of the study. Therefore a suggestion for a future study should include both genders to assess the similarities and differences between men and women related to weight issues.

A third limitation of the present study was related to psychometric measures of the variables in the study. More precise measures of objective weight and height may have provided additional more valid findings. Moreover, not all of the self-constructed questionnaires had the high internal reliability, therefore some behavioural measures could also be tracked for some time to acquire more correct information.

Forth, a longitudinal study would be of value to explore some weight related predictions, consequences and personality dynamics related to weight change. A longitudinal study would provide the consumer with additional information on behaviours for losing, maintaining or gaining weight.

A fifth idea for future research would be related to inclusion of different measures to directly assess additional variables, which could help to indicate other reasons than weight management for healthy behaviour.

Sixth, the Intuitive eating questionnaire was psychometrically questionable based on some of the findings in this study. The researcher believes it has merit but exploratory and confirmatory factor analysis with a big enough sample may be in order to assess its application to the Lithuanian culture.

Seventh, more specific questions in specific areas of the weight management process should be created for the future research. For example research may investigate one of the explored mistakes in weight management process with possible risk and deterrents for that mistake.

Although this was a quantitative exploratory study, possibly qualitative study that includes qualitative interviews with individuals or focus groups may provide a deeper understanding of

some unexpected findings of the present study (for example not found relation between good eating habits, physical activity and body mass index). Though this study provided some explanations related to personality and weight issues a qualitative study may provide the researcher and consumer with a deeper understanding and personal meaning of the findings in this study.

CONCLUSIONS

1. Adlerian lifestyle was found as important for incorrectly perceived weight only among overweight women: overweight women who perceived their weight incorrectly as normal had elevated scores on the BC lifestyle theme in compare to those who perceived their weight correctly.

2. The lifestyle theme of Softness used to decrease the relation between perceived weight and the intention to lose it in total female sample.

2.1. In the group of normal weight women, Striving for Perfection theme used to increase the relation between perceived weight and the intention to keep current weight; BC and Softness lifestyle themes used to decrease the relation between perceived weight and intention to lose it.

2.2. In the group of overweight women, Going Along and Taking Charge lifestyle theme were related to the lower intention to lose weight, but at the same time Going Along and Taking Charge were positively related to the congruence between perceived higher weight and the intention to lose weight; Lifestyle theme of BC was inversely related to the intention to keep current weight.

3. In the total female sample the elevated score on the Harshness supporting lifestyle theme was negatively related to healthy eating; Striving for Perfection was positively related to healthy eating and good eating habits; Being Cautious increased the relation between the intention to manage weight and physical activity; No personality attributes were found as significant for weight controlling behaviour.

3.1. In the group of women with normal weight an elevated score on the Harshness theme was negatively related to healthy eating; Striving for Perfection and TC were positively related to good eating habits while BSI increased the relation between the intention to lose weight and good eating habits; BC increased the relation between the intention to keep current weight and physical activity.

3.2. In the group of overweight women GA and Softness lifestyle themes used to increase the relation between the intention to keep current weight and healthy eating; TC was negatively and Striving for Perfection – positively related to good eating habits, while TC used to increase and Entitlement and Liked by all – decrease the relation between the intention to lose weight and good eating habits; TC was related to lower physical activity but at the same time increased the relation between the intention to lose weight and physical activity; Harshness was positively related to weight controlling

behaviour, while WR has negative and Liked by all positive effect for the relation between intention to keep weight and weight controlling behaviour.

4. General score of Intuitive eating was positively related to good eating habits and negatively to weight controlling behaviour. The relationship between general Intuitive eating score and Lifestyle themes were significant but negligible.

4.1. Unconditional permission to eat was negatively, while body-food congruence - positively related to healthy eating, good eating habits, physical activity and weight controlling behaviour. Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and reliance on hunger and satiety were positively related to healthy eating and good eating habits, and negatively to weight controlling behaviour.

4.2. Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons was inversely moderately related to Being Cautious and Harshness Lifestyle themes, and positively related to Softness Lifestyle theme.

5. Healthy eating, good eating habits and physical activity were not associated with lower body mass index. Age, parents' weight, and weight controlling behaviour were related to higher BMI, while eating for physical rather than emotional reasons and reliance on hunger and satiety to lower BMI. Belonging/Social Interest, Going Along, Being Cautious and Striving for Perfection themes were related to the higher BMI while the Softness theme was related to lower BMI. Being concerned with the appearance was related to higher BMI, while motivation to take care of self-appearance to lower BMI.

PRACTICAL IMPLICATIONS

Intervention guidelines according to the Lifestyle. The researcher's intentions for this study were not only to identify empirical findings related to the mechanisms of weight management with women but also provide the clinician consulting with women with weight issues added insights on the most effective strategies to work with individuals related to various lifestyle dynamics. It could be proposed that one of the short comings with diet regimens, treatment strategies, and self-help books is that few address the personality or lifestyle dynamics that may be additive or interfere with successful treatment outcomes. To follow are some ways counsellors, dieticians and other health professionals may understand the meaning of the lifestyle scales in the context of the findings which then will be followed with possibly more effective ways of consulting or counselling with the individuals struggling with weight issues.

The first, interventions will address the individual with elevated scores on the BSI and Striving for Perfection scales. It is the belief of the researcher that these lifestyle dynamics would reflect individuals with the highest like hood of change in that the two scales measure psychological wellbeing and effective stress coping and problem solving strategies. Possible this group simply lacks some form of organized approach to achieve results related to weight management. The best solution would be to encourage individual to use his/her owns capabilities and coping resources for this particular issue. Trying to use the ideas of Intuitive eating might be of help as Intuitive eating was found to be related to the healthy personality attributes. The research would view this individual with these lifestyle dynamics to be a much easier client to influence in a positive direction related to weight management.

When working with an overweight person that has elevated Going Along score, the professional may wish to adopt a more directive approach in the session in that this individual will possibly be more interested in rules to follow from the expert. To be of most help for such an individual, one may wish to use more cognitive and behavioural techniques such as instructing, using homework assignments, deadlines related to weight loss per week, and constant encouragement. So the helping person will be more effective if he/she will implement an attitude of a coach or instructor with this individual.

If, for example, the professional assessed an individual with an elevated score on the TC scale she/he may wish to communicate with the individual using supportive techniques and placing and emphasis on providing the individual with choices in the treatment plan verses telling the individual what they need to do. It would be extremely important to communicate in a way that allows the individual to believe they are making the decision verses the professional. Usually the major roadblock for the health professional will be to avoid or side step

confrontational interactions with the high TC individual. This person is much more sensitized to competitive interactions. In addition, as mentioned earlier, with elevated TC and BMI individuals may have a variety of reasons related to weight issues. Thus the professional may wish to integrate into the treatment plan a method of tracking eating behaviour and emotional states to assess if weight may be used as a symptom of another more important issue or replacement of other needs that need to be attended.

If the individual has an elevated BC scale the professional needs to extend the time of building the relationship and possibly discussing interpersonal issues related to weight issues prior to implementation of a treatment plan. In fact it is the belief of the researcher and the professionals who have developed the BASIS-A that little time should be spent related to the weight issues but extended time should be devoted to discussing the life task concerns of the individual. Success for this person will be dependent on the relationship and intense encouragement during the process.

Intervention related to the Intuitive Eating. Women that struggle with weight issue and practitioners that work with them are encouraged to include the ideas of Intuitive eating in their solving strategy, especially to learn to recognise the inner signals for hunger and satiety as well as avoid eating for other than physiological reasons. These two behaviours used to be related to lower body mass index. If a women has good stress coping strategies (e.g. high on BSI or Striving for Perfection) and are not emotional eaters, then the main task is to learn to hear and recognize the body signals; however, if a women are lack of problem solving success and feel frustrated in social situations (e.g. is high on BC), first task would be to learn to cope with stress without a food using some other techniques, relaxation etc. For women who prefer take control of the situation (high TC) Intuitive eating might be acceptable due to the availability to choose what you want to eat, on the other hand for women who need clear rules to follow (high GA), Intuitive eating can support with these rules (not the type or amount of food to consume, but how to learn to understand your body).

There are two Intuitive eating related issues for normal and increased weight women. Overweight women if eat intuitively, usually consumes healthy meal, however healthy eating is not a part of intuitive eating among the normal weight women. Therefore, if presenting the ideas of Intuitive eating for a normal weight women, special attention should be paid to the presenting the benefits of healthy food consumption. Talking about the overweight women, even if trying to follow the suggestions of Intuitive eating, for them it is hard to stop control themselves from certain type of food, especially if they have been involved in food restriction practices for extended periods of time. Maybe tracking the changes, emotions and behaviour could support them with the need to be of control related to weight issue. Knowing that people who need rules and want to follow them tend to perceive their weigh less correctly, the researcher would encourage peers, family members, and in some way the media, that avoiding honesty with the individual with weight issues may be encouraging the individual to participate in faulty and unhealthy eating habits. Though difficult, in that each of us usually wish to be polite, non-judgemental, and respectful with a person who is overweight the findings of this study indicate that those of us who have difficulty addressing these issue of weight with individuals with weight issues may be indirectly encouraging these individual to continue unhealthy eating habits. The researcher proposes that each of us may need to be more socially responsible and assist the individual struggling with weight issues to receive clear feedback that they have a problem that may impact their health, self-esteem, and psychological wellbeing in the future.

Addressing individuals who perceive themselves as being overweight, special attention by the professional should be given to exploring parents' issues with weight. For one of the findings in this study was that those women who reported their parents as overweight had difficulties assessing their own weight correctly. The researcher would make the suggestion to the professional to explore the individual's family of origin's perception of food intake. It is the researcher beliefs that this norm in the family would be a strong deterrent for the individual to be successful in a weight management program and may decrease the self-efficacy of the individual to consistently follow a weight management program negotiated by a health professional.

In summary the goal of this study was to fold in relation the empirical findings and application of findings. This section attempted to provide the professional with some beginning insights as to treatment strategies and lifestyle dynamics. But the underlying mission of this study was to highlight the importance of healthy eating so as to improve the health of the citizens in Lithuania whose health may be adversely impacted by poor eating habits. It is the researcher's opinion that by increasing the number of women who eat healthy, have good eating habits, are physical active and not involved in unhealthy weight controlling behaviour will increase our acceptance of our bodies and there by improve our self-esteem. Acceptance, tolerance and support should be the targeted values in the society to help every woman to feel better about them. And if their goal is to manage their weight more effective it is the hope that this study could be a small contribution toward their goal.

REFERENCES

- Abalikšta, T. (2011). Bariatric Surgery Using Different Adjustable Gastric Bands: the Results of Prospective Randomized Study / Vilnius University: Summary of Doctoral Dissertation: Biomedical Sciences, Medicine (06B), Retrieved from Lithuanian Virtual Library, UDK: 616-056.52-089(043.3); UDK: 616.33-089(043.3)
- 2. Abraham, C., Sheeran, P., & Johnston, M. (1998). From health beliefs to self-regulation: Theoretical advances in the psychology of action control. *Psychology & Health*, *13*, 569-591.
- 3. Adame, D.D., & Frank, R. E. (1990). The relationship of self-perceived weight to actual weight, body image, and health behaviors of college freshman. *Wellness Perspectives*, 7(1),
- 4. Adams, T. B. & Mowen, J. C. (2005). Identifying the Personality Characteristics of Health Eaters and Exercisers: A Hierarchical Model Approach. *Health Marketing Quarterly*, 23(1), 21-42.
- 5. Adler, A. (1927). *Understanding human nature*. New York: Garden City Publishing Company, Inc.
- 6. Agliata, D., & Tantleff-Dunn, S. (2004). The impact of media exposure on males' body image. *Journal of Social and Clinical Psychology*, 23(1), 7-22.
- Agrawal, P., Gupta, K., Mishra, V., & Agrawal, S. (2014). A study on body-weight perception, future intention and weight-management behaviour among normal-weight, overweight and obese women in India. *Public Health Nutrition*, 17(4), 884-895.
- 8. Ajzen, I. (1991). The theory of planned behaviour. *Organizational Behaviour and Human Decision Processes, 50,* 179–211.
- 9. Ajzen, I. (1985). From intentions to action: A theory of planned behavior. In J. Kuhl & J. Beckman (Eds.), *Action control: From cognition to behavior* (pp. 11-39). Berlin: Springer-Verlag.
- 10. Ajzen, I., & Madden, T. J. (1986). Prediction of goal directed behavior: Attitudes, intentions, and perceived behavioral control. *Journal of Experimental Social Psychology*, *22*, 453-474.
- 11. Ajzen, I., & Fishbein, M. (1980). Understanding attitudes and predicting social behaviour. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall.
- 12. Ajzen, I. (2006a). TPB Diagram. Retrieved Jul 27, 2014 from the World Wide Web: http://people.umass.edu/aizen/tpb.diag.html
- Ajzen, I. (2006b). Constructing a Theory of Planned Behaviour Questionnaire. Retrieved Jul 27, 2014 from the World Wide Web: http://people.umass.edu/aizen/tpb.html
- 14. Ali, M.M., Minor, T., & Amialchuk, A. (2013). Estimating the Biases Associated with Self-Perceived, Self-Reported, and Measured BMI on Mental Health. PLoS ONE 8(12): e81021
- Aljuraiban, G. S., Chan, Q., Oude Griep, L. M., Brown, I. J., Daviglus, M. L., Stamler, J., ... Frost, G. S. (2015). The Impact of Eating Frequency and Time of Intake on Nutrient Quality and Body Mass Index: The INTERMAP Study, a Population-Based Study. Journal of the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics, 115(4), 528–536.
- 16. Alwan, H., Viswanathan, B., Williams, J., Paccaud, F., & Bovet, P. (2010). Association between weight perception and socioeconomic status among adults in the Seychelles. *BMC Public Health*, *10*, 467-477.
- 17. Ansbacher, H. L., & Ansbacher, R. R. (Eds.). (1964). *The Individual Psychology of Alfred Adler* New York: Harper & Row.
- Armitage, C. J., & Conner, M. (2001). Efficacy of the Theory of Planned Behaviour: A metaanalytic review. British Journal of Social Psychology, 40(4), 471–499.
- Armstrong, M. J., Mottershead, T. A., Ronksley, P. E., Sigal, R. J., Campbell, T. S., & Hemmelgarn, B. R.(2011). Obesity reviews, 12, 709–723.
- 20. Astrauskaite, M., & Kern, R.M. (2011). A Lifestyle Perspective on Potential Victims of Workplace Harassment. *Journal of Individual Psychology*, 67(4), 420-431.

- Astrauskienė, A., Abaravičius, A., Bartkevičiūtė, R., Barzda, A., Bulotaitė, L. et al. (2011). Sveikos gyvensenos rekomendacijos. Recommendations for healthy lifestyle/ Handbook. Vilnius University et al.
- 22. Augustus-Horvath, C. L., & Tylka, T. L. (2011). The acceptance model of intuitive eating: A comparison of women in emerging adulthood, early adulthood, and middle adulthood. *Journal of Counseling Psychology*, *58*(1), 110–125.
- Austin, J. T., & Vancouver, J. B. (1996). Goal constructs in psychology: Structure, process, and content. *Psychological Review*, 120, 338-375.
- 24. Avalos, L. C., & Tylka, T. L. (2006). Exploring a model of intuitive eating with college women. *Journal of Counseling Psychology*, *53*, 486-497.
- 25. Bacon, L., Stern, J. S., Van Loan, M. D., & Keim, N. L. (2005). Size Acceptance and Intuitive Eating Improve Health for Obese, Female Chronic Dieters. *Journal of the American Dietetic Association*, *105*(6), 929–936.
- Ball, K., Mishra, G.D., & Crawford, D. (2003). Social factors and obesity: An investigation of the role of health behaviours. *International Journal of Obesity and Related Metabolic Disorders*, 27, 394–403.
- 27. Bandura, A. (1986). Social foundation of thought and action: A social cognitive theory. New Jersey: Prentice-Hall.
- Bandura, A. (2011). The Social and Policy Impact of Social Cognitive Theory. In M. Mark, S. Donaldson, & B. Campbell (Eds.), Social Psychology and Evaluation, 33-70. New York, NY: Guilford Press.
- 29. Bandura, A.(2001). Social Cognitive Theory of Mass Communication. *Media Psychology*, 3(3), 265-299.
- 30. Bandura, A. (1977). Self-efficacy: toward a unifying theory of behavioural change. *Psychological review*, *84*(2): 191-215.
- Bandura, A. (1993). "Perceived Self Efficacy in Cognitive Development and Functioning". *Educational Psychologist*, 28 (2): 117–148.
- 32. Bandura, A. (1982). Self-efficacy mechanism in human agency. *American Psychologist*, 37(2), 122-147.
- Barnes, T. L., French, S. A., Harnack, L. J., Mitchell, N. R., & Wolfson, J. (2015). Snacking Behaviors, Diet Quality, and Body Mass Index in a Community Sample of Working Adults. Journal of the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics.
- 34. Barzda, A., & Bartkevičiūtė, R. (2012). Overweight and Obesity among Lithuanian Adults. Retrieved from Helth Learning and prevention center Online website: http://www.smlpc.lt
- Baum, A., & Posluszny, D. M. (1999). HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY: Mapping Biobehavioral Contributions to Health and Illness. Annual Review of Psychology, 50(1), 137–163.
- 36. Bauman, G. S. (1997). Adlerian Lifestyle theme analysis of chemical dependency as measured by the BASIS-A and the SASSI-2 (according to the BASIS-A inventory technical manual).
- Bauman, G. S. (2001). Clinical usefulness of BASIS-A Inventory with substance abusers. Dissertation Abstracts International, 64(10), 3903A. (UMI No. 9991786)
- Beech B.M., Klesges R.C., Kumanyika S.K., Murray D.M., Klesges L., McClanahan B., Slawson D., Nunnally C., Rochon J., McLain-Allen B., Pree-Cary J. (2003). Child- and parent-targeted interventions: the Memphis GEMS pilot study. *Ethn Dis*, 13, S40–S53.
- Belangee, S. E., Sherman, M. F., & Kern, R. M. (2003). Exploring the Relationships between Lifestyle Personality Attributes and Eating Disorder Symptoms and Behaviours in a Non-Clinical Population. *Journal of Individual Psychology*, 59, 461–475.
- 40. Belangee, S. E. (2006). Individual Psychology and Eating Disorders: A Theoretical Application. *Journal of Individual Psychology*, 62(1).

- 41. Blaine, B. E., Rodman, J., & Newman, J. M. (2007). Weight Loss Treatment and Psychological Well-Being. *Journal of Health Psychology*, 12(1), 66-82.
- Bodde, A.E., Beebe, T. J., Chen, L. P., Jenkins, S., Perez-Vergara, K., Rutten, L. J. F., & Ziegenfuss, J. Y. (2014). Misperceptions of weight status among adolescents: sociodemographic and behavioral correlates. *Patient Related Outcome Measures*, 5, 163–171.
- 43. Bollen, E., & Wojciechowski, F. L.(2004). Anorexia Nervosa Subtypes and the Big Five Personality Factors. *European Eating Disorders Review*, *12*, 117–121.
- 44. Boo, S. (2014). Misperception of body weight and associated factors. *Nursing & Health Sciences*, *16*(4), 468-475.
- 45. Boudette, R. (2010). Integrating Mindfulness into the Therapy Hour. Eating Disorders, 19(1), 108– 115.
- 46. Bratman, S. (1997). Original orthorexia essay. Yoga Journal 1997 Oct. [cited 2014 September 5]. Available from: http://www.orthorexia.com/original-orthorexia-essay/
- 47. Britzman, M. J. & Main, M. (1990). Wellness and personality priorities. *Individual Psychology: The Journal of Adlerian Theory, Research and Practice, 46*(1), 43-50.
- Brownell, K. D. & Rodin, J. (1994) The dieting maelstrom: is it possible and advisable to lose weight? *American Psychology*, 49, 781–791.
- 49. Broonen, J.P. (2010). Volition and planned behaviour: How to fill the gap between intention and performance? In D. Dubois (Ed.), *Computing Anticipatory Systems*. Proceedings from 9th International Conference, Belgium.
- 50. Brookings, J. B. & Wilson, J. F. (1994).Personality and Family-Environment Predictors of Self-Reported Eating Attitudes and Behaviors. *Journal of Personality Assessment*, 63(2), 313-326.
- 51. Brunes, A., Augestad, L. B., & Gudmundsdottir, S. L. (2013). Personality, physical activity, and symptoms of anxiety and depression: the HUNT study. Soc Psychiatry Psychiatr Epidemiol, 48, 745-756.
- 52. Brytek-Matera, A. (2012). The relationship between body image disturbance and coping with stress in patients suffering from anorexia nervosa. *Polish Psychological Bulletin, 43*(4).
- 53. Buchanan, T., & Smith, J. L. (1999). Using the Internet for psychological research: Personality testing on the World Wide Web. *British Journal of Psychology*, *90*(1), 125–144.
- 54. Buchanan, T. S., Fischer, A. R., Tokar, D. M., & Yoder, J. D. (2008). Testing a culture-specific extension of objectification theory regarding African American women's body image. *The Counseling Psychologist*, *36*(5), 697-718.
- 55. Burgos-Garrido, E., Gurpegui, M., & Jurado, D. (2011).Personality traits and adherence to physical activity in patients attending a primary health centre. *International Journal of Clinical and Health Psychology*, *11*, (3), 539-547.
- Brytek-Matera, A. (2012). Orthorexia nervosa an eating disorder, obsessive-compulsive disorder ordisturbed eating habit? Archives of Psychiatry and Psychotherapy, 1, 55–60.
- 57. Caldwell, K. L., Baime, M. J., & Wolever, R. Q. (2013). Mindfulness Based Approaches to Obesity and Weight Loss Maintenance, *Journal of Mental Health Counseling*, *34*(3), 269-282.
- Canpolat, B. I., Orsel, S., Akdemir, A., Ozbay, M. H. (2005). The Relationship between Dieting and Body Image, Body Ideal, Self-Perception, and Body Mass Index in Turkish Adolescents. *International Journal of Eating Disorders*, 37, 150–155.
- 59. Carper, J. L., Fisher, J. O., & Birch, L. L. (2000). Young girls' emerging dietary restraint and disinhibition are related to parental control in child feeding. *Appetite*, *35*(2), 121-129.
- 60. Carrier, K. M., Steinhardt, M. A., & Bowman, S. (1994). Rethinking traditional weight management programs: a 3-year follow-up evaluation of a new approach. *The Journal of psychology*, *128*(5), 517-535.
- 61. Cash, T. F., & Labarge, A. S. (1996). Development of the Appearance Schemas Inventory: A new cognitive body-image assessment. Cognitive Therapy and Research, 20, 37-50.
- 62. Cash T. F. (2003). Brief manual for the appearance schemas inventory-revised.

- 63. Caudroit, J., Boiché, J., & Stephan, Y. (2014). The role of action and coping planning in the relationship between intention and physical activity: A moderated mediation analysis. *Psychology* & *Health*, *29* (7), 768-780.
- 64. Cawley, J. (2004). The impact of Obesity on Wages. The Journal of Human Resources, 39(2):451.
- 65. Chang, V.W., & Christakis, N.A. (2003). Self-perception of weight appropriateness in the United States. *American Journal of Preventive Medicine*, 24(4), 332-340.
- 66. Chatzisarantis, N. L. D., & Hagger, M. S. (2008). Influences of personality traits and continuation intentions on physical activity participation within the theory of planned behaviour. *Psychology and Health*, 23(3): 347–367.
- 67. Chen, X., Jahns, L., Gittelsohn, J., & Wang, Y. (2012). Who is missing the message? Targeting strategies to increase food label use among US adults. *Public Health Nutrition, 15* (5), 760-772.
- Chuang, H.T. & Lee, Y. C. (2010). Analysis of Factors Found to Affect Self-Perceived Weight Status in Australia. Journal of Nursing Research (Lippincott Williams & Wilkins), 18(3), 227-237.
- Clum, G. A., Rice, J. C., Broussard, M., Johnson, C. C., & Webber, L. S. (2013). Associations between depressive symptoms, self-efficacy, eating styles, exercise and body mass index in women. Journal of Behavioral Medicine, 37(4), 577–586.
- 70. Cohen, S., & Wills, T. A. (1985). Stress, social support, and the buffering hypothesis. *Psychological bulletin*, 98(2), 310.
- Colditz, G. A., Willett, W. C., Rotnitzky, A., & Manson J. E. (1995). Weight gain as a risk factor for clinical diabetes mellitus in women. *Ann Intern Med*, 122, 481.
- Conner, M., & Norman, P. (1996). Body Weight and Shape Control: Examining Component Behaviours. *Appetite*, 27(2), 135–150.
- Crerand, C.E., Wadden, T.A., Foster, G.D. et al. (2007) Changes in obesity-related attitudes in women seeking weight reduction. *Obesity (Silver Spring)* 15, 740–747.
- 74. Curlette, W.L., Wheeler, M.S., & Kern, R.M. (1993). *BASIS-A Inventory technical manual*. Highlands, NC: TRT Associates.
- 75. Dahlem, N. W., Zimet, S. G., & Walker, R. R. (1991). The Multidimensional Scale of Perceived Social Support: A confirmation study, *Journal of Clinical Psychology*, 47(6), 756-761.
- 76. Dinter, L. D. (2000). The Relationship between self-efficacy and lifestyle patterns. The Journal of Individual Psychology, 56(4), 462-473.
- 77. Dreikurs, R. (1953). Fundamentals of Adlerian psychology. Chicago: Alfred Adler Institute.
- Duncan, D. T., Wolin, K. Y., Scharoun-Lee, M., Ding, E. L., Warner, E. T., & Bennett, G. G. (2011). Does perception equal reality? Weight misperception in relation to weight-related attitudes and behaviors among overweight and obese US adults. International Journal of Behavioral Nutrition and Physical Activity, 8(1), 20.
- 79. Eagly, A. H., & Chaiken, S. (1993). *The psychology of attitudes*. Forth Worth, TX: Harcourt Brace Jovanich.
- Elfhag K. & Rössner S. (2005). Who succeeds in maintaining weight loss? A conceptual review of factors associated with weight loss maintenance and weight regain. *Obesity Review*, 6: 67– 85.
- Elfhag, K., & Morey, L. C. (2008). Personality traits and eating behaviour in the obese: Poor selfcontrol in emotional and external eating but personality assets in restrained eating. Eating Behaviours, 9(3), 285–293.
- Fairburn, C. G., Cooper, Z., Doll, H. A., & Welch, S. L. (1999). Risk Factors for Anorexia Nervosa. Archives of General Psychiatry, 56(5), 468.
- Fairburn, C. G., Doll, H. A., Welch, S. L., Hay, P. J., Davies, B. A., & O'Connor, M. E. (1998). Risk Factors for Binge Eating Disorder. *Archives of General Psychiatry*, 55(5), 425.
- 84. Fedoroff, I. D., Polivy, J., & Herman, C. P. (1997). The effect of pre-exposure to food cues on the eating behaviour of restrained and unrestrained eaters. *Appetite*, *28*(1), 33-47.

- Finkelstein, E.A., Brown, D.S., Wrage, L.A., Allaire, B.T., & Hoerger, T.J.(2010). Individual and aggregate years-of-life lost associated with overweight and obesity. *Obesity (Silver Spring)*, 18: 333-9.
- 86. Framson, C., Kristal, A.R., Schenk, J.M. et al. (2009) Development and validation of the mindful eating questionnaire. *Journal of the American Dietetic Association, 109,* 1439–1444.
- 87. Fredrickson, B. L., & Roberts, T. A. (1997). Objectification theory. *Psychology of women quarterly*, 21(2), 173-206.
- Frey, M. & Snow, J. N. (2005). The personality construct of entitlement: An intervention for decreasing attrition in parent education groups. *Journal of Individual Psychology*, 61(2), 161-173.
- Friedman M. A. & Brownell, K. D. (1995). Psychological correlates of obesity: moving to the next research generation. *Psychol Bull*, 117(1), 3–20.
- Fyler, M., Schumacher, J., Banning, J., & Gam, H. J. (2014). Influence of Body Satisfaction, Body Mass Index, and Diet Quality on Healthy Eating Attitudes among College Students. *Family and Consumer Sciences Research Journal*, 42(4), 330–340.
- 91. Gagnon-Girouard et al. (2009). Can We Apply the Dual-Pathway Model of Overeating to a Population of Weight-Preoccupied Overweight Women? *International Journal of Eating Disorders* 42(3), 244–252.
- Gagnon-Girouard, M.P., Begin, C., Provencher, V. et al. (2010) Psychological impact of a 'Healthat-Every-Size' intervention on weight-preoccupied overweight/obese women. Journal of Obesity, 928097.
- 93. Garrow, J.S. and Webster, J. (1985). Quetelet's index (W/H2) as a measure of fatness. *International Journal of Obesity9*:147–153.
- 94. Gast, J. A., & Hawks, S.R. (2000). Examining Intuitive Eating as a Weight Loss Program. *Healthy Weight Journal, May/June,* 42-44.
- 95. Gast, J., & Hawks, S. R. (1998). Weight Loss Education: The Challenge of a New Paradigm.
- Gaubė, J., Kern, R. M. (2015). Importance of Adlerian Lifestyle personality attributes for BMI among woman. *European Scientific Journal*, 11(2), 91-109.
- 97. Gaubė, J., & Kern, R. M., Stoltz, K. (2015). Psychometric Properties of BASIS-A: Lithuanian Version. Journal of Individual Psychology, *71*(3) (In press)
- George, D., & Mallery, P. (2003). SPSS for Windows step by step: A simple guide and reference. 11.0 update (4th ed.). Boston: Allyn & Bacon.
- Gibbons, F. X., Gerrard, M., Blanton, H., & Russell, D. (1998). Reasoned action and social reaction: Willingness and intention as independent predictors of health risk. *Journal of Personality* and Social Psychology, 74, 1164-1180.
- Gingras, J., Fitzpatrick, J., & McCargar, L. (2004). Body Image of Chronic Dieters: Lowered Appearance Evaluation and Body Satisfaction. *Journal of the American Dietetic Association*, 104: 1589-1592.
- 101. Glanz, K., Rimer, B. K., & Viswanath, K. (Eds.). (2008). *Health behavior and health education: theory, research, and practice.* John Wiley & Sons.
- 102. Godin, G. & Shephard, A. (1985). A Simple method to assess exercise in the community. *Canadian Journal of Applied Sport Science, 10,* 141-146.
- Godin, G. & Shephard, R. J. (1997). Godin Leisure-Time Exercise Questionnaire. *Medicine and Science in Sports and Exercise*, 29, 36-38.
- 104. Grave, R. D., Calugi, S., Marchesini, G., Beck-Peccoz, P., Bosello, O., Compare, A., Cuzzolaro, M., Grossi, E., Mannucci, E., Molinari, E., Tomasi, F., & Melchionda, N. (2013). Personality features of obese women in relation to binge eating and night eating. *Psychiatry Research*, 207, 86–91.
- Greeno, C. G., & Wing, R. R. (1994). Stress-induced eating. Psychological Bulletin, 115(3), 444– 464.

- Gruszka, W., Olszanecka-Glinianowicz, M., Kocełak, P., Wikarek, T., Dąbrowski, P., Mucha, Z., & Zahorska-Markiewicz, B.(2011). Body self-perception in subjects beginning a threemonth multifaceted group weight loss programme, *Archives of Psychiatry and Psychotherapy*, 2, 31–35.
- 107. Guh, D. P., Zhang, W., Bansback, N., Amarsi, Z., Birmingham, C.L., & Anis, A. H. (2009). The incidence of co-morbidities related to obesity and overweight: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *BMC Public Health*, *9*, 88.
- 108. Guth, E. (2014). Healthy Weight Loss. Journal of the American Medical Association, 312(9), 974.
- 109. Hambleton, R. K., Merenda, P., & Spielberger, C. (Eds.). (2005). Adapting educational and psychological tests for cross-cultural assessment. Hillsdale, NJ: Lawrence S. Erlbaum Publishers.
- Harvey-Berino, J., Gold, E. C., West, D. S., Shuldiner, A. R., Walson, J., Starling, R. D., ... Poehlman, E. T. (2001). Does Genetic Testing for Obesity Influence Confidence in the Ability to Lose Weight? A Pilot Investigation. Journal of the American Dietetic Association, 101(11), 1351– 1353.
- 111. Hart, K. E., & Chiovari, P. (1998). Inhibition of eating behavior: Negative cognitive effects of dieting. *Journal of clinical psychology*, 54(4), 427-430.
- 112. Hawks, S., Merrill, R. M., & Madanat, H. N. (2004). The Intuitive Eating Scale: Development and a Preliminary Validation. *American Journal of Health Education*, *35*(2), 90–99.
- 113. Hawley, G., Horwath, C., Gray, A., Bradshaw, A., Katzer, L., Joyce, J., & O'Brien, S. (2008). Sustainability of health and lifestyle improvements following a non-dieting randomised trial in overweight women. Preventive Medicine, 47(6), 593–599.
- 114. Health Belief Model. (2008). Encyclopedia of Public Health, 522-522.
- 115. Heavey, A., Parker, Y., Bhat, A. V., Crisp, A. H., & Gowers, S. G. (1989). Anorexia nervosa and marriage. *International Journal of Eating Disorders*, 8(3), 275-284.
- 116. Herrington, A. N., Matheny, K. B., Curlette, W. L., McCarthy, C. J., & Penick, J. (2005). Lifestyles, coping resources, and negative life events as predictors of emotional distress in university women. *The Journal of Individual Psychology*, *61*, 343-364.
- 117. Hewson, C., Yule, P., Laurent, D., & Vogel, C. (2003). Internet research methods: a practical guide for the social and behavioral science. London, GBR: SAGE Publications Inc. (US).
- Hilbert, A., Dierka, J. M., Conradta, M., Schlumbergera, P., Hinneyb, A., Hebebrandb, J. & Rief, W. (2009). Causal attributions of obese men and women in genetic testing: Implications of genetic/biological attributions. *Psychology and Health*, 24(7), 749–761.
- 119. Hooper, B. (2014). Popular diets what is the evidence? Nutrition Bulletin, 39(3), 284–289.
- 120. Jeffery, R.W., & French, S. A. (1999). Socioeconomic Status and Weight Control Practices among 20- to 45-Year-Old Women. *American Journal of Public Health*, *86* (7), 1005-1010.
- Jelalian, E., Sato, A. & Hart, C. N. (2011). The Effect of Group-Based Weight-Control Intervention on Adolescent Psychosocial Outcomes: Perceived Peer Rejection, Social Anxiety, and Self-Concept. *Children's Health Care*, 40, 197–211.
- 122. Jonyniene, J. & Kern, R. M. (2012). Individual Psychology Lyfestyle and Parenting Style in Lithuanian Parents of 6 to 12 year olds. *International Journal of Psychology: A Biopsychosocial Approach, 11,* 89–117.
- 123. Kakizaki, M., Kuriyama, S., Sato, Y., Shimazu, T., Matsuda-Ohmori, K., Nakaya, N., Fukao, A. Fukudo, S., & Tsuji, I. (2008). Personality and body mass index: A cross-sectional analysis from the Miyagi Cohort Study. *Journal of Psychosomatic Research*, 64(1), 71-80.
- Kazakavičiūtė, A., Ramanauskaitė, J., & Venskutė, R. (2013). Adlerian lifestyle and conflict resolution strategies in a Lithuanian organization. *The Journal of Individual Psychology*, 69 (2), 156-167.

- Keer, M., Conner, M., Putte, B., & Neijens, P. (2014). The temporal stability and predictive validity of affect-based and cognition-based intentions. *British Journal of Social Psychology*, 53(2), 315-327.
- Kern, R. M., Gormley, L., & Curlette, W. L. (2008). BASIS-A Inventory empirical studies: Research findings from 2000 to 2006. *Journal of Individual Psychology*, 64, 280–309.
- 127. Kern, R. M., Gfroerer, K., Summers, Y., Curlette, W. L., & Matheny, K. (1996a). Lifestyle, personality, and stress coping. *Individual Psychology*, 52(1), 42–53.
- Kern, R. M., Penick, J., & Hamby, R. (1996b). Personality, Stress, and Prediction of Diabetic Regimen Compliance and BASIS-A Personality Indicators. *The Diabetes Educator*, 22, 367–373.
- 129. Kline, P. (2000). The handbook of psychological testing (2nd ed.). London: Routledge, page 13
- Knabe, A. (2012). Applying Ajzen's Theory of Planned Behaviour to a Study of Online Course Adoption in Public Relations Education. (2012). *Dissertations (2009)*. Paper 186. http://epublications.marquette.edu/dissertations_mu/186
- 131. Knight, T., Illingworth, K., & Ricciardelli, L. (2009). Health Implications of Body Size Perception and Weight Tolerance in Older Adults. *Journal of Health Psychology*, *14*(3), 425-434.
- 132. Koh-Banerjee, P., Wang, Y., Hu, F.B., Spiegelman, D., Willett, W.C., & Rimm, E. B. (2004). Changes in body weight and body fat distribution as risk factors for clinical diabetes in US men. *Americal Journal Emidemiol*, 159, 1150.
- 133. Kolotkin, R.L., Crosby, R.D., & Williams, G.R. (2008). Health-related quality of life varies among obese subgroups. *Obes Res*, *10*, 748–756.
- Koven, N., & Abry, A. (2015). The clinicalbasis of orthorexia nervosa: emerging perspectives. *Neuropsychiatric Disease and Treatment, 18*(11), 385-394.
- 135. Kraft, P., Rise, J., Sutton, S., & Røysamb, E. (2005). Perceived difficulty in the theory of planned behaviour: Perceived behavioural control or affective attitude? *British Journal of Social Psychology*, 44(3), 479–496.
- Krantz, D. S., Schneiderman, N., Chesney, M. A., McCann, B. S., Reading, A. E., Roskies, E., ... Williams, R. B. (1989). Biobehavioral research on cardiovascular disorders. Health Psychology, 8(6), 737–746.
- 137. Kristeller, J. L., Baer, R. A., & Quillian-Wolever, R. (2006). Mindfulness-based approaches to eating disorders. *Mindfulness-based treatment approaches: Clinician's guide to evidence base and applications*, 75-91.
- 138. Kristeller, J.L., &Wolever, R.Q. (2011). Mindfulness-Based Eating Awareness Training for treating binge eating disorder: The conceptual foundation. Eating Disorders, 19(1), 49–61.
- Kuo, T., & Tang, H. L. (2014). Relationships among personality traits, Facebook usages, and leisure activities – A case of Taiwanese college students. *Computers in Human Behaviour*, 31, 13-19
- 140. Leon, G. R., Fulkerson, J. A., Perry, C. L., Keel, P. K., & Klump, K. L. (1999). Journal of Youth and Adolescence, 28(2), 181–196.
- 141. Liesienė [Gaubė], J. (2010). Psychometric properties of BASIS-A: Lithuanian Version. International Young Scientists Conference, Šiauliai, Lithuania.
- 142. Liesienė [Gaubė], J., Endriulaitienė, A., Bukšnytė, L., Gustainienė, L., & Kern, R. M. (2010). Predicting Work Attitudes and Turnover Intentions Among Officers: The Importance of Adlerian Personality Attributes. *Is, Guc: The Journal of Industrial Relations and Human Resources*, 12(2), 43-58.
- 143. Loos, R.J., & Bouchard, C. (2008). FTO: the first gene contributing to common forms of human obesity. *Obesity Review*, *9*, 246–250.
- Loureiro, M. L., & Nayga, R. M. (2005). International Dimensions of Obesity and Overweight Related Problems: An Economics Perspective. American Journal of Agricultural Economics, 87(5), 1147–1153.

- Lubrano-Berthelier C. & Clement K. (2005). [Genetics of human obesity]. *Rev Med Interne*, 26, 802–811.
- 146. MacLaughlin, H. L., Hall, W. L., Patel, A. G., & Macdougall, I. C. (2012). Laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy is a novel and effective treatment for obesity in patients with chronic kidney disease. *Obesity surgery*, 22(1), 119-123.
- 147. Magee, C. A. & Heaven, P. C. L. (2011). Big five personality factors, obesity and 2-year weight gain in Australian adults. *Journal of Research in Personality*, 45 (3), 332-335.
- 148. Mailloux, G., Bergeron, S., Meilleur, D., D'Antono, B., & Dubé, I. (2014). Examining the Associations Between Overeating, Disinhibition, and Hunger in a Nonclinical Sample of College Women. *International Journal of Behavioural Medicine*, 21(2), 375-384, doi: 10.1007/s12529-013-9306-1
- Maneesriwongul, W., & Dixon, J. K. (2004). Instrument translation process: A methods review. Journal of Advanced Nursing Research, 48(2), 175-186.
- 150. Maximova, K., McGrath, J. J., Barnett, T.,O'Loughlin, J., Paradis, G., & Lambert, M. (2008). Do you see what I see? Weight status misperception and exposure to obesity among children and adolescents. *International Journal of Obesity*, *32*, 1008–1015.
- 151. Mathieu, J. (2009). What should you know about mindful eating and intuitive eating? *Journal of the American Dietetic Association, 109,* 1982–1987.
- 152. Mathieu, J.(2005). What is orthorexia? *Journal of Americal Dietetics Association*, 105(10), 1510–1512.
- McCarthy, M. (2014). Popular diets yield only modest benefits, systematic review finds. BMJ, 349(nov14 14), g6846–g6846.
- 154. Mei, Z., Grummer-Strawn, L.M., Pietrobelli, A., Goulding, A., Goran, M.I., Dietz W.H. (2002). Validity of body mass index compared with other body-composition screening indexes for the assessment of body fatness in children and adolescents. *American Journal of Clinical Nutrition* 7597–985.
- 155. Miller, D. J., Freedson, P. S., & Kline, G. M. (1994). Comparison of activity levels using accelerometer and five questionnaires. *Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise*, 26(3), 376-382.
- 156. Miller, C. T. & Downey, K. T. (1999). A Meta-Analysis of Heavyweight and Self-Esteem. *Personality and Social Psychology Review*, 3(1),68-84.
- 157. Miller, E. C., Schulz, M. R., Bibeau, D. L., Galka, A. M., Spann, L. I., Martin, L. B., ... Chase, C. M. (2008). Factors Associated with Misperception of Weight in the Stroke Belt. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 23(3), 323–328.
- 158. Miškinytė A., Perminas A., Šinkariova L. (2006). Valgymo elgesio sąsajos su nepasitenkinimu savo kūnu bei vaikystėje patirta fizine ir psichologine prievarta. *Medicina, 42* (11), 944-948.
- 159. Miškinytė A., Bagdonas A. (2010). Jaunų suaugusių požiūrio į savo kūną sąsajos su demografiniais rodikliais, *Psichologija, 42,* 85-101.
- 160. Miškinytė. A. (2011). The relationship of body image attitudes to personality traits and subjective quality of life / Vilnius University: Summary of Doctoral Dissertation: Social Sciences, Psychology (06S). Retrieved from Lithuanian Virtual Library, UDK: 159.923 (043.3).
- 161. Mogre, V., Abedandi, R., & Salifu, Z. S. (2014). Distorted Self-Perceived Weight Status and Underestimation of Weight Status in Diabetes Mellitus Type 2 Patients. *PLoS ONE 9*(4): e95165
- Moradi, B., & Rottenstein, A. (2007). Objectification theory and deaf cultural identity attitudes: Roles in deaf women's eating disorder symptomatology. *Journal of Counseling Psychology*, 54(2), 178.
- Mutch D. M., & Clement K. (2006). Genetics of human obesity. Best Pract Res Clin Endocrinol Metab, 20, 647–664.
- 164. Neumark-Sztainer, D., Sherwood, N.E., French, S.A., & Jeffery, R.W. (1999). Weight control behaviour among adult men and women: Cause for concern? *Obesity Research*, *7*, 179–188.

- Ogden, C. L. (2010). Prevalence of High Body Mass Index in US Children and Adolescents, 2007-2008. JAMA, 303(3), 242.
- 166. Ojala, K., Vereecken, C., Välimaa, R., Currie, C., Villberg, J., Tynjälä, J., & Kannas, L. (2007). Attempts to lose weight among overweight and non-overweight adolescents: a cross-national survey. *International Journal of Behavioral Nutrition and Physical Activity*, 4:50
- 167. O'Neil, C. E., Nicklas, T. A., & Fulgoni, V. L. (2014). Nutrient Intake, Diet Quality, and Weight/Adiposity Parameters in Breakfast Patterns Compared with No Breakfast in Adults: National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey 2001-2008. Journal of the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics, 114(12), 27–43.
- 168. Outland, L. (2010). Intuitive Eating. Holistic Nursing Practice, 24(1), 35-43.
- 169. Outland, L., Madanat, H., & Rust, F. (2013).Intuitive Eating for a Healthy Weight, *Primary Health Care*, *23*(9), 22-28.
- Parham-Payne, W. (2012). Weight Perceptions and Desired Body Size in a National Sample of African-American Men and Women with Diabetes. *Journal of African American Studies*, 17(4), 433–443.
- Pate, R. R., Taverno Ross, S. E., Liese, A. D., & Dowda, M. (2015). Associations among Physical Activity, Diet Quality, and Weight Status in US Adults. Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise, 47(4), 743–750.
- 172. Perugini, M. & Bagozzi, R.P. (2001). The role of desires and anticipated emotions in goal-directed behaviours: Broadening and deepening the theory of planned behaviour. *British Journal of Social Psychology*, 40(1), 79-98.
- 173. Polivy, J., & Herman, C. P. (1987). Diagnosis and treatment of normal eating. *Journal of consulting and clinical psychology*, 55(5), 635.
- 174. Polivy, J., & Herman, C. P. (1992). Undieting: A program to help people stop dieting. *International Journal of Eating Disorders*, 11(3), 261-268.
- 175. Presseau, J., Sniehotta, F.F., Francis, J.J. and Gebhardt, W.A. (2010). With a little help from my goals: Integrating inter goal facilitation with the theory of planned behaviour to predict physical activity. *British Journal of Health Psychology*, *15*, 905–919
- 176. Prochaska J.O., Velicer W.F. (1997). The transtheoretical model of health behavior change. *American Journal of Health Promotion*, *12*, 38–48.
- 177. Provencher, V., Begin, C., Tremblay, A. et al. (2009) Health-At- Every-Size and eating behaviours: 1-year follow-up results of a size acceptance intervention. *Journal of the American Dietetic Association, 109,* 1854–1861.
- Provencher, V., Bégin, C., Gagnon-Girouard, M.-P., Tremblay, A., Boivin, S., & Lemieux, S. (2008). Personality traits in overweight and obese women: Associations with BMI and eating behaviours. Eating Behaviours, 9(3), 294–302.
- 179. Provencher, V., Polivy, J., Wintre M. G., Pratt, M. W., Pancer, S. M., Birnie-Lefcovitch, S.,& Adams, G. R. (2008). Who gains or who loses weight? Psychosocial factors among first-year university students. *Physiology & Behaviour*, *96*, 135–141.
- Rahman, M., & Berenson, A. B. (2010). Self-Perception of Weight and Its Association With Weight-Related Behaviors in Young, Reproductive-Aged Women. *Obstetrics & Gynecology*, *116* (6), 1274-1280.
- 181. Ramažauskienė, V. (2011). Suaugusiųjų Lietuvos Gyventojų Mityba ir Lipidų Apykaitos Sutrikimai 1987–2007 metais / Lithuanian University of Health Science, Academy of Medicine: Biomedical Science, Public Health (09 B), Retrieved from ETD (LT), URL:
- 182. http://vddb.library.lt/obj/LT-eLABa-0001:E.02~2011~D_20111220_141247-63539
- 183. Rawana, J. S. (2013). The relative importance of body change strategies, weight perception, perceived social support, and self-esteem on adolescent depressive symptoms: Longitudinal findings from a national sample. *Journal of Psychosomatic Research*, *75*, 49–54.

- Rice J., Thombs D., Leach R., & Rehm R. (2008). Successes and barriers for a youth weight management program. *Clin Pediatr*, 47,143–147.
- 185. Riou, M.È., Doucet, É., Provencher, V., Weisnagel, S. J., Piché, M.È., Dubé, M.C., ... Lemieux, S. (2011). Influence of Physical Activity Participation on the Associations between Eating Behaviour Traits and Body Mass Index in Healthy Postmenopausal Women. Journal of Obesity, 2011, 1–9.
- Rivis, A., & Sheeran, P. (2003). Descriptive norms as an additional predictor in the theory of planned behaviour: A meta-analysis. *Current Psychology*, 22(3), 218–233.
- Rocha, V.Z., & Libby, P. (2009). Obesity, inflammation, and atherosclerosis. *Nat Rev Cardiol, 6*, 399
- 188. Roehling, M. V., Roehling, P. V., & Odland, L. M. (2008). Investigating the validity of stereotype about overweight employees: the relationship between body weight and normal personality traits. *Group and Organization Management, 33,* 392-424.
- 189. Rose, S. A., Poynter, P.S., Anderson, J. W., Noar, S. M., & Conigliaro, J. (2013). Physician weight loss advice and patient weight loss behaviour change: a literature review and meta-analysis of survey data. *International Journal of Obesity*, 37, 118 - 128.
- Ross, M. & Wade, T.D. (2004). Shape and Weight Concern and Self-esteem as Mediators of Externalized Self-perception, Dietary Restraint and Uncontrolled Eating. *European Eating Disorders Review*, 12, 129–136.
- 191. Rozin, P., Fischler, C., Imada, S., Sarubin, A., & Wresniewski, A. (1999). Attitudes to Food and the Role of Food in Life in the U.S.A., Japan, Flemish Belgium and France: Possible Implications for the Diet–Health Debate. *Appetite*, *33*(2), 163–180.
- 192. Sallis, J. F., Nader, P. R., Broyles, S. L., Berry, C. C., & et al. (1993). Correlates of physical activity at home in Mexican-American and Anglo-American preschool children. Health Psychology, 12(5), 390–398.
- 193. Sanchez, M. (2004). Obesity "Epidemic" has financial implications. *Grand Rapids Business Journal, October 4, 22*(41): 3-12.
- 194. Santamaria, N. (2002). The relationship between nurses' personality and stress levels reported when caring for interpersonally difficult patients. *Australian Journal of Advanced Nursing*. 18(2), 20-26.
- 195. Sapp, S. G. (2002). Incomplete Knowledge and Attitude-Behaviour Inconsistency, Soc Behav Pers, 30(1), 37–44.
- Savaiano-Brady, G. (2001). Lifestyle themes in the eating disorder population as measured by the BASIS-Aand the EDI-2 (Doctoral dissertation, Adler School of Professional Psychology, 2000). Dissertation Abstracts International: Section B: The Sciences & Engineering, 67(4-B), 2220.
- 197. Schmitt, N. (1996). Uses and abuses of coefficient alpha. *Psychological Assessment*, *8*, 350-353.
- Seligman, M. E., & Csikszentmihalyi, M. (2000). *Positive psychology: An introduction* (Vol. 55, No. 1, p. 5). American Psychological Association.
- Sheeran, P. (2002). Intention-behaviour relations: A conceptual and empirical review. In W. Stroebe & M. Hewstone (Eds.), *European Review of Social Psychology* (Vol. 12, pp. 1-36). Chichester: Wiley.
- Sideridis, Georgios D.; Kaissidis-Rodafinos, Aggelos (2001).Goal importance within planned behaviour theory as 'the' predictor of study behaviour in college. *British Journal of Educational Psychology*, 71(4), 595-618.
- 201. Silva, A. S. F. (2007). The relationship between personality traits and eating pathology in adolescent girls. *Archives of Women's Mental Health, 10,* 285–292.
- Smith, M. A., & Leigh, B. (1997). Virtual subjects: Using the Internet as an alternative source of subjects and research environment. Behavior Research Methods, Instruments, & Computers, 29(4), 496–505.

- 203. Soares, M. J., Macedo, A., CarvalhoBos, S., Marques, M., Maia, B., Pereira, A. T., Gomes, A., Valente, J., Pato, M., & Azevedo, M. H. (2009).Perfectionism and Eating Attitudes in Portuguese Students: A Longitudinal Study. *European Eating Disorders Review*, 17, 390–398.
- 204. Squiers, L., Renaud, J., McCormack, L., Tzeng, J., Bann, C., & Williams, P. (2014). How Accurate Are Americans' Perceptions of Their Own Weight? *Journal of Health Communication*, 19 (7), 795-812.
- Steese, S., DoUette, M., Phillips, W., Hossfeld, E., Matthews, G. & Taormina, G. (2006). Understanding girls' circle as an intervention on perceived social support, body image, self-efficacy, locus of control, and self-esteem. *Adolescence*, 41 (161),
- Steinhardt, M. A., Bezner, J. R., & Adams, T. B. (1999). Outcomes of a traditional weight control program and a nondiet alternative: a one-year comparison. *The Journal of psychology*, 133(5), 495-513.
- 207. Stice, E. (2002). Risk and maintenance factors for eating pathology: A meta-analytic review. *Psychological Bulletin*, *128*(5), 825–848.
- Stice, E., & Agras, W. S. (1998). Predicting the onset and remission of bulimic behaviors in adolescence: A longitudinal groping analysis. *Behaviour Therapy*, 29, 257–276.
- Stice, E., Nemeroff, C., & Shaw, H. E. (1996). Test of the Dual Pathway Model of Bulimia Nervosa: Evidence for Dietary Restraint and Affect Regulation Mechanisms. *Journal of Social and Clinical Psychology*, 15(3), 340–363
- Stoltz, K. B., & Kern, R. M. (2007). Integrating Lifestyle, the Therapeutic Process, and the Stages of Change. *The Journal of Individual Psychology*, 63 (1), 32-47.
- Stoltz, K. B., Reysen, R. H., Wolff, L. A., & Kern, R. M. (2009). Lifestyle and Change in weight loss. *Journal of Individual Psychology*, 65, 69–85.
- Stoltz, K. B., Wolff, L. A., Monroe, A. E., Farris, H.R., & Mazahreh, L.G. (2013). Adlerian Lifestyle, Stress Coping, and Career Adaptability: Relationships and Dimensions. *Career Development Quarterly*, 61(3), 194-209.
- Strauch, M., & Erez, M., (2009). The Restrictive Personality: Anorexia Nervosa and Adlerian Life Tasks. *The journal of Individual Psychology*, 65(3), 203-211.
- Strecher, V. J. & Rosenstock, I. M. (1997). The Health Belief Model. In Cambridge Handbook of Psychology, Health and Medicine (p.115). Cambridge, United Kingdom: Cambridge University Press.
- 215. Stubbs, J., Whybrow, S., Teixeira, P., Blundell, J., Lawton, C, Westenhoefer, J., Engel, D., Shepherd, R., Mcconnon, A., Gilbert, P., & Raats, M.(2011). Problems in identifying predictors and correlates of weight loss and maintenance: implications for weight control therapies based on behaviour change. *Obesity reviews*, 12, 688–708.
- 216. Sundararajan, K., Campbell, M. K., Choi, Y.-H., & Sarma, S. (2014). The Relationship Between Diet Quality and Adult Obesity: Evidence from Canada. Journal of the American College of Nutrition, 33(1), 1–17.
- 217. Sung, J., Lee, K., & Song, Y.-M. (2009). Relationship of eating behaviour to long-term weight change and body mass index: The Healthy Twin study. Eat Weight Disord, 14(2-3), e98–e105.
- 218. Suprina, J. S. (2006). Using Life-Style and Coping Resources to Differentiate Between Gay Men with and Without Alcohol Problems: An Adlerian Study. *Counseling and Psychological Services Dissertations*. Paper 5.
- 219. Sutin et al. (2013). I Know Not To, but I Can't Help It: Weight Gain and Changes in Impulsivity-Related Personality Traits. *Psychological Science (Sage Publications Inc.)*,24(7), 1323-1328.
- 220. Sutin, A.R., Ferrucci, L., Zonderman, A.B., & Terracciano, A.(2011). Personality and obesity across the adult life span. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, *101*(3), 579-92.

- 221. Sutin, A. R., & Terracciano, A. (2014). Five-Factor Model Personality Traits and the Objective and Subjective Experience of Body Weight. Journal of Personality, n/a–n/a. doi:10.1111/jopy.12143
- 222. Swami, V., Tran, U. S., Brooks, L. H., Kanaan, L., Luesse, E-M., Nader, I. W., Pietschnig, J., Stieger, S., & Voracek, M. (2013). Body image and personality: Associations between the Big Five Personality Factors, actual-ideal weight discrepancy, and body appreciation. *Scandinavian Journal of Psychology*, 54, 146–151.
- 223. Tasca, G. A., Demidenko, N., Krysanski, V., Bissada, H., Illing, V., Gick, M., Weekes, K., & Balfour, L.(2009). Personality Dimensions among Women with an Eating Disorder: Towards Reconceptualizing DSM. *Eur. Eat. Disorders Rev.* 17,281–289.
- 224. Terracciano A., Sutin A. R., McCrae R. R, Deiana B., Ferrucci L., Schlessinger D. et al. (2009). Facets of Personality Linked to Underweight and Overweight. *Psychosomatic Medicine*, 71(6), 682–689.
- 225. Terry, D. J., & O'Leary, J. E. (1995). The theory of planned behaviour: The effects of perceived behavioural control and self-efficacy. *British Journal of Social Psychology*, 34(2), 199–220.
- Teixeira P.J., Going S.B., Sardinha L.B., & Lohman T.G. (2005). A review of psychosocial pretreatment predictors of weight control. *Obesity Review*, 6, 43–65.
- 227. Thompson D., Baranowski T., Cullen K., Watson K., Liu Y., Canada A., Bhatt R., & Zakeri I.(2008). Food, fun, and fitness internet program for girls: pilot evaluation of an e-Health youth obesity prevention program examining predictors of obesity. *Prev Med*,47,494–497.
- 228. Tribole, E. & Resch, E. (1995) Intuitive Eating: A Revolutionary Program that Works. New York: St. Martin's Press.
- Tuthill, A., Slawik, H., O'Rahilly, S., & Finer, N. (2006). Psychiatric comorbidities in patients attending specialist obesity services in the UK.Q J Med, 99, 317–325.
- 230. Tylka, T. L. (2006). Development and psychometric evaluation of a measure of intuitive eating. *Journal of Counseling Psychology*, 53(2), 226–240.
- Tylka, T. L., & Kroon Van Diest, A. M. (2013). The Intuitive Eating Scale-2: Item refinement and psychometric evaluation with college women and men. *Journal of Counseling Psychology*, 60(1), 137–153.
- Tylka, T. L., & Hill, M. S. (2004). Objectification Theory as It Relates to Disordered Eating Among College Women. Sex Roles, 51(11-12), 719–730.
- Tylka, T. L., & Wilcox, J. A. (2006). Are intuitive eating and eating disorder symptomatology opposite poles of the same construct? Journal of Counselling Psychology, 53(4), 474–485.
- Urbonaitė-Vainienė (2013). Apetitu nesiskundžiame: skrandžių mažinimas valstybei kainuoja milijonus, www.delfi.lt, November 10.
- 235. van der Merwe, M-T. (2007). Psychological correlates of obesity in women. *International Journal* of Obesity, 31, 14–18.
- Van der Wal, J.S., Gibbons, J. L., &del Pilar Grazioso, M. (2008). The sociocultural model of eating disorder development: Application to a Guatemalan sample. *Eating Behaviours*, 9, 277– 284.
- 237. Van Diest, A.K. (2007). Gender Differences in Intuitive Eating and Factors That Negatively Influence Intuitive Eating, A Senior Honors Thesis, The Ohio State University.
- Van Dyke, N., & Drinkwater, E. J. (2013). Review Article Relationships between intuitive eating and health indicators: literature review. *Public Health Nutr.* 17(08), 1757–1766.
- 239. Van Minnen, K., Davis, W. A., Bruce, D. G., & Davis, T. M.E. (2011). Accuracy, determinants, and consequences of body weight self-perception in type 2 diabetes: the Fremantle Diabetes Study. *Journal of Diabetes & its Complications*, 25 (1), 1-6.

- 240. Van Widenfelt, B. M., Treffers, P. D. A., de Beurs, E., Siebelink, B. M., & ElsKoudijs, E. (2005). Translation and cross-cultural adaptation of assessment instruments used in psychological research with children and families. *Clinical Child and Family Psychology Review*, 8(2), 135-147.
- 241. Varga, M., Dukay-Szabó, S., Túry, F., & van FurthEric, F. (2013). Evidence and gaps in the literature on orthorexia nervosa. *Eat Weight Disord*, *18*(2), 103–111.
- 242. Verheijden, M. W., Bakx, J. C., van Weel, C., Koelen, M. A., & van Staveren, W. A. (2005). Role of social support in lifestyle-focused weight management interventions. *European Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 59, S179–S186.
- 243. Vitale, E., Jirillo, E., & Magrone, T. (2014). Correlations between the Youth Healthy Eating Index, Body Mass Index and the Salivary Nitric Oxide Concentration in Overweight/Obese Children. *EMIDDT*, 14(2), 93–101.
- 244. Vohs, K. D., Bardone, A. M., Joiner, T. E., & Abramson, L. Y. (1999). Perfectionism, perceived weight status, and self-esteem interact to predict bulimic symptoms: A model of bulimic symptom development. Journal of Abnormal Psychology, 108(4), 695–700.
- 245. Wang, W. C., & Worsley, A. (2014). Healthy eating norms and food consumption. European Journal of Clinical Nutrition, 68(5), 592–601.
- 246. Wardle, J., & Steptoe, A. (1991). The European health and behaviour survey: Rationale, methods and initial results from the United Kingdom. *Social Science & Medicine*, *33*(8), 925–936.
- 247. Watt, R. G., Heilmann, A., Sabbah, W., Newton, T., Chandola, T., Aida, J., ... Tsakos, G. (2014). Social relationships and health related behaviors among older US adults. BMC Public Health, 14(1), 533.
- 248. Wheeler, M.S. & Acheson, S.K. (1993). Criterion-related validity of the LifeStyle Personality Inventory. Individual Psychology, 49, 51-57.
- 249. Wheeler , M. S., Kern, R. M., & Curlette, W. L. (1993). Basic Adlerian Scales for Interpersonal Success-Adult Form (BASIS-A) Inventory. Highlands, North Carolina, USA: TRT Associates.
- Wethington, E., & Kessler, R. C. (1986). Perceived Support, Received Support, and Adjustment to Stressful Life Events. *Journal of Health and Social Behaviour*, 27(1), 78.
- 251. White, P. E. (1990). A multidimensional analysis of the mental health of graduate counsellors in training. (Doctoral dissertation, Georgia State University, 1989). Dissertation Abstracts International, 50, 3488A.
- 252. White, M.A., O'Neil, P.M., Kolotkin, R.L., & Byrne, T.K. (2004). Gender, race, and obesityrelated quality of life at extreme levels of obesity. *Obesity Research*, 12, 949–955.
- 253. Wills, T. A. (1994). Self-esteem and perceived control in adolescent substance use: Comparative tests in concurrent and prospective analyses. *Psychology of Addictive Behaviours*, 8(4), 223–234.
- Wing, R. R., & Hill, J. O. (2001). Successful Weight Loss Maintenance. Annu. Rev. Nutr., 21(1), 323–341..
- Wolever, R. Q., & Best, J. L. (2009). Mindfulness-Based Approaches to Eating Disorders. Clinical Handbook of Mindfulness, 259–287.
- 256. World health organization (2010). Global Recommendations on Physical Activity for Health. Downloaded from: http://www.who.int/dietphysicalactivity/publications/9789241599979/en/
- 257. World health organization (2014). Global Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health. http://www.who.int/dietphysicalactivity/diet/en/
- 258. Yang, K., Turk, M.T., Allison, V.L., James, K.A., & Chasens, E. (2014). Body Mass Index Self-Perception and Weight Management Behaviours During Late Adolescence. *Journal of School Health*, 84(10), 654-660.
- Zimet, G. D., Dahlem, N. W., Zimet, S. G., & Farley, G. K. (1988). The Multidimensional Scale of Perceived Social Support. *Journal of Personality Assessment*, 52(1), 30–41.

APPENDIXES

		М	SD	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
1.	BMI	22.73	4.00	1	.624**	.150**	.044	.006	025	.275**
	BMI(Lg10)	1.35	0.07							
2.	Perceived	3.58	0.68		1	.268**	015	039	.348**	.004
3.	Intention					1	.252**	.179**	.548	.257**
4.	Healthy	3.25	0.63				1	.320**	.310**	.239**
5.	Good	5.33	1.28					1	.109**	.110**
6.	Physical	33.49	27.97						1	.242**
7.	Controlling	1.68	0.48							1
8.	UPE	3.44	0.67							
9.	EPR	3.42	0.94							
10.	RHSC	3.37	0.84							
11	B-FCC	3.50	0.83							
12.	BSI	33.06	5.95							
	BSI (Sqrt)(-)	3.50	0.83							
13.	GA	30.11	5.27							
14.	TC	20.80	6.76							
15.	WR	41.07	5.71							
16.	BC	18.21	7.15							
	BC (Sqrt)	4.18	0.83							
17.	Н	12.97	2.59							
18.	Е	16.35	4.18							
19.	L	22.09	3.43							
20.	Р	21.42	3.37							
21.	S	19.19	3.30							
22.	Self	3.34	0.64							
23.	Motiv	3.42	0.70							
24.	Soc	5.43	1.17							
	Soc (Sqrt) (-)	1.56	0.36							
25.	Marit									
26.	Income	2.90	1.15							
27.	Age	32.43	9.80							
28.	Parents	2.75	1.14							

Table 1.1 Means, standard deviations and correlations of the main variables (N=784)

Note. BMI = body mass index; Perceived = perceived weight situation; Intention= 1 - has no active intention to manage weight, 2 - has an active intention to keep or lose weight; Healthy = healthy eating; Good = good eating habits; Physical = physical activity; Controlling = weight controlling behaviour; UPE = Unconditional permission to eat; EPR = Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons; RHSC = Reliance on Hunger and Satiety Cues; B-FCC = Body-food choice congruence; BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Marital= 1 - single; 2 - in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); Lg10 = Logarithmed variable; Sqrt = Root-Square transformed variable; *p<0.05; **p<0.01; ^(c) = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables.

		8	9	10	11	12	13	14
1.	BMI(Lg10)	155**	255**	238**	078*	.085*	008	.079*
2.	Perceived	268**	291**	392**	165**	059	012	.072
3.	Intention	417**	096*	203**	.134**	073	047	.086*
4.	Healthy	360**	.107**	.129**	.447**	105*	.008	.074
5.	Good	222**	.341**	.137**	.175**	190**	.046	.057
6.	Physical	465**	220**	261**	.130**	089*	150**	.148**
7.	Controlling	200**	002	.032	.186**	055	103**	.047
8.	UPE	1	.198**	.326**	149**	.102**	.049	135**
9.	EPR		1	.420**	.172**	198**	.167**	035
10.	RHSC			1	.325**	080*	.011	.002
11.	B-FCC				1	114**	061	.090*
12.	BSI(Sqrt) (-)					1	.004	394**
13.	GA						1	506**
14.	TC							1
15.	WR							
16.	BC							
17.	Н							
18.	Е							
19.	L							
20.	Р							
21.	S							
22.	Self-EV							
23.	Motiv							
24.	Soc(Sqrt)(-)							
25.	Marit3							
26.	Income							
27.	Age							
28.	Parents'							
Note. I	BMI = body n	nass index; P	erceived = pe	rceived weigh	t situation; In	tention= 1 -	has no activ	e intention to

Table 1.2 Correlations of the main variables (N=784)

Note. BMI = body mass index; Perceived = perceived weight situation; Intention= 1 - has no active intention to manage weight, 2 - has an active intention to keep or lose weight; Healthy = healthy eating; Good = good eating habits; Physical = physical activity; Controlling = weight controlling behaviour; UPE = Unconditional permission to eat; EPR = Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons; RHSC = Reliance on Hunger and Satiety Cues; B-FCC = Body-food choice congruence; BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Marital= 1 - single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh)); Lg10 = Logarithmed variable; Sqrt = Root-Square transformed variable; *p<0.05; **p<0.01; (·) = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables.

		15	16	17	18	19	20	21
1.	BMI(Lg10)	019	.115**	.022	066	030	.114**	022
2.	Perceived	004	.088*	.062	042	019	.000	037
3.	Intention	.078*	050	029	.043	.054	.075	.039
4.	Healthy	032	086*	144**	.023	075*	.178**	.134**
5.	Good	083*	127**	112**	.020	107**	.183**	.169**
6.	Physical	.008	007	.035	.083*	031	.046	.029
7.	Controlling	024	.014	.023	.038	021	.041	.010
8.	UPE	.038	.029	0.28	079*	221**	184**	041
9.	EPR	088**	219**	246**	.041	122**	.150**	.251**
10.	RHSC	.058	003	045	.017	.047	.207**	.046
11.	B-FCC	.102**	044	072	.067	.067	.188**	.097*
12.	BSI(Sqrt) (-)	097*	.297**	.393**	230**	.071	465**	610**
13.	GA	085*	412**	465**	234**	047	.098*	.326**
14.	TC	.279**	.062	.071	.418**	.109**	.266**	.074
15.	WR	1	.048	048	.105*	.890**	.312**	.027
16.	BC		1	.519**	203**	.095*	288**	553**
17.	Н			1	083*	.015	320**	521**
18.	E				1	.034	.129**	.127**
19.	L					1	.170**	098*
20.	Р						1	.411**
21.	S							1
22.	Self-EV							
23.	Motiv							
24.	Soc(Sqrt)(-)							
25.	Marit3							
26.	Income							
27.	Age							
28.	Parents'							

Table 1.3. Correlations of the main variables (N=784)

Note. BMI = body mass index; Perceived = perceived weight situation; Intention= 1 - has no active intention to manage weight, 2 - has an active intention to keep or lose weight; Healthy = healthy eating; Good = good eating habits; Physical = physical activity; Controlling = weight controlling behaviour; UPE = Unconditional permission to eat; EPR = Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons; RHSC = Reliance on Hunger and Satiety Cues; B-FCC = Body-food choice congruence; BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Marital= 1 - single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight); Lg10 = Logarithmed variable; Sqrt = Root-Square transformed variable; *p<0.05; **p<0.01; ⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables.

		22	23	24	25	26	27	28
1.	BMI(Lg10)	.020	148**	095**	.047	.015	.384**	.173**
2.	Perceived	.224**	050	.143**	015	106**	.048	.174**
3.	Intention	.192**	.287**	.032	033	013	074	.096*
4.	Healthy	065	.169**	103**	031	.122**	.091*	.046
5.	Good	117**	.107**	115**	.072	.093*	.0152**	.013
6.	Physical	.189**	.253**	.012	067	031	018	.169**
7.	Controlling	.045	.185**	009	122**	034	117**	.011
8.	UPE	221**	184**	041	.081*	.067	.099**	091*
9.	EPR	248**	.065	219**	.217**	.156**	.029	164**
10.	RHSC	221**	.017	181**	.053	.103**	.108**	139**
11.	B-FCC	055	.187**	138**	.005	.069	.011	029
12.	BSI (Sqrt) (-)	.086*	092*	.312**	188**	067	065	.012
13.	GA	141**	138**	098*	.038	084*	005	105**
14.	TC	.084*	.171**	094	.074	.109**	002	.110**
15.	WR	.216**	.145**	044	.018	.109**	168**	.088**
16.	BC	.101**	068	.368**	075*	100**	.088*	.089*
17.	Н	.105**	050	.319**	176**	086*	.007	.045
18.	Е	.144**	.236**	199**	.021	.076*	161**	.030
19.	L	.225**	.114**	.020	010	.101**	148**	.062
20.	Р	095*	.104**	214**	.083*	.097*	.083*	.024
21.	S	119**	.070	332**	.147**	.093*	.047	052
22.	Self-EV	1	.520**	.137**	092*	062	176**	.048
23.	Motivation		1	065	048	.055	136**	016
24.	Soc(Sqrt) (-)			1	297**	107*	.086*	.039
25.	Marit3				1	.103**	.159**	001
26.	Income					1	.100**	040
27.	Age						1	092*
28.	Parents'							1

Table 1.4. Correlations of the main variables (N=784)

Note. BMI = body mass index; Perceived = perceived weight situation; Intention= 1 - has no active intention to manage weight, 2 - has an active intention to keep or lose weight; Healthy = healthy eating; Good = good eating habits; Physical = physical activity; Controlling = weight controlling behaviour; UPE = Unconditional permission to eat; EPR = Eating for physical rather than emotional reasons; RHSC = Reliance on Hunger and Satiety Cues; B-FCC = Body-food choice congruence; BSI = Belonging/Social Interest; GA = Going Along; TC = Taking Charge; WR = Wanting Recognition; BC = Being Cautious; H = Harshness; E = Entitlement; L = Liked by all; P = Striving for perfection; S = Softness; Appearance= Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivational towards appearance; Soc = Perceived social support; Marital= 1 - single; 2 - in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents = Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); Lg10 = Logarithmed variable; Sqrt = Root-Square transformed variable; *p<0.05; **p<0.01; ⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables.

	R	R	Adjus	ted R SE	Coefficients for BMI			
		Square	e Squ	are	В	SE	t	p value
(1) Three groups of BMI								
Decreased BMI	.257	.066	.050	.711	10.524	5.233	2.011	.049
Normal BMI	.292	.085	.083	.563	3.970	.560	7.095	.000
Increased BMI	.386	.149	.144	.492	4.186	.746	5.615	.000
(2) Three groups of weight change								
Gained	.507	.257	.254	.547	4.183	.412	10.164	.000
The same	.601	.361	.359	.549	6.536	.494	13.238	.000
Lost	.697	.486	.483	.527	6.955	.550	12.647	.000
(3) Three groups of habits'	change							
Now is worse	.396	.157	.152	.595	3.012	.508	5.931	.000
The same	.709	.502	.500	.515	8.069	.476	16.951	.000
Now is better	.668	.446	.444	.509	6.430	.411	15.647	.000

Table 2.1. Linear regression of BMI for perceived weight situation in various groups: model summaries and information on the significance of BMI (N=784)

Note. R Square= coefficient of determination; SE = standard error; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; dependent variable = perceived weight situation
Table 3.1.	The distribution	of perceived	other's	opinion	about	one's	weight	situation	in thre	e groups	s of
decreased,	normal and incr	reased BMI (N	/=784).								

Corr	elat	tion between perceived other's	Looking	g at me the n	nost people	e would tell	that my	Total
opin	ion	about one's weight situation and		,	weight is			
BM	[: r=	=0.681, p=0.000	Very decreased	A little decreased	Normal	A little increased	Very increased	
		Count	15	31	13	0	0	59
	ased	% within three groups of BMI	25.4%	52.5%	22.0%	0.0%	0.0%	100.0%
п	ecre	% within Most people would tell	65.2%	27.0%	2.9%	0.0%	0.0%	7.5%
f BM de	p	Count	8	83	386	64	2	543
s of	al	% within three groups of BMI	1.5%	15.3%	71.1%	11.8%	0.4%	100.0%
dno	norm	% within Most people would tell	34.8%	72.2%	87.5%	38.6%	5.1%	69.3%
5	ц	Count	0	1	42	102	37	182
	ased	% within three groups of BMI	0.0%	0.5%	23.1%	56.0%	20.3%	100.0%
	ncre	% within Most people would tell	0.0%	0.9%	9.5%	61.4%	94.9%	23.2%
	.=	Count	23	115	441	166	39	784
Tota	1	% within three groups of BMI	2.9%	14.7%	56.3%	21.2%	5.0%	100.0%
		% within Most people would tell	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%

APPENDIX 4

perceives lower weight 22 33.64 3.995 31.87 35.41 0.695 BSI correct perceived weight 480 33.23 5.897 32.70 33.76 perceives higher weight 282 32.74 6.151 32.02 33.46 Total 784 33.06 5.945 32.65 33.48 perceives lower weight 22 29.36 4.635 27.31 31.42 0.255 GA correct perceived weight 480 30.16 5.248 29.69 30.63 perceives higher weight 282 30.07 5.368 29.44 30.70 Total 784 30.11 5.271 29.74 30.48 perceives lower weight 22 21.68 4.390 19.74 23.63 0.19' TC correct perceived weight 480 20.76 6.742 20.15 21.36 perceives higher weight 282 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 <th>p value</th>	p value
BSI correct perceived weight perceives higher weight 480 33.23 5.897 32.70 33.76 Total 784 33.06 5.945 32.65 33.46 Total 784 33.06 5.945 32.65 33.48 perceives lower weight 22 29.36 4.635 27.31 31.42 0.252 GA correct perceived weight 480 30.16 5.248 29.69 30.63 perceives higher weight 22 21.68 4.390 19.74 23.63 0.197 TC correct perceived weight 480 20.76 6.742 20.15 21.36 perceives lower weight 22 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 per	0.498
BS1 perceives higher weight 282 32.74 6.151 32.02 33.46 Total 784 33.06 5.945 32.65 33.48 perceives lower weight 22 29.36 4.635 27.31 31.42 0.252 GA correct perceived weight 480 30.16 5.248 29.69 30.63 perceives higher weight 282 30.07 5.368 29.44 30.70 Total 784 30.11 5.271 29.74 30.48 perceives lower weight 22 21.68 4.390 19.74 23.63 0.19' TC correct perceived weight 480 20.76 6.742 20.15 21.36 perceives higher weight 282 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.58' WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 perc	
$ \begin{array}{c} \mbox{Total} & 784 & 33.06 & 5.945 & 32.65 & 33.48 \\ \mbox{perceives lower weight} & 22 & 29.36 & 4.635 & 27.31 & 31.42 & 0.25: \\ \mbox{correct perceived weight} & 480 & 30.16 & 5.248 & 29.69 & 30.63 \\ \mbox{perceives higher weight} & 282 & 30.07 & 5.368 & 29.44 & 30.70 \\ \mbox{Total} & 784 & 30.11 & 5.271 & 29.74 & 30.48 \\ \mbox{perceives lower weight} & 22 & 21.68 & 4.390 & 19.74 & 23.63 & 0.19' \\ \mbox{correct perceived weight} & 480 & 20.76 & 6.742 & 20.15 & 21.36 \\ \mbox{perceives higher weight} & 282 & 20.80 & 6.964 & 19.99 & 21.62 \\ \mbox{Total} & 784 & 20.80 & 6.764 & 20.33 & 21.27 \\ \mbox{perceives lower weight} & 22 & 40.14 & 5.575 & 37.66 & 42.61 & 1.58: \\ \mbox{WR} & \mbox{correct perceived weight} & 480 & 40.85 & 5.590 & 40.35 & 41.35 \\ \mbox{perceives higher weight} & 282 & 41.53 & 5.907 & 40.84 & 42.22 \\ \mbox{Total} & 784 & 41.07 & 5.710 & 40.67 & 41.47 \\ \end{array}$	
$ \begin{array}{c} {\rm GA} & \begin{array}{c} {\rm perceives\ lower\ weight} & 22 & 29.36 & 4.635 & 27.31 & 31.42 & 0.255 \\ {\rm correct\ perceived\ weight} & 480 & 30.16 & 5.248 & 29.69 & 30.63 \\ {\rm perceives\ higher\ weight} & 282 & 30.07 & 5.368 & 29.44 & 30.70 \\ {\rm Total} & 784 & 30.11 & 5.271 & 29.74 & 30.48 \\ {\rm perceives\ lower\ weight} & 22 & 21.68 & 4.390 & 19.74 & 23.63 & 0.19 \\ {\rm correct\ perceived\ weight} & 480 & 20.76 & 6.742 & 20.15 & 21.36 \\ {\rm perceives\ higher\ weight} & 282 & 20.80 & 6.964 & 19.99 & 21.62 \\ {\rm Total} & 784 & 20.80 & 6.764 & 20.33 & 21.27 \\ {\rm perceives\ lower\ weight} & 22 & 40.14 & 5.575 & 37.66 & 42.61 & 1.582 \\ \end{array} \\ {\rm WR} & \begin{array}{c} {\rm correct\ perceived\ weight} & 480 & 40.85 & 5.590 & 40.35 & 41.35 \\ {\rm perceives\ higher\ weight} & 282 & 41.53 & 5.907 & 40.84 & 42.22 \\ {\rm Total} & 784 & 41.07 & 5.710 & 40.67 & 41.47 \\ \end{array} $	
GA correct perceived weight perceives higher weight 480 30.16 5.248 29.69 30.63 Total 784 30.11 5.271 29.74 30.48 perceives lower weight 22 21.68 4.390 19.74 23.63 0.197 TC correct perceived weight 480 20.76 6.742 20.15 21.36 perceives higher weight 282 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.907 40.84 42.22 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	0.778
OA perceives higher weight 282 30.07 5.368 29.44 30.70 Total 784 30.11 5.271 29.74 30.48 perceives lower weight 22 21.68 4.390 19.74 23.63 0.19 TC correct perceived weight 480 20.76 6.742 20.15 21.36 perceives higher weight 282 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.907 40.84 42.22 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
Total 784 30.11 5.271 29.74 30.48 perceives lower weight 22 21.68 4.390 19.74 23.63 0.19 TC correct perceived weight 480 20.76 6.742 20.15 21.36 perceives higher weight 282 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.907 40.84 42.22 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
TC perceives lower weight correct perceived weight 22 21.68 4.390 19.74 23.63 0.19 TC correct perceived weight perceives higher weight 282 20.80 6.742 20.15 21.36 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.590 40.35 41.35 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
TC correct perceived weight perceives higher weight 480 20.76 6.742 20.15 21.36 Total 282 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	0.821
IC perceives higher weight 282 20.80 6.964 19.99 21.62 Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
Total 784 20.80 6.764 20.33 21.27 perceives lower weight 22 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.907 40.84 42.22 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
WR perceives lower weight correct perceived weight 22 480 40.14 5.575 37.66 42.61 1.582 WR correct perceived weight perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.590 40.35 41.35 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
WR correct perceived weight 480 40.85 5.590 40.35 41.35 perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.907 40.84 42.22 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	0.206
WR perceives higher weight 282 41.53 5.907 40.84 42.22 Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
Total 784 41.07 5.710 40.67 41.47	
perceives lower weight 22 19.00 6.079 16.30 21.70 1.12	0.327
correct perceived weight 480 17.90 7.060 17.27 18.54	
BC perceives higher weight 282 18.66 7.382 17.79 19.52	
Total 784 18.21 7.154 17.70 18.71	
perceives lower weight 22 12.86 2.550 11.73 13.99 0.22	0.801
correct perceived weight 480 12.93 2.589 12.70 13.16	
H perceives higher weight 282 13.05 2.609 12.75 13.36	
Total 784 12.97 2.593 12.79 13.15	
perceives lower weight 22 16.36 3.274 14.91 17.82 0.34	0.709
- correct perceived weight 480 16.25 4.206 15.87 16.63	
E perceives higher weight 282 16.51 4.216 16.02 17.00	
Total 784 16.35 4.184 16.05 16.64	
perceives lower weight 22 21.45 3.188 20.04 22.87 1.36	0.257
- correct perceived weight 480 21.97 3.374 21.67 22.27	
L perceives higher weight 282 22.33 3.523 21.92 22.74	
Total 784 22.09 3.425 21.85 22.33	
perceives lower weight 22 21 68 3 551 20 11 23 26 1 69	0.184
correct perceived weight 480 21.58 3.329 21.28 21.88	0.101
P perceives higher weight 282 21.13 3.409 20.73 21.53	
Total 784 21 42 3 367 21 19 21 66	
nerceives lower weight 22 19 32 2 438 18 24 20 40 1 01	0 364
correct perceived weight 480 19 32 3 268 19.02 19.61	0.204
S perceives higher weight 282 18 97 3 394 18 57 19 37	
Total 784 1919 3 295 18 96 19 42	

Table 4.1. Adlerian lifestyle themes in various groups of perceived weight situation (N=784)

Note. SD = standard deviation; 95% CI = confidence interval; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness.

<i>Table</i> 5.1.	Multinomial	regression	analysis .	for	incorrectly	perceived	lower	weight	among	women	with
increased I	BMI, Chi-Squ	are = 23.00	50, p = 0.	188	R (N=182)						

		В	SE	Wald	p value	Exp(B)	95% CI fo	or Exp(B)
	Intercept	-14.228	12.779	1.240	.266			
	BMI	.145	.101	2.080	.149	1.156	5.949	1.409
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.097	.158	.374	.541	.908	.666	1.238
	GA	.091	.155	.346	.556	1.096	5.808	1.485
	TC	.103	.128	.646	.422	1.109	.862	1.426
	WR	504	.344	2.147	.143	.604	.307	1.186
	BC	.305	.155	3.880	.049	1.357	7 1.002	1.839
perceives lower	Н	179	.309	.338	.561	.836	.456	1.531
	Е	.171	.192	.794	.373	1.186	.815	1.727
	Ĺ	.787	.601	1.712	.191	2.196	.676	7.138
weight	Р	311	.239	1.694	.193	.733	.459	1.170
	S	.270	.295	.842	.359	1.310	.736	2.334
	Appearance	-1.657	1.290	1.651	.199	.191	.015	2.389
	Motivation	1.339	1.407	.906	.341	3.814	.242	60.081
	Soc	204	.540	.142	.706	.816	.283	2.351
	Parents	240	.534	.203	.652	.786	.276	2.238
	Age	.102	.073	1.950	.163	1.107	.960	1.278
	Marital	-1.087	.700	2.408	.121	.337	.085	1.331
	Income	.999	.533	3.509	.061	2.715	5 .955	7.718

Note.^(c) = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; Wald = criteria of significance; Exp(B) = expected unstandardized regression coefficient; 95% CI = confidence interval; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh)) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = incorrectly perceived lower weight situation.

Table 6.1. Multinomial logistic regression of perceived weight situation on the intentions to manage weight in various groups: model summaries and information on the significance of perceived weight (N=784)

	Mada	linform	ation		Coofficie	nta for th	norooivod	waight
	Nidde	1 Informa		T /			e perceived	weight
	Chi-	р.	Cox	Inten-	в	SE	Wald	р
	Square	value	and	tion				value
			Snell					
(1) Three groups of BMI								
decreased	3.967	.138	.068	keep	.582	.570	1.046	.306
				lose	1.856	1.120	2.746	.098
normal	103.047	.000	.173	keep	.390	.198	3.906	.048
				lose	2.036	.229	78.880	.000
increased	14.174	.001	.075	keep	547	.522	1.099	.295
				lose	.952	.317	9.015	.003
(2) Three groups of weigh	nt change							
gained	31.588	.000	.100	keep	336	.286	1.379	.240
				lose	1.061	.236	20.172	.000
the same	50.936	.000	.151	keep	.295	.227	1.696	.193
				lose	1.968	.318	38.356	.000
lost	38.367	.000	.202	keep	.396	.329	1.451	.228
				lose	1.731	.335	26.754	.000
(3) Three groups of habits	s' change							
now is worse	17.762	.000	.089	keep	326	.365	.798	.372
				lose	1.057	.293	13.005	.000
the same	52.290	.000	.168	keep	.361	.240	2.261	.133
				lose	2.067	.340	36.873	.000
now is better	77.931	.000	.225	keep	.353	.271	1.703	.192
				lose	1.970	.281	48.981	.000

Note. Cox and Snell = pseudo R Square (coefficient of determination); B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; keep = intention to keep current weight; lose = intention to lose weight.

		Sum of Squares	DF	Mean Square	F	p value
	Between Groups	2.605	2	1.303	1.871	.155
BSI	Within Groups	540.878	777	.696		
	Total	543.483	779			
	Between Groups	1.042	2	.521	.747	.474
BC	Within Groups	542.019	777	.698		
	Total	543.062	779			
	Between Groups	16.344	2	8.172	.293	.746
GA	Within Groups	21647.728	777	27.861		
	Total	21664.072	779			
	Between Groups	192.170	2	96.085	2.098	.123
TC	Within Groups	35580.367	777	45.792		
	Total	35772.537	779			
	Between Groups	248.096	2	124.048	3.823	.022
WR	Within Groups	25210.072	777	32.445		
	Total	25458.168	779			
	Between Groups	7.840	2	3.920	.581	.560
Н	Within Groups	5243.421	777	6.748		
	Total	5251.262	779			
	Between Groups	28.137	2	14.069	.801	.449
E	Within Groups	13653.067	777	17.572		
	Total	13681.204	779			
	Between Groups	77.896	2	38.948	3.329	.036
L	Within Groups	9089.488	777	11.698		
	Total	9167.385	779			
	Between Groups	60.986	2	30.493	2.699	.068
Р	Within Groups	8779.086	777	11.299		
	Total	8840.072	779			
	Between Groups	12.803	2	6.402	.586	.557
S	Within Groups	8484.350	777	10.919		
	Total	8497.154	779			

Table 7.1. Lifestyle themes in various groups of weight management intention

 $\overline{Note. DF} = degree of freedom.$

			Mean				
			Difference				
Dependent Var	iable INT	ENTION	(I-J)	SE	p value	95% (CI
WR	nothing	keep current	-1.473*	.534	.016	-2.73	22
Tukey HSD		lose weight	357	.474	.731	-1.47	.76
	keep current	nothing	1.473^{*}	.534	.016	.22	2.73
	-	lose weight	1.115	.586	.138	26	2.49
	lose weight	nothing	.357	.474	.731	76	1.47
		keep current	-1.115	.586	.138	-2.49	.26
Liked by all	nothing	keep current	765*	.320	.045	-1.52	01
Tukey HSD		lose weight	.040	.285	.989	63	.71
	keep current	nothing	.765*	.320	.045	.01	1.52
		lose weight	.805	.352	.058	02	1.63
	lose weight	nothing	040	.285	.989	71	.63
		keep current	805	.352	.058	-1.63	.02
M OF O	1 0.50 / 01	<i>a</i> 1	1				

Table 7.2. Post-hoc analysis results for WR and Liked by all scales in various groups of intentions

Note. SE = Standard error; 95% CI = confidence interval.

Table 7.3. Comparison of WR and Liked by all scales in various groups

		Ν	Mean	SD	SE	95% CI for	r Mean
WR	nothing	390	40.65	5.642	.286	40.09	41.21
	keep current	161	42.12	5.738	.452	41.23	43.02
	lose weight	229	41.01	5.759	.381	40.26	41.76
	Total	780	41.06	5.717	.205	40.66	41.46
L	nothing	390	21.93	3.308	.168	21.60	22.26
	keep current	161	22.70	3.578	.282	22.14	23.25
	lose weight	229	21.89	3.495	.231	21.44	22.35
	Total	780	22.08	3.430	.123	21.84	22.32

Note. SD = Standard deviation; SE = Standard error; 95% CI = confidence interval.

INTENTION		В	S.E.	Wald	Sig.	Exp(B)	95% CI for	Exp(B)
	Intercept	-2.479	2.394	1.073	.300			
	Perceived weight	.177	.152	1.362	.243	1.194	.886	1.608
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.106	.176	.365	.546	1.112	.787	1.571
	GA	027	.027	1.020	.313	.973	.922	1.026
	TC	.016	.022	.577	.448	1.017	.974	1.061
	WR	.018	.044	.163	.686	1.018	.934	1.110
	BC	224	.164	1.867	.172	.799	.580	1.102
	Н	019	.051	.135	.713	.981	.887	1.085
	E	034	.028	1.463	.226	.967	.915	1.021
	L	.042	.070	.353	.553	1.043	.908	1.197
1	Р	.045	.036	1.530	.216	1.046	.974	1.123
keep current	S	.010	.045	.052	.820	1.010	.924	1.104
	PerceivedxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	239	.170	1.966	.161	.788	.564	1.100
	PerweightxGA	132	.161	.675	.411	.876	.639	1.201
	PerweightxTC	136	.143	.904	.342	.873	.660	1.155
	PerweightxWR	211	.285	.546	.460	.810	.463	1.416
	PerweightxBC	070	.143	.243	.622	.932	.704	1.233
	PerweightxHr	.002	.144	.000	.991	1.002	.756	1.327
	PerweightxE	.060	.122	.239	.625	1.062	.835	1.349
	PerweightxL	.278	.282	.976	.323	1.321	.760	2.295
	PerweightxP	.029	.114	.066	.797	1.030	.824	1.287
	PerweightxS	114	.175	.426	.514	.892	.634	1.256
	Intercept	-5.490	2.589	4.499	.034			
	Perceived weight	1.881	.180	109.097	.000	6.557	4.608	9.332
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.022	.183	.015	.904	1.022	.714	1.463
	GA	055	.028	3.674	.055	.947	.896	1.001
	TC	034	.023	2.233	.135	.966	.924	1.011
	WR	.060	.047	1.611	.204	1.061	.968	1.164
	BC	100	.168	.357	.550	.905	.651	1.257
	Н	054	.053	1.042	.307	.947	.853	1.051
	Е	.022	.028	.631	.427	1.023	.968	1.081
	L	064	.075	.730	.393	.938	.809	1.087
1 . 17	Р	030	.038	.597	.440	.971	.901	1.047
lose weight	S	.030	.048	.376	.540	1.030	.937	1.132
	PerweightxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	212	.188	1.273	.259	.809	.560	1.169
	PerweightxGA	.020	.168	.014	.907	1.020	.734	1.418
	PerweightxTC	.272	.165	2.720	.099	1.312	.950	1.813
	PerweightxWR	072	.309	.054	.816	.931	.508	1.705
	PerweightxBC	347	.165	4.409	.036	.707	.511	.977
	PerweightxH	150	.157	.910	.340	.861	.633	1.171
	PerweightxE	034	.134	.065	.799	.966	.743	1.258
	PerweightxL	060	.308	.038	.845	.942	.515	1.721
	PerweightxP	.199	.151	1.729	.189	1.220	.907	1.640
	PerweightxS	498	.207	5.782	.016	.608	.405	.912

Table 8.1. Multinomial regression on the intention to manage weight, Chi-square=205.260, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.231

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE (B) = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = marital status; Income = monthly income for one family member; Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight).

INTENTION		В	SE	Wald	Sig.	Exp(B)	95% CI for	Exp(B)
-	Intercept	-5.662	2.620	4.671	.031			
	Perceived weight	.172	.178	.942	.332	1.188	.839	1.683
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.093	.185	.254	.615	1.098	.764	1.578
	GA	009	.029	.095	.757	.991	.937	1.048
	TC	.014	.022	.371	.542	1.014	.970	1.059
	WR	.011	.047	.060	.806	1.012	.923	1.108
	BC	202	.177	1.303	.254	.817	.578	1.156
	Н	.000	.055	.000	.999	1.000	.898	1.113
	Е	055	.030	3.382	.066	.946	.892	1.004
	L	.041	.075	.296	.586	1.041	.900	1.205
	Р	.038	.039	.923	.337	1.038	.962	1.121
	S	.007	.047	.021	.885	1.007	.917	1.105
	PerceivedxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	236	.183	1.662	.197	.790	.552	1.131
	PerweightxGA	066	.174	.146	.703	.936	.665	1.316
	PerweightxTC	063	.155	.168	.681	.939	.693	1.271
	PerweightxWR	079	.317	.062	.804	.924	.497	1.719
	PerweightxBC	.001	.164	.000	.993	1.001	.726	1.382
koon ourront	PerweightxHr	001	.160	.000	.996	.999	.730	1.368
keep current	PerweightxE	015	.138	.011	.916	.986	.751	1.293
	PerweightxL	.258	.313	.679	.410	1.294	.701	2.387
	PerweightxP	014	.135	.010	.919	.986	.757	1.286
	PerweightxS	111	.183	.368	.544	.895	.625	1.281
	Appearance	122	.216	.317	.573	.885	.580	1.352
	Motivation	.930	.195	22.866	.000	2.535	1.731	3.712
	Perweightxappearance	059	.162	.134	.714	.942	.685	1.296
	Perweightxmotivation	.132	.149	.786	.375	1.141	.852	1.527
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	.001	.343	.000	.997	1.001	.511	1.962
	PerweightxSOC ⁽⁻⁾	171	.138	1.541	.215	.843	.643	1.104
	Marital	.032	.121	.069	.793	1.032	.814	1.310
	PerweightxMarital	101	.125	.657	.418	.904	.708	1.154
	Income	060	.092	.427	.513	.942	.787	1.127
	PerweightxIncome	042	.124	.115	.734	.959	.752	1.222
	Age	.012	.011	1.037	.309	1.012	.989	1.034
	PerweightxAge	.115	.126	.822	.365	1.121	.875	1.437
	Parents	.096	.093	1.070	.301	1.101	.918	1.321
	PerweightxParents	274	.120	5.215	.022	.760	.601	.962

Table 8.2. Multinomial logistic analysis of perceived weight, personality and other biopsychosocial variables on the intention to keep current weight, Chi-Square=320.822, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.337

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE (B) = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight).

INTENTION		В	SE	Wald	Sig.	Exp(B)	95% CI for	Exp(B)
	Intercept	-8.831	2.963	8.880	.003			
	Perceived weight	2.262	.217	108.898	.000	9.606	6.281	14.692
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	065	.200	.107	.743	.937	.634	1.385
	GA	041	.032	1.635	.201	.960	.902	1.022
	TC	037	.025	2.239	.135	.964	.918	1.011
	WR	.029	.052	.311	.577	1.029	.930	1.139
	BC	099	.190	.271	.602	.906	.625	1.314
	Н	060	.059	1.038	.308	.941	.838	1.057
	E	024	.031	.605	.437	.976	.918	1.037
	L	044	.082	.284	.594	.957	.814	1.125
	Р	032	.043	.556	.456	.968	.889	1.054
	S	.041	.053	.586	.444	1.042	.938	1.157
	PerceivedxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	165	.199	.684	.408	.848	.574	1.253
	PerweightxGA	.054	.191	.079	.778	1.055	.726	1.533
	PerweightxTC	.308	.177	3.030	.082	1.361	.962	1.925
	PerweightxWR	.029	.334	.007	.931	1.029	.535	1.981
	PerweightxBC	277	.187	2.179	.140	.758	.525	1.095
loso woight	PerweightxHr	150	.173	.746	.388	.861	.613	1.209
lose weight	PerweightxE	034	.151	.051	.821	.966	.719	1.299
	PerweightxL	065	.333	.038	.845	.937	.488	1.801
	PerweightxP	.245	.173	2.006	.157	1.277	.910	1.793
	PerweightxS	525	.224	5.467	.019	.592	.381	.919
	Appearance	317	.233	1.858	.173	.728	.461	1.149
	Motivation	1.281	.214	35.835	.000	3.602	2.368	5.480
	PerweightxAppearance	198	.168	1.393	.238	.821	.591	1.140
	PerweightxMotivation	.164	.162	1.025	.311	1.178	.858	1.618
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	.729	.366	3.957	.047	2.072	2 1.011	4.248
	PerweightXSOC ⁽⁻⁾	050	.150	.112	.737	.951	.709	1.276
	Marital	101	.133	.575	.448	.904	.696	1.174
	PerweightxMarital	.112	.134	.698	.403	1.118	.860	1.454
	Income	.002	.099	.000	.984	1.002	.825	1.216
	PerweightxIncome	095	.138	.469	.493	.910	.693	1.193
	Age	041	.014	8.521	.004	.960	.933	.987
	PerweightxAge	.159	.152	1.093	.296	1.172	.870	1.579
	Parents	.145	.101	2.091	.148	1.157	.950	1.409
	PerweightxParents	263	.126	4.322	.038	.769	.600	.985

Table 8.3. Multinomial logistic analysis of perceived weight, personality and other biopsychosocial variables on the intention to lose weight

Note.⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE (B) = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; R^2 = coefficient of determination; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight).

INT	ENTION	В	SE	Wald	Sig.	Exp(B)	95% CI for	Exp(B)
		-9.862	3.770	6.844	.009			
	Intercept							
	Perceived weight	2.676	.358	55.822	.000	14.530	7.201	29.320
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	213	.251	.718	.397	.809	.495	1.322
	GA	040	.038	1.111	.292	.961	.891	1.035
	TC	039	.030	1.740	.187	.962	.908	1.019
	WR	.076	.061	1.534	.216	1.079	.957	1.216
	BC	065	.234	.078	.780	.937	.593	1.481
	Н	061	.071	.740	.390	.941	.818	1.082
	Е	.002	.039	.003	.955	1.002	.928	1.082
	L	089	.097	.840	.359	.915	.757	1.106
	Р	044	.053	.677	.411	.957	.863	1.062
	S	002	.064	.001	.981	.998	.880	1.132
	PerceivedxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	484	.296	2.679	.102	.616	.345	1.100
	PerweightxGA	158	.281	.317	.573	.854	.492	1.481
	PerweightxTC	.016	.257	.004	.952	1.016	.614	1.681
	PerweightxWR	.064	.527	.015	.903	1.066	.380	2.993
	PerweightxBC	665	.286	5.416	.020	.514	.294	.900
lose weight	PerweightxHr	120	.249	.231	.631	.887	.544	1.446
	PerweightxE	030	.232	.017	.896	.970	.615	1.530
	PerweightxL	.026	.500	.003	.959	1.026	.385	2.736
	PerweightxP	062	.259	.057	.811	.940	.566	1.560
	PerweightxS	639	.314	4.129	.042	.528	.285	.978
	Appearance	680	.296	5.266	.022	.507	.283	.906
	Motivation	1.632	.267	37.246	.000	5.116	5 3.029	8.643
	PerweightxAppearance	095	.256	.139	.709	.909	.550	1.502
	PerweightxMotivation	.133	.269	.246	.620	1.142	.675	1.934
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	.987	.446	4.898	.027	2.683	3 1.119	6.430
	PerweightXSOC ⁽⁻⁾	.145	.225	.413	.520	1.156	.743	1.797
	Marital	160	.171	.882	.348	.852	.610	1.190
	PerweightxMarital	.053	.219	.059	.808	1.055	.687	1.620
	Income	.086	.121	.511	.475	1.090	.860	1.382
	PerweightxIncome	232	.199	1.368	.242	.793	.537	1.170
	Age	057	.020	8.106	.004	.945	.908	.982
	PerweightxAge	.499	.296	2.839	.092	1.646	.922	2.941
	Parents	.032	.126	.065	.799	1.033	.806	1.323
	PerweightxParents	198	.202	.958	.328	.820	.552	1.220

Table 9.1 Regression analysis for the intention to lose weight in the group of women with normal BMI, Chi-Square=256.396, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.377

Note.^(c) = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE (B) = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; R^2 = coefficient of determination; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight).

APPENDIX 10

INTENTION		В	SE	Wald	Sig.	Exp(B)	95% (CI for
		4 172	23 691	031	860		Exp	(B)
	Intercept	1.172	25.071	.001	.000			
	Perceived weight	1.161	2.302	.254	.614	3.194	.035	291.164
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	796	1.778	.200	.654	.451	.014	14.705
	GA	.084	.249	.112	.737	1.087	.667	1.772
	TC	.029	.182	.026	.872	1.030	.721	1.472
	WR	259	.397	.426	.514	.772	.355	1.680
	BC	-2.992	1.502	3.967	.046	.050	.003	.953
	Н	.383	.438	.765	.382	1.467	.622	3.464
	Е	334	.301	1.232	.267	.716	.397	1.291
	L	.614	.703	.761	.383	1.847	.465	7.330
	Р	587	.367	2.550	.110	.556	.271	1.143
	S	245	.463	.279	.597	.783	.316	1.941
	PerceivedxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	528	2.148	.060	.806	.590	.009	39.733
	PerweightxGA	013	1.418	.000	.993	.987	.061	15.894
	PerweightxTC	.807	1.419	.324	.569	2.242	.139	36.198
	PerweightxWR	.295	2.401	.015	.902	1.343	.012	148.578
	PerweightxBC	1.366	1.329	1.055	.304	3.918	.289	53.030
keep current	PerweightxHr	838	1.271	.435	.510	.433	.036	5.226
-	PerweightxE	237	1.655	.021	.886	.789	.031	20.222
	PerweightxL	481	2.647	.033	.856	.618	.003	110.776
	PerweightxP	1.109	1.484	.558	.455	3.031	.165	55.583
	PerweightxS	.151	1.817	.007	.934	1.163	.033	40.950
	Appearance	2.850	1.919	2.205	.138	17.287	.402	743.907
	Motivation	-1.336	1.790	.557	.455	.263	.008	8.771
	PerweightxAppearance	758	1.195	.403	.526	.468	.045	4.875
	PerweightxMotivation	.492	1.475	.111	.739	1.635	.091	29.447
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	-1.587	2.728	.339	.561	.204	.001	42.907
	PerweightXSOC ⁽⁻⁾	732	.992	.544	.461	.481	.069	3.361
	Marital	.104	.853	.015	.903	1.110	.209	5.909
	PerweightxMarital	537	.885	.367	.544	.585	.103	3.315
	Income	.770	.742	1.075	.300	2.159	.504	9.250
	PerweightxIncome	-1.005	1.067	.887	.346	.366	.045	2.964
	Age	.271	.109	6.234	.013	1.311	1.060	1.622
	PerweightxAge	-1.277	.928	1.895	.169	.279	.045	1.718
	Parents	.075	.776	.009	.923	1.078	.235	4.935
	PerweightxParents	.051	.648	.006	.937	1.053	.296	3.745

Table 10.1. Regression analysis for the intention to keep current weight among overweight women, Chi-Square=120.733, p=0.000, Cox and Snell=0.485

Note.^(c) = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE (B) = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval; $R^2 =$ coefficient of determination; BMI = body mass index; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight).

Table 11.1. Outliers of weight-related behaviours

Behaviour	Criteria for the outliers	Number of answers
Healthy eating	<=1.7; >4.9	12, 3
Good eating habits	<=1.8	5
Physical activity	>=99	22
Weight controlling behaviour	>=3.3	4

Table 12.1. Post-hoc analysis of the behaviour among various groups of intention (after evaluating the
equality of variance the criteria was chosen from TUKEY (if equal variances assumed) and Games-
Howel (if equal variances were not assumed)

	(I) Intention (J) intention		Mean Difference (I-J)	SE	Sig.	95%	6 CI
HEALTHY	EATING						
Games-	nothing	keep current	34911*	.05599	.000	4810	2172
Howell		lose weight	31800*	.04567	.000	4253	2107
	keep	nothing	.34911*	.05599	.000	.2172	.4810
	current	lose weight	.03111	.05792	.853	1053	.1675
	lose	nothing	.31800*	.04567	.000	.2107	.4253
	weight	keep current	03111	.05792	.853	1675	.1053
GOOD EAT	TING HABITS	S					
Tukey	nothing	keep current	55972*	.11487	.000	8295	2900
HSD		lose weight	38109 [*]	.10240	.001	6215	1406
	keep	nothing	.55972*	.11487	.000	.2900	.8295
	current	lose weight	.17863	.12620	.333	1177	.4750
	lose	nothing	.38109*	.10240	.001	.1406	.6215
	weight	keep current	17863	.12620	.333	4750	.1177
PHYSICAL	ACTIVITY						
Tukey	nothing	keep current	-9.97967*	2.06796	.000	-14.8359	-5.1234
HSD		lose weight	-12.65706*	1.82449	.000	-16.9416	-8.3725
	keep	nothing	9.97967*	2.06796	.000	5.1234	14.8359
	current	lose weight	-2.67739	2.27690	.468	-8.0243	2.6696
	lose	nothing	12.65706^{*}	1.82449	.000	8.3725	16.9416
	weight	keep current	2.67739	2.27690	.468	-2.6696	8.0243
WEIGHT C	ONTROLLIN	IG BEHAVIOUR					
Games-	nothing	keep current	40136 [*]	.03794	.000	4909	3118
Howell		lose weight	61437*	.03339	.000	6930	5358
	keep	nothing	.40136*	.03794	.000	.3118	.4909
	current	lose weight	21301*	.04576	.000	3207	1053
	lose	nothing	.61437 [*]	.03339	.000	.5358	.6930
	weight	keep current	.21301*	.04576	.000	.1053	.3207

	WHAT YOU TRYING	TON	Subset for	alpha = 0.05	
	DO WITH YOUR		1	2	
	WEIGHT AT THE				
	MOMENT				
	nothing	379	3.1114		
Healthy eating	lose weight	229		3.4294	
Tukey HSD ^{a,b}	keep current	159		3.4605	
-	Sig.	$\begin{array}{c c} \mbox{RYING TON} & \mbox{Subset for alpha} \\ \mbox{UR} & 1 & 2 \\ \mbox{THE} & 1 & 2 \\ \mbox{Subset for alpha} \\ \mbox{IIII} & 1 & 2 \\ \mbox{Subset for alpha} \\ \mbox{IIII} \\ \mbox{IIII} \\ \mbox{IIII} \\ \mbox{IIII} \\ \mbox{IIII} \\ \mbox{IIII} \\ \mbox{IIIII} \\ \mbox{IIIIII} \\ \mbox{IIIIII} \\ \mbox{IIIII} \\ \mbox{IIIIII} \\ \mbox{IIIIII} \\ \mbox{IIIIII} \\ IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII \\ \mbox{IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII$.832		
	nothing	387	5.1266		
Good eating	lose weight	227		5.5077	
Tukey HSD ^{a,b}	keep current	161		5.6863	
-	Sig.		1.000	.266	
Dhysical	nothing	385	24.9611		
Physical	keep current	152		34.9408	
Telese UCD ^{a,b}	lose weight	220		37.6182	
Tukey HSD	Sig.		1.000	.397	
					3
Weight	nothing	390	1.4061		
controlling	keep current	161		1.8075	
behaviour	lose weight	226			2.0205
Tukey HSD ^{a,b}	Sig.		1.000	1.000	1.000

Table 12. 2. Information for homogeneous samples of various intentions in relation to various behaviours

	Mod	Model information			Coefficients for the intentions			
	F	p value	R	В	SE	t	р	
			Square				value	
(1) Three groups of BMI								
decreased	4.929	.031	.084	.438	.197	2.220	.031	
normal	40.946	.000	.072	.320	.050	6.399	.000	
increased	13.958	.000	.072	.303	.081	3.736	.000	
(2) Three groups of weight change								
gained	20.261	.000	.065	.295	.066	4.501	.000	
the same	22.232	.000	.068	.331	.070	4.715	.000	
lost	14.567	.000	.082	.332	.087	3.817	.000	
(3) Three groups of weight	t-related ha	bits' change						
now is worse	7.763	.006	.040	.243	.087	2.786	.006	
the same	8.933	.003	.032	.224	.075	2.989	.003	
now is better	22.661	.000	.070	.316	.066	4.760	.000	

Table 13.1 Linear logistic regression of the intentions to manage weight on healthy eating in various groups of women

Note. R Square = coefficient of determination; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; 95% CI = confidence interval;

Model	В	SE	Beta	t	p value
(Constant)	2.459	.497		4.943	.000
Intention2	.310	.042	.261	7.391	.000
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.045	.036	.063	1.253	.211
GA	.000	.006	001	026	.980
TC	.006	.004	.063	1.280	.201
WR	006	.009	053	604	.546
BC	.050	.033	.070	1.508	.132
Н	029	.011	125	-2.727	.007
E	005	.006	032	792	.428
L	007	.014	042	502	.616
Р	.020	.007	.114	2.686	.007
S	.005	.009	.026	.498	.618
Intention2 x BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.019	.030	.032	.628	.530
Intention2 x GA	.024	.030	.039	.794	.427
Intention2 x TC	.035	.029	.061	1.241	.215
Intention2 x WR	002	.053	003	029	.977
Intention2 x BC	.040	.028	.067	1.436	.151
Intention2 x H	.022	.027	.037	.811	.417

-.004

-.044

.015

.025

.019

-.110

.120

-.001

-.102

-.038

-.067

-.034

.058

-.022

.006

-.056

.028

.002

.024

.051

.025

.030

.026

.040

.036

.026

.065

.023

.023

.021

.018

.021

.002

.022

.018

.020

-.007

-.071

.026

.042

.030

-.118

.142

-.001

-.062

-.063

-.102

-.057

.113

-.038

.101

-.093

.053

.004

-.171

-.852

.606

.813

.722

-2.766

3.350

-.028

-1.575

-1.613

-2.846

-1.600

3.248

-1.081

2.760

-2.542

1.545

.119

.865

.394

.545

.416

.470

.006

.001

.977

.116

.107

.005

.110

.001

.280

.006

.011

.123

.905

Table 14.1. Linear regression analysis of the intention to manage weight, lifestyle themes, other biopsychosocial variables and their interaction with the intention on healthy eating in total women sample, F=5.301, p=0.000, R Square = 0.202 (N=767)

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; *Note.*⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; Intention2=active intention to manage weight (to lose or keep current); BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight). Dependent Variable = healthy eating

Intention2 x E

Intention2 x L

Intention2 x P

Intention2 x S

Appearance

Motivation

SOC(-)

Marital

Income

Age

Intention2 x Appearance

Intention2 x Motivation

Intention2 x SOC(-)

Intention2 x Marital

Intention2 x Income

Intention2 x Parents

Parents' weight (Parents)

Intention2 x Age

	Model information			Coef	Coefficients for the perceived weight			
-	F	p value	R	В	SE	t	р	
-			Square				value	
(1) Three groups of BMI								
decreased	.518	.475	.010	.265	.368	.720	.475	
normal	18.625	.000	.034	.454	.105	4.316	.000	
increased	6.404	.012	.035	.486	.192	2.531	.012	
(2) Three groups of weigh	t change							
gained	17.182	.000	.055	.612	.148	4.145	.000	
the same	6.762	.010	.021	.351	.135	2.600	.010	
lost	4.261	.041	.025	.417	.202	2.064	.041	
(3) Three groups of weigh	t-related hal	oits' change						
now is worse	3.273	.072	.017	.334	.185	1.809	.072	
the same	2.565	.110	.009	.244	.152	1.601	.110	
now is better	15.965	.000	.050	.610	.153	3.996	.000	

Table 15.1 Linear regression of the intentions to manage weight on good eating habits in various groups of women

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; t = t-value; p value = significance for the coefficient.

Table 16.1. Linear regression analysis of the intention to manage weight, lifestyle themes and other biopsychosocial variables on good eating habits in total female sample, F=4.294, p=0.000, R Square = 0.169 (N=775).

Model		В	SE	t	Sig.
	(Constant)	4.204	1.058	3.975	.000
	Intention to manage weight	.433	.089	4.854	.000
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	112	.077	-1.464	.144
	GA	.012	.012	.982	.326
	TC	.004	.009	.456	.648
	WR	025	.019	-1.324	.186
	BC	023	.071	326	.745
	Н	.000	.022	022	.983
	E	012	.012	993	.321
	L	.007	.030	.238	.812
	Р	.038	.016	2.397	.017
	S	.007	.020	.348	.728
	Intention2 x BSI ⁽⁻⁾	103	.064	-1.614	.107
	Intention2 x GA	014	.063	217	.828
	Intention2 x TC	014	.061	236	.814
	Intention2 x WR	.009	.112	.083	.934
	Intention2 x BC	.003	.059	.044	.965
1	Intention2 x H	.074	.057	1.291	.197
1	Intention2 x E	073	.050	-1.456	.146
	Intention2 x L	.023	.108	.216	.829
	Intention2 x P	089	.054	-1.661	.097
	Intention2 x S	027	.065	424	.672
	Appearance	297	.085	-3.518	.000
	Intention2 x Appearance	060	.056	-1.076	.282
	Motivation	.292	.076	3.838	.000
	Intention2 x Motivation	.075	.054	1.387	.166
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	125	.139	900	.369
	Intention2 x SOC ⁽⁻⁾	025	.050	504	.615
	Marital	.032	.050	.641	.522
	Intention2 x Marital	.024	.045	.525	.600
	Income	.066	.038	1.724	.085
	Intention2 x Income	035	.044	792	.429
	Age	.017	.005	3.551	.000
	Intention2 x Age	088	.046	-1.892	.059
	Parents' weight (Parents)	.023	.038	.603	.546
	Intention2 x Parents	051	.043	-1.172	.242

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; *Note.*⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; Intention2=active intention to manage weight (to lose or keep current); BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight). Dependent Variable = good eating habits.

	Мо	Model information			Coefficients for the perceived weight			
	F	p value	R	В	SE	t	р	
			Square				value	
(1) Three groups of BMI								
decreased	4.304	.043	.075	16.062	7.742	2.075	.043	
normal	39.196	.000	.070	11.680	1.866	6.261	.000	
increased	11.564	.001	.062	11.245	3.307	3.401	.001	
(2) Three groups of weig	ht change							
gained			.078	11.716	2.365	4.954	.000	
the same	20.235	$.000^{\circ}$.064	11.787	2.620	4.498	.000	
lost	7.300	.008	.042	10.263	3.798	2.702	.008	
(3) Three groups of weig	ht-related	habits' chang	ge					
now is worse	5.546	.020	.029	6.810	2.891	2.355	.020	
the same	12.114	.001	.042	9.312	2.676	3.481	.001	
now is better	8.658	.004	.029	8.443	2.869	2.942	.004	

Table 17.1. Linear regression of the intentions to manage weight on physical activity in various groups of women

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; t = t-value; p value = significance for the coefficient.

Table 18.1. Linear regression analysis of the intention to manage weight, lifestyle themes and other biopsychosocial variables on physical activity in total female sample, F=3.695, p=0.000, R Square = 0.152 (N=757)

Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.
	(Constant)	51.124	19.268		2.653	.008
	Intention to manage weight	10.265	1.633	.230	6.287	.000
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	993	1.394	037	712	.477
	GA	403	.218	095	-1.846	.065
	TC	044	.169	013	261	.794
	WR	627	.354	161	-1.771	.077
	BC	.644	1.296	.024	.497	.619
	Н	187	.412	022	454	.650
	E	274	.224	052	-1.224	.221
	L	.567	.559	.087	1.015	.310
	Р	.310	.291	.047	1.065	.287
	S	.095	.359	.014	.264	.792
	Intention2 x BSI ⁽⁻⁾	669	1.163	030	576	.565
	Intention2 x GA	1.716	1.159	.076	1.481	.139
	Intention2 x TC	2.125	1.120	.097	1.898	.058
	Intention2 x WR	-3.327	2.061	146	-1.614	.107
	Intention2 x BC	2.644	1.081	.119	2.445	.015
	Intention2 x H	.675	1.054	.031	.641	.522
	Intention2 x E	820	.924	038	888	.375
	Intention2 x L	1.749	1.980	.076	.883	.378
	Intention2 x P	.423	.978	.019	.433	.665
	Intention2 x S	524	1.175	024	446	.656
	Appearance	-2.197	1.558	063	-1.410	.159
	Intention2 x Appearance	.927	1.029	.040	.901	.368
	Motivation	4.517	1.410	.142	3.203	.001
	Intention2 x Motivation	1.277	1.004	.054	1.272	.204
	SOC ⁽⁻⁾	-1.569	2.539	025	618	.537
	Intention2 x SOC ⁽⁻⁾	494	.910	022	543	.588
	Marital	-2.933	.922	118	-3.182	.002
	Intention2 x Marital	993	.834	044	-1.191	.234
	Income	235	.706	012	332	.740
	Intention2 x Income	.282	.815	.012	.346	.730
	Age	238	.088	103	-2.714	.007
	Intention2 x Age	608	.860	027	707	.480
	Parents' weight (Parents)	517	.693	026	746	.456
	Intention x Parents	.425	.791	.019	.537	.591

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; *Note.*⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; Intention2=active intention to manage weight (to lose or keep current); BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight). Dependent Variable = physical activity.

	Model information			Coefficients for the perceived weight				veight
_	F	p value	R		В	SE	t	p value
			Square					
(1) Three groups of	f BMI							
decreased	20.512	.000	.436	lose	1.078	.183	5.873	.000
				keep	.344	.108	3.191	.002
normal	142.268	.000	.346	lose	.591	.038	15.659	.000
				keep	.430	.039	11.141	.000
increased	30.898	.000	.259	lose	.519	.066	7.854	.000
				keep	.302	.105	2.882	.004
(2) Three groups of	f weight cha	nge						
gained	48.557	.000	.248	lose	.487	.051	9.602	.000
				keep	.362	.066	5.445	.000
the same	88.189	.000	.364	lose	.665	.056	11.927	.000
				keep	.392	.047	8.319	.000
lost	47.382	.000	.363	lose	.687	.071	9.686	.000
				keep	.433	.080	5.442	.000
(3) Three groups of	f weight-rela	ted habits'	change					
now is worse	33.157	.000	.262	lose	.490	.061	8.021	.000
				keep	.262	.081	3.215	.002
the same	55.090	.000	.282	lose	.502	.057	8.761	.000
				keep	.375	.051	7.387	.000
now is better	60.464	.000	.287	lose	.620	.057	10.972	.000
				keen	420	.063	6.662	.000

Table 19.1. Linear regression of the intentions to manage weight on weight controlling behaviour in various groups of women (N=777)

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; lose = intention to lose weight; keep = intention to keep current weight; dependent variable = weight controlling behaviour.

	В	SE	Beta	t	Sig.
(Constant)	1.047	.459		2.284	.023
keep current weight	.372	.036	.323	10.194	.000
lose weight	.574	.033	.559	17.567	.000
BSI ⁽⁻⁾	.011	.036	.019	.296	.767
GA	003	.005	033	551	.582
TC	003	.004	041	691	.490
WR	.003	.009	.037	.344	.731
BC	008	.031	013	241	.810
Н	.003	.010	.019	.343	.732
E	.001	.005	.013	.282	.778
L	009	.014	069	661	.509
Р	.001	.007	.010	.198	.843
S	.001	.009	.004	.056	.955
KeepxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	008	.052	008	155	.877
KeepxGA	012	.050	012	245	.807
KeepxTC	.028	.052	.029	.535	.593
KeepxWR	064	.092	062	690	.491
KeepxBC	.065	.046	.064	1.396	.163
KeepxH	.001	.046	.001	.024	.981
Keepx_E	.051	.043	.049	1.182	.237
KeepxL	.050	.087	.050	.571	.568
KeepxP	.028	.043	.027	.652	.514
KeepxS	.017	.055	.017	.315	.753
LosexBSI ⁽⁻⁾	029	.046	033	632	.528
LosexGA	073	.046	088	-1.582	.114
LosexTC	.056	.044	.069	1.283	.200
LosexWR	021	.081	024	266	.790
LosexBC	055	.043	063	-1.272	.204
LosexH	018	.042	021	420	.675
LosexE	046	.036	055	-1.287	.199
LosexL	018	.078	021	232	.816
LosexP	011	.039	012	282	.778
LosexS	.024	.047	.028	.507	.612
Appearance	.058	.027	.079	2.151	.032
Motivation	.043	.024	.064	1.775	.076
Soc ⁽⁻⁾	043	.044	033	973	.331
Marital	024	.016	047	-1.544	.123
Income	.001	.012	.001	.044	.965
Age	.004	.001	.094	2.978	.003
Parents	.047	.012	.115	3.897	.000

Table 20.1. The coefficients of the final step of the regression analysis for weight controlling behaviour in total female sample (N=777)

Note.^(\circ) = inverse relation due to the transformation; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE= standard error associated with B; Beta = standardized coefficient; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivational towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weigh) to 5 (big problems with weight); dependent variable = weight controlling behaviour.

		General Score	Subscales for Intuitive Eating			g
		for Intuitive	UPE	EPR	RHSC	B-FCC
		Eating				
Behaviour	Healthy eating	-0.196	-0.456**	-0.215	0.005	0.516**
variables	Good eating habits	0.156	-0.152	0.298*	0.038	0.188
	Physical activity	-0.511**	-0.357**	-0.454**	-0.298*	-0.080
	Weight controlling	-0.562**	-0.481**	-0.406**	-0.424**	0.000

Table 21.1. Pearson correlations of the general score and subscales of the Intuitive Eating with behavioural variables in the group of women with decreased BMI

Note. *<0.05; **p<0.01

Table 21.2. Pearson correlations of the general score and subscales of the Intuitive Eating with behavioural variables in the group of women with normal BMI

General		General Score for	Subscales for Intuitive Eating					
		Intuitive Eating	UPE	EPR	RHSC	B-FCC		
Behaviour	Healthy eating	0.046	-0.332**	0.065	0.081	0.462**		
variables	Good eating	0.216**	-0.168**	0.336**	0.132**	0.142**		
	habits							
	Physical	0.016	-0.180**	0.017	0.056	0.220**		
	activity							
	Weight	-0.342**	-0.506**	-0.203**	-0.266**	0.172**		
	controlling							
Note. *<0.05; **p<0.01								

Table 21.3. Pearson correlations of the general score and subscales of the Intuitive Eating with behavioural variables in the group of women with increased BMI

		General Score for	Subscales for Intuitive Eating				
		Intuitive Eating	UPE	EPR	RHSC	B-FCC	
Behaviour	Healthy eating	0.215**	-0.494**	0.265**	0.324**	0.442**	
variables	Good eating	0.296**	-0.367**	0.434**	0.223**	0.249**	
	habits						
	Physical activity	-0.055	-0.281**	-0.008	0.051	0.165*	
	Weight	-0.156*	-0.346**	-0.081	-0.051	0.228**	
	controlling						
Note \$<0.0	5. ** = < 0.01						

Note. *<0.05; **p<0.01

	(I) INTENTION	(J) INTENTION	Mean Difference	SE	p value	95% CI
			(I-J)			
		keep current	.13128*	.05283	.036	.0068 .2557
	notning	lose weight	$.38767^{*}$.04355	.000	.2853 .4900
			13128*	.05283	.036	2557 -
	keep current	notning				.0068
Games-Howell		lose weight	.25640*	.05538	.000	.1260 .3868
			38767*	.04355	.000	4900 -
		notning				.2853
	lose weight	1	25640*	.05538	.000	3868 -
		keep current				.1260

Table 22.1. Post hoc analysis for the general score of Intuitive eating in various groups of weight management intentions (N=780)

Note. SE = standard error associated with B; t = t-value; p value = significance for the coefficient.

Model					t	Sig.
		В	SE	Beta		
	(Constant)	4.373	.447		9.793	.000
	Intention	170	.022	260	-7.790	.000
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	029	.032	042	893	.372
	GA	.001	.005	.009	.201	.841
	TC	005	.004	055	-1.187	.236
	WR	.005	.008	.051	.634	.526
	BC	.031	.030	.046	1.037	.300
	Н	008	.009	037	873	.383
	Е	003	.005	020	532	.595
	L	008	.013	051	660	.509
	Р	.011	.007	.064	1.612	.107
	S	.002	.008	.014	.293	.769
	IntentionxBSI ⁽⁻⁾	014	.027	024	505	.614
	IntentionxGA	024	.027	042	887	.375
	IntentionxTC	010	.026	017	374	.709
	IntentionxWR	029	.047	049	612	.540
	IntentionxBC	019	.025	033	753	.452
1	IntentionxH	.000	.025	001	017	.986
1	IntentionxE	.024	.021	.043	1.129	.259
	IntentionxL	.024	.046	.041	.529	.597
	IntentionxP	009	.023	015	376	.707
	IntentionxS	.027	.027	.048	1.004	.316
	Appearance	312	.036	351	-8.752	.000
	IntentionxAppearance	011	.024	018	437	.662
	Motivation	.189	.032	.234	5.919	.000
	IntentionxMotivation	037	.023	063	-1.588	.113
	Perceived social support(SOC) (-)	145	.059	091	-2.468	.014
	IntentionxSOC ⁽⁻⁾	.026	.020	.047	1.300	.194
	Marital status (Marital)	.053	.021	.085	2.535	.011
	IntentionxMarital	015	.019	026	784	.433
	Income	.040	.016	.081	2.473	.014
	IntentionxIncome	025	.018	045	-1.380	.168
	Age	001	.002	017	497	.619
	IntentionxAge	.002	.020	.003	.078	.938
	Parents' weight (parents)	057	.016	114	-3.570	.000
	Intentionxparents	.007	.019	.012	.358	.720

Table 23.1. Linear regression analysis on the general score of the Intuitive eating F=8.632, p=0.000, R Square = 0.289

Note. B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; *Note.*⁽⁻⁾ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; Intention=active intention to manage weight (to lose or keep current); BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; SOC = Perceived social support; Marital = single; 2- in a relationship; 3-lives with a partner or married; Income = monthly income for one family member from 1 (<500lt) to 5 (>4000); Parents= Parents' weight situation (from 1 (no problems with weight) to 5 (big problems with weight). Dependent Variable = Intuitive eating.

Μ	odel	В	SE	t	Sig.	95.0% C	I for B
	(Constant)	1.252	.061	20.475	.000	1.132	1.372
	Age	.003	.000	11.144	.000	.002	.003
	Parents' weight	.008	.002	3.891	.000	.004	.012
	Healthy eating	003	.005	667	.505	012	.006
	Good eating habits	001	.002	262	.793	004	.003
	District and activity	-4.036E-	.000	482	.630	.000	.000
	Physical activity	005					
	Weight controlling behaviour	.034	.006	5.928	.000	.023	.045
	Unconditional Permission to Eat	001	.004	157	.876	009	.008
	Eating for Physical Rather than	009	.003	-3.171	.002	015	004
	Emotional Reasons						
	Reliance on Hunger and Satiety Cues	012	.003	-3.703	.000	019	006
	Body-Food Choice Congruence	002	.004	463	.643	009	.006
	BSI ⁽⁻⁾	010	.004	-2.690	.007	018	003
1	GA	.002	.001	3.083	.002	.001	.003
	TC	.001	.000	1.887	.060	.000	.002
	WR	001	.001	-1.107	.268	003	.001
	BC	.008	.004	2.089	.037	.000	.015
	Н	.000	.001	.138	.890	002	.002
	Е	.000	.001	620	.535	002	.001
	L	.001	.002	.478	.633	002	.004
	Р	.003	.001	3.554	.000	.001	.005
	S	002	.001	-1.976	.049	004	.000
	Appearance	.010	.005	2.197	.028	.001	.019
	Motivation	019	.004	-4.770	.000	027	011
	Perceived social support ⁽⁻⁾	003	.007	417	.677	017	.011
	Monital status	3.005E-	.003	.012	.991	005	.005
	iviaritai status	005					
	Income	.001	.002	.346	.730	003	.005

Table 24.1 Regression model for BMI, F=17.022, p=0.000, R Square =0.360 (N=784)

Note. $^{(-)}$ = inverse relation due to the transformation of the variables; B = unstandardized regression coefficient; SE = standard error associated with B; BSI = Belonging/Social interest; GA = going along; TC = taking charge; WR = wanting recognition; BC = being cautious; H = harshness; E = entitlement; L = liked by all; P = striving for perfection; S = softness; Appearance = Importance of appearance; Motivation = Motivation towards appearance; Dependent variable = body mass index.

Justina GAUBĖ

IMPORTANCE OF ADLERIAN LIFESTYLE THEMES IN WOMEN'S WEIGHT MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Doctoral Dissertation

Išleido ir spausdino – Vytauto Didžiojo universiteto bibliotekos Leidybos skyrius (S. Daukanto g. 27, LT-44249 Kaunas) Užsakymo Nr. K15-034053 Tiražas 15 egz. 2015 05 22. Nemokamai.